
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Emma Sullivan 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864420   Ebost: sullie@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 23 Medi 2021 

 
 
 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod digidol o'r Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal trwy Microsoft Teams ar  Dydd Mercher, 29ain Medi, 
2021 am 10.30 am. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol.  .  Mae croeso i chi 
ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn 
dymuno gwneud hynny.  
 
Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei recordio a bydd ar gael i'w weld trwy wefan y Cyngor, ac eithrio 
trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr 
unigolion sy'n bresennol ac/neu sy'n siarad yn ystod y Cabinet ar gael i'r cyhoedd trwy'r recordiad ar 
wefan y Cyngor: www.caerffili.gov.uk 
 
 
 

 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/


  
 

 
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion. 

 
I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
3  Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 15 Medi 2021.  

1 - 6 
 

Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet – Nodi. 
 
4  Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.  

7 - 10 
 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt: - 
 
5  Strategaeth Datblygu'r Gweithlu 2021-24.  

11 - 62 
 

6  Strategaeth Lles Gweithwyr 2021-24.  
63 - 120 

 
7  Trefniadau cau dros y Nadolig 2021.  

121 - 124 
 

8  Adroddiad Atodol – Rheoli Risg Adeiladu a Gwasanaethu ar Lefel Rhybudd Sero.  
125 - 258 

 
9  Bid Cyllido Gwaith Ffrwd Montclaire Avenue.  

259 - 286 
 

 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr 
 S. Cook, N. George, C.J. Gordon, P.A. Marsden, L. Phipps, J. Pritchard, Mrs E. Stenner, A. Whitcombe a 
R. Whiting,  
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  
01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


  

 

CABINET 
 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD O BELL DRWY MICROSOFT 
TEAMS 

DDYDD MERCHER, 15 MEDI 2021 AM 10.30 A.M. 
 

PRESENNOL: 
 

Cynghorydd P. Marsden (Arweinydd) - Cadeirydd 
 

Cynghorwyr: 
 

S. Cook (Gofal Cymdeithasol), N. George (Gwastraff, Diogelu'r Cyhoedd a Strydoedd), C. 
Gordon (Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), L. Phipps (Tai), J. Pritchard (Isadeiledd ac Eiddo), E. 
Stenner (Perfformiad, Economi a Menter), A. Whitcombe (Cynaliadwyedd, Cynllunio a Fflyd) ac 
R. Whiting (Dysgu a Hamdden). 
 

Ynghyd â: 
 
 R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol) ac M.S. 

Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Yr Economi a'r Amgylchedd). 
  

Hefyd yn Bresennol: 
 

L. Lane (Dirprwy Swyddog Monitro a Phennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd), R. Kyte 
(Pennaeth Adfywio a Chynllunio), J. Roberts-Waite (Rheolwr Cydgysylltu Strategol), M. 
Jennings (Prif Swyddog Strategaeth Dai), L. Donovan (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Pobl), C. 
Forbes-Thompson (Rheolwr Craffu), M. Harris (Swyddog Cymorth Gwasanaethau 
Pwyllgorau/Chauffeur) ac E. Sullivan (Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau'r Pwyllgor).  
 
 
COFNODI A THREFNIADAU PLEIDLEISIO 

 
Atgoffodd yr Arweinydd y rhai a oedd yn bresennol fod y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffilmio ond na 
fyddai'n cael ei ffrydio'n fyw, ond byddai recordiad ar gael yn dilyn y cyfarfod drwy wefan y 
Cyngor – Cliciwch yma i'w weld.  Dywedodd y byddai penderfyniadau'n cael eu gwneud drwy 
Microsoft Forms.   

 
 

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 
 

Cafwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan C. Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr), D. Street 
(Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Thai). R. Tranter (Swyddog 
Monitro) ac S. Harris (Pennaeth Cyllid a Swyddog Adran 151). 
 

 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 
 

Bu i L. Lane (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Dirprwy Swyddog Monitro) ddatgan 
buddiant personol a oedd yn rhagfarnu mewn perthynas ag Eitem Rhif 6 ar yr Agenda – 
Prosbectws a Chynllun Datblygu Rhaglenni (PDP) Llywodraeth Cymru,  gan fod aelod o'r teulu 
yn gweithio i'r cwmni adeiladu y cyfeirir ato yn yr adroddiad. Byddai'n gadael y cyfarfod pan 
oedd yr eitem yn cael ei hystyried. 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Meetings,-agendas,-minutes-and-reports/Council-meetings?lang=cy-gb


  

 
 
 

3. CABINET – 1  MEDI 2021 
 

PENDERFYNWYD bod cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 1 Medi 2021 yn cael eu 
cymeradwyo fel cofnod cywir.   

 
 

4. BLAENRAGLEN WAITH Y CABINET – I’W NODI 
 

 Darparwyd Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet i'r Cabinet, a oedd yn manylu ar yr adroddiadau a 
drefnwyd ar gyfer 27 Hydref 2021.  Atgoffwyd yr Aelodau bod Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet yn 
ddogfen waith ac felly y gallai newid. 
 
Nodwyd y byddai Eitem Rhif 10 ar yr Agenda bellach yn cael ei gohirio i gyfarfod o'r Cabinet 
yn y dyfodol. Caiff y dyddiad ei gadarnhau a'r flaenraglen waith ei diweddaru yn unol â hynny. 
 

 
Ar ôl ystyried a thrafod, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid nodi'r Flaenraglen Waith. Cytunwyd yn 
unfrydol ar hyn trwy ddangos dwylo. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD nodi Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet. 
 

 

5. BWRDD ADFYWIO – CYNIGION PROSIECT 
 
 Yna rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn am sêl bendith y Cabinet i ddyrannu 

hyd at £130,000 o Gronfa Datblygu'r Bwrdd Prosiect Adfywio tuag at ddau gynnig prosiect a 
gymeradwywyd ac a werthuswyd yn ddiweddar sef y Rhisga – Ailddatblygu safle strategol 
Canol y Dref (Dichonoldeb ac Uwchgynllunio) a Chynllun Gweithredu Gorfodi Eiddo Gwag 
Bargoed a gofynnodd hefyd i'r Cabinet nodi bod £1.0M yn ychwanegol o gyllid datblygu wedi'i 
ddyrannu i'r Bwrdd Prosiect Adfywio. 

 
 Amlinellwyd y prosiectau ar gyfer Rhisga a Bargoed, a chytunodd y Cabinet y byddai'r 

cynigion yn sicrhau canlyniadau cadarnhaol i'r ddwy ardal, a fyddai'n cael eu croesawu gan 
drigolion ac yn darparu cyfleoedd i fusnesau. 

 
Mewn perthynas â'r prosiect ym Margoed, nodwyd mai canol y dref hon oedd yr un â'r gyfradd 
uchaf o eiddo gwag yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol a byddai'r cynnig gerbron y Cabinet yn darparu'r 
adnoddau i ganiatáu i'r Awdurdod Lleol weithio gyda landlordiaid i wneud defnydd buddiol 
ohonynt unwaith eto.  Byddai hefyd yn caniatáu i hysbysiadau gael eu cyflwyno i landlordiaid 
amharod ac i gymryd camau gorfodi pe bai angen. Byddai hefyd yn galluogi'r Cyngor i gamu i 
mewn a gwneud unrhyw waith angenrheidiol.  Cadarnhaodd y Swyddog fod £250,000 o arian 
cyfatebol Llywodraeth Cymru hefyd wedi'i sicrhau i gefnogi'r prosiect hwn. 
 
Gofynnwyd am eglurhad ynghylch a oedd yr arian hwn yn benodol ar gyfer prosiect Bargoed 
neu a ellid ei ddefnyddio mewn mannau eraill.  Cadarnhawyd ei fod wedi'i neilltuo'n benodol 
ar gyfer Bargoed drwy Dasglu Blaenau'r Cymoedd. 
 
Croesawodd y Cabinet y cynigion ac roeddent yn falch o weld y mesurau a gynigiwyd mewn 
perthynas â landlordiaid absennol a'r cyfleoedd i sicrhau bod defnydd buddiol yn cael ei 
wneud unwaith eto o eiddo gwag. 

   
Ar ôl ystyried a thrafod, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid cymeradwyo'r argymhellion yn yr 
adroddiad.  Cytunwyd yn unfrydol ar hyn drwy bleidlais electronig. 

 
 

Page 2



  

PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a nodir yn adroddiad y Swyddog i: - 
 
i) Ddyrannu £130,000 o Gronfa Datblygu'r Bwrdd Prosiect Adfywio i ddatblygu 

dau gynnig prosiect (i) Rhisga – Ailddatblygu safle strategol Canol y Dref (ii) 
Cynllun Gweithredu Gorfodi Eiddo Gwag Bargoed. 

ii) Bod £1.0M pellach wedi'i ddyrannu i'r Bwrdd Prosiect Adfywio i gyflwyno 
gweithgareddau datblygu prosiect strategol. 

 
 

 

6. PROSBECTWS A CHYNLLUN DATBLYGU RHAGLENNI (PSP) LLYWODRAETH 
CYMRU. 

 
 Gadawodd L. Lane (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Dirprwy Swyddog Monitro) y 

cyfarfod ar ôl datgan buddiant personol oedd yn rhagfarnu. 

 
 Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn am farn a sêl bendith y Cabinet ar gyfer 

Cynllun Datblygu Rhaglenni a'r Prosbectws Asesu'r Farchnad Dai Leol (LHMA) cyn ei 
gyflwyno i Lywodraeth Cymru.  Byddai'r adroddiad hefyd yn rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i'r 
Cabinet am y newidiadau a wnaed i'r ffordd y caiff Grant Tai Cymdeithasol Llywodraeth 
Cymru ei gydlynu a'i ddyrannu ymhlith cymdeithasau tai sy’n bartner a Chartrefi Caerffili. 

 
 Dywedwyd wrth y Cabinet fod yr adroddiad wedi cael ei ystyried gan y Pwyllgor Craffu Tai ac 

Adfywio yn ei gyfarfod ar 7 Medi 2022.  Crynhowyd barn y Pwyllgor Craffu, ac roedd y Cabinet 
yn falch o nodi, wrth i brosiectau unigol gael eu cyflwyno, y byddent yn mynd trwy broses lawn 
y pwyllgor ac yn destun adolygiad craffu.   

 
 Cyfeiriwyd y Cabinet at adran 5.24 o'r adroddiad a oedd yn amlinellu'r 4 cynllun oedd wedi’u 

cynnwys o fewn y Cynllun Datblygu Rhaglenni ac y byddai pob un yn destun adroddiad ar 
wahân i'r Cabinet fel y bo'n briodol.  Yna gofynnwyd am eglurhad o ran cyllid a chadarnhaodd 
y Swyddog y byddai rhan ohono’n CRT a rhan yn arian cyfatebol. 

 
 Croesawodd y Cabinet y prosiectau uchelgeisiol a phwysig hyn i ddod â chartrefi fforddiadwy 

y mae mawr eu hangen i'r ardal a theimlid ei bod yn hanfodol ystyried cymaint â phosibl o'r 
cyfleoedd hyn.  

  
Ar ôl ystyried a thrafod, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid cymeradwyo'r argymhelliad yn yr 
adroddiad. Cytunwyd yn unfrydol ar hyn drwy bleidlais electronig a chadarnhad llafar. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a nodir yn adroddiad y Swyddog, y dylid 
cymeradwyo cynnwys yr adroddiad, y Cynllun Datblygu Rhaglenni a'r Prosbectws LHMA 
drafft i'w gyflwyno i Lywodraeth Cymru. 

 
 

 

7. DARPARU CYNLLUN BUDDION A CHYDNABYDDIAETH STAFF 
 

Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn am sêl bendith y Cabinet i lwyfan buddion 
a chydnabyddiaeth newydd ar gyfer staff a fydd yn cefnogi'r Strategaeth Les arfaethedig.  
Gofynnwyd hefyd i'r Cabinet gytuno ar y cynnig i gydnabod gwasanaeth hir ymhellach. 
 
Nododd y Cabinet fod llwyfan MyAdvantages gan Endenred yn cynnig gwasanaethau buddion 
ar-lein am ddim, a gyrchir drwy fframwaith y Gwasanaethau Caffael Cenedlaethol, sy'n 
sicrhau bod ystod eang o fuddion, cynilion, gostyngiadau a chyngor ar gael i weithwyr 
gwasanaeth cyhoeddus.  Mae'r llwyfan hefyd yn galluogi cwmnïau ledled Caerffili i hyrwyddo 
eu busnesau a’u cynigion yn uniongyrchol i weithwyr a thrwy wneud hynny, rhoi cyfle i'n staff 
gael gostyngiadau gan ddal i siopa'n lleol. 
 

Page 3



  

Croesawodd y Cabinet y cynigion fel ffordd o wobrwyo staff a bod o fudd i fusnesau lleol a 
gofynnodd am sicrwydd y byddai'r cynllun yn cael ei hyrwyddo'n briodol er mwyn sicrhau bod 
cynifer â phosibl yn manteisio arno.  Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau, unwaith y byddai’r cynllun ar 
gael, y byddai Swyddogion Adnoddau Dynol yn gweithio'n agos gyda'r Tîm Adfywio i 
hyrwyddo a helpu i gefnogi'r llwyfan.  Nodwyd y byddai’n cael ei weithredu ymhen tua 8 
wythnos, ac felly roedd Swyddogion yn awyddus i sicrhau bod y cynllun ar gael cyn gynted â 
phosibl, fel y gallai staff elwa o'i gynigion yn y cyfnod cyn y Nadolig. 
 
Ar ôl ystyried a thrafod, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd, yn amodol ar newid geiriad argymhelliad 3.1 (2) 
fel a ganlyn 'bod y cynnig yn cydnabod deugain mlynedd o wasanaeth parhaus i Lywodraeth 
Leol ar gyfer staff sy'n dal i fod yng nghyflogaeth yr Awdurdod Lleol’, y dylid cymeradwyo'r 
argymhellion yn yr adroddiad. Cytunwyd yn unfrydol ar hyn drwy bleidlais electronig a 
chadarnhad llafar. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a nodir yn adroddiad y Swyddog i: -  
 

1. Gytuno i weithredu llwyfan MyAdvantages gan Edenred ar gyfer Caerffili. 
 

2. Cytuno â’r cynnig i gydnabod gwasanaeth parhaus i lywodraeth leol am ddeugain 
mlynedd ar gyfer staff sy'n dal i fod yng nghyflogaeth yr Awdurdod Lleol. 

 
 

8.  RHYDDID Y FWRDEISTREF SIROL - ENILLWYR MEDALAU OLYMPAIDD 
 

Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn i'r Cabinet wneud argymhelliad i'r Cyngor 
eu bod yn derbyn athletwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili a lwyddodd i ennill medalau yng Ngemau 
Olympaidd Tokyo 2020, sef Lauren Price, Medal Aur a Lauren Williams, Medal Arian fel 
Rhyddfreinwyr Anrhydeddus y Fwrdeistref Sirol. 
 
Croesawodd y Cabinet y cyfle i wneud yr argymhelliad hwn i'r Cyngor. Roedd yn gwbl gefnogol 
i roi’r anrhydedd hwn a’i fod yn ffordd gywir a phriodol o gydnabod gwaith caled, ymrwymiad ac 
ymroddiad Lauren Price a Lauren Williams. 
 
Cofnododd yr Arweinydd ei diolch i'r Cynghorydd Colin Mann, Arweinydd Grŵp Plaid Cymru a'r 
Cynghorydd Kevin Etheridge, Arweinydd y Grŵp Annibynnol am eu cefnogaeth drawsbleidiol i'r 
fraint hon. 
 
Ar ôl ystyried a thrafod, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid cymeradwyo'r argymhelliad yn yr 
adroddiad.  Cytunwyd yn unfrydol ar hyn drwy bleidlais electronig. 
 

ARGYMHELLIR i'r Cyngor fod y Cyngor, yn unol ag Adran 249 (fel y'i diwygiwyd) o 
Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, yn rhoi Rhyddid Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili i'r athletwyr 
canlynol:  

 
Lauren Price Medal Aur - Pwysau Canol Bocsio Merched (75kg)  

 
Lauren Williams Medal Arian - Taekwondo Merched (-67kg) 

 
 
9. PRAWF BUDD Y CYHOEDD - ESEMPTIAD RHAG DATGELU DOGFENNAU ATODLEN 

12A DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972 
 

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd, gan y byddai'r Eitem Eithriedig yn cael ei gohirio i gyfarfod o'r 
Cabinet yn y dyfodol, nad oedd angen y prawf budd y cyhoedd mwyach. 

 
10. EITEM EITHRIEDIG - ADRODDIAD GORWARIO, RHYMNI  
 

Page 4



  

Cadarnhaodd yr Arweinydd y byddai'r mater hwn yn cael ei ohirio i gyfarfod o'r Cabinet 
yn y dyfodol. Caiff y dyddiad ei gadarnhau a bydd y flaenraglen waith yn cael ei 
diweddaru yn unol â hynny. 

 
  
 

 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 11.08am 

 

Fe’i cymeradwywyd ac fe’i llofnodwyd fel cofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a 
wnaed yn y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 29 Medi 2021. 
 

____________________ 
CADEIRYDD 

Page 5



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 6



Cabinet Forward Work Programme – from 29th September 2021 

29/09/2021 10:30 Montclaire Avenue - Culvert 
Report 

To seek Cabinet approval to fund the culvert repair. Street, Dave; Cllr. Phipps, Lisa; 

29/09/2021 10:30 Supplementary report - 
Managing Service Risk at 
Alert Level Zero 

To update Cabinet with a further report detailing proposals 
for the re-opening of key buildings. 

Edmunds, Richard 
(Ed); 

Cllr. Gordon, Colin J; 

29/09/2021 10:30 Christmas closedown To consider Christmas closedown arrangements. Donovan, Lynne; 
Edmunds, Richard 
(Ed); 

Cllr. Gordon, Colin J; 

29/09/2021 10:30 Well-Being Strategy 2021 - 
24 

To seek Cabinet approval of the Wellbeing Strategy 2021 - 
24. 

Donovan, Lynne; Cllr. Gordon, Colin J; 

29/09/2021 10:30 Workforce Development 
Strategy 

To seek Cabinet approval of the Workforce Development 
Strategy 2021 - 24. 

Donovan, Lynne; Cllr. Gordon, Colin J; 

13/10/2021 10:30 Car parking at Twyn Car Park 
and Blackwood High Street 
Car Park 

To consider proposals to manage the interface between 
business/visitor parking at Twyn Car Park, Caerphilly and 
Blackwood High Street. 
 

Williams, Mark S; Cllr. Pritchard, James; 

13/10/2021 10:30 21st Century Schools – Band 
B Programme Update 

To provide Cabinet with an update on the progress of the 
21st Century Schools Band B programme.- Phase 1 & 2. 

West, Andrea; 
Richards, Sue; 

Cllr. Whiting, Ross; 

13/10/2021 10:30 Write-off of Debts Over 
£20,000 – Business Rates 
Arrears for Limited 
Companies 

To seek Cabinet approval for the write-off of business rate 
debts for two limited companies where, in each case, the 
aggregated values per business are greater than £20,000. 

Carpenter, John; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned; 

13/10/2021 10:30 New Respite Facilities  To seek Cabinet approval to build two state of the art 
respite facilities, one for adults and one for children in 
order to replace existing facilities. 

Street, Dave; 
Williams, Jo; 

Cllr. Cook, Shayne; 

P
age 7 E

item
 A

r Y
r A

genda 4



Cabinet Forward Work Programme – from 29th September 2021 

13/10/2021 10:30 Outcome of Public 
Consultation on a Proposed 
Community Hall in Ty Sign, 
Risca 
 

To report on the outcome of a public consultation and to 
seek the views of Cabinet on the request to lease land at 
Holly Road, Ty Sign, Risca for the purposes of building a 
new community hall. 
 
 

Hartshorn, 
Robert; 

Cllr. Stenner, Eluned; 

27/10/2021 10:30 Streetlighting Update To provide Cabinet with an interim update on the 
monitoring of the street lighting carbon reduction initiative 
outcomes. 

Lloyd, Marcus; Cllr. Pritchard, James; 

27/10/2021 10:30 Annual Performance Report 
and Corporate Plan 2018-
2023 

For Cabinet to consider the Council's Annual Performance 
Report which provides information and analysis of 
performance against the six well-being objectives for the 
period 01/04/20 to 31/03/21. 

Roberts, Ros; 
Richards, Sue; 

Cllr. Stenner, Eluned; 

27/10/2021 10:30 Corporate Performance 
Assessments (CPA's) 

To provide Cabinet with information and detailed analysis 
of performance for the period 01/04/20 to 31/03/21 and 
forms part of the Council's self-assessment activity. 

Richards, Sue; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned; 

27/10/2021 10:30 Local Housing Strategy To seek Cabinet approval for the acquisition of the former 
Oakdale School site from the General Fund to the HRA and 
the development of the site by Willmott Dixon on behalf of 
Caerphilly Homes. 

Roberts-Waite, 
Jane; 

Cllr. Phipps, Lisa; 

P
age 8



Cabinet Forward Work Programme – from 29th September 2021 

10/11/2021 10:30 Dog Control PSPO Proposals To consider the outcome of a public consultation, together 
with any recommendations from Scrutiny Committee, on 
proposals to amend and extend the Public Spaces 
Protection Order (PSPO) relating to dog control to include 
the exclusion of dogs from marked sports pitches/areas 

Hartshorn, 
Robert; 

Cllr. George, Nigel; 

10/11/2021 10:30 ASB/street drinking PSPO  To consider the outcome of a public consultation together, 
with any recommendations from Scrutiny Committee, on 
proposals to vary and extend the Public Spaces Protection 
Orders relating to anti-social behaviour and drinking 
alcohol in a public place. 

Hartshorn, 
Robert; 

Cllr. George, Nigel; 

10/11/2021 10:30 Homeless Project Plan To provide Cabinet with the Rapid Rehousing 
and transitional plan which needs to be submitted to 
WG by June 2022. 
  

Denman, Kerry; 
Street, Dave; 

Cllr. Phipps, Lisa; 

10/11/2021 10:30 Commercial & Investment 
Strategy 

For Cabinet to note the progress made against the actions 
and success measures within the strategy during the first 
12 months 
To seek an extension of an additional 12 months for the 
refresh of the Commercial & Investment Strategy to 
November 2022. 
  

Camp, Victoria; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned; 

P
age 9



Cabinet Forward Work Programme – from 29th September 2021 

24/11/2021 10:30 Team Caerphilly 
Transformation Programme 
– 6 monthly update 

To provide Cabinet with an update on progress against the 
Team Caerphilly Transformation Strategy. 
  

Richards, Sue; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned; 

24/11/2021 10:30 The principles of a regional 
approach to Employability 
Programme  

To consider a regional approach to the provision of 
employment support programmes within the Cardiff 
Capital Region. 
 
  

Kyte, Rhian; Cllr. Marsden, Philippa; 

24/11/2021 10:30 Grass Cutting Regime To seek the views of Cabinet in relation to grass cutting 
regimes across the county borough and proposals to 
enhance and promote bio-diversity following consultation 
with local members and presentation to Scrutiny 
Committee. 
  

Headington, 
Mike; 

Cllr. George, Nigel; 

24/11/2021 10:30 Business Rate Relief - WG 
Funding 

To seek Cabinet approval of a proposal for the distribution 
of targeted rated relief. 

Carpenter, John; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned; 

 

P
age 10



 
 

CABINET – 29TH SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

    
SUBJECT:    WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2021 - 24 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES  
 
 
1.1 The attached report is due to be considered by the Policy and Resources Scrutiny 

Committee on the 28th September 2021.  Due to publication deadlines the views of 
the Scrutiny Committee and its recommendations will be reported verbally to Cabinet. 

 
 

Author:  Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services    
 
Appendices:  
 
Appendix  Report to Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 28th September 2021 
 
 
 
  

Page 11

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 12



APPENDIX 1 

 
 
 

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –  
28TH SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT:      WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 2021 - 24 
 
REPORT BY:  HEAD OF PEOPLE SERVICES  
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to consult with Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee 

in relation to the Workforce Development Strategy 2021 – 24, attached at Appendix 
1.   

 
 

2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The Council’s Team Caerphilly – Better Together Transformation Strategy was 

adopted by Cabinet on the 12th June 2019.  As part of this Strategy, ten corporate 
reviews are being undertaken to transform how the Council Works and Workforce 
Development is one of them. 

 
2.2 One of the actions of this review is to produce a Workforce Development Strategy 

(attached at Appendix 1), to develop our employees to maximise their capabilities, 
effectiveness and resilience to support the re-purposing and re-shaping of our 
services in response to the many challenges we face as a Council moving forward. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee are asked to note the contents of the 

report and make comments prior to recommending the Workforce Development 
Strategy 2021 – 24 attached at Appendix 1 to Cabinet for approval.   

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 The recommendation is made to ensure that we have a Workforce Development 

Strategy in place to support a workforce in the future that is fit for purpose and 
equipped with the necessary skills to innovate and move the Council forward the 
Caerphilly Way. 

 

Page 13



 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 As stated, the Council’s Team Caerphilly – Better Together Transformation Strategy 

was adopted by Cabinet on the 12th June 2019 and ten corporate reviews are being 
undertaken to transform how the Council works and Workforce Development is one 
of them.  

 
5.2 The Workforce Development Strategy 2021 – 24 (attached at Appendix 1) adopts the 

principles of place shaping, collaboration, digitalisation, commercialisation and 
innovation.  Together with the actions and objectives prioritised in our Strategic 
Equality Plan 2020-2024, Customer & Digital Strategy 2019-2023, Commercialisation 
and Innovation Strategy and Service Review Methodology, the effective 
implementation of this Workforce Development Strategy will be fundamental to 
meeting the Council’s ambitious transformation agenda.   

 
5.3 The changing landscape in public health, politics, economics, technology, 

demography, environmental impact mitigation and social attitudes are influencing 
how we resource the Council. With concerns over skills shortages, an aging 
workforce and increasing competition to attract talent to Caerphilly, a strategically 
planned approach to workforce development is necessary to align strategy, 
processes and people. 

 
5.4 The effective implementation of this Strategy will embed Workforce Planning as an 

essential business process that is undertaken on a regular basis.  Workforce 
Planning will include skills, audits, structure reviews and identification of priority 
actions to address workforce risks and development needs. 

 
5.5 The Council’s HR polices confirm that employees are our most valuable asset and 

recognise that attracting and retaining a well-trained, well-motivated and flexible 
workforce, with a wide range of skills and experience is essential to the provision of 
quality services.  Our people are at the very heart of everything we do.  Our 
continuing success as a Council will be dependent on us having a workforce that will 
champion our values and is fit for the future and this Workforce Development 
Strategy reinforces this.  

 
5.6 Under this strategy, we will seek to address the challenges identified in our 

stakeholder engagement through the further development of our recruitment 
strategies and procedures and improve our ability to attract the best and brightest 
talent to the authority.  We will explore and develop new initiatives to enhance work 
opportunities for our residents, utilising government funded employment programmes 
to widen the provision of apprenticeships, work placements and work experience 
opportunities. 

 

5.7 A Workforce Planning Framework will be implemented to help translate this strategy 
into practice and equip our managers with a reference tool to proactively organise 
and develop their workforce.  This will include the development of agile working 
solutions to meet ever changing service needs and address staff shortages, 
surpluses, talent gaps and skill mismatches.   The effective implementation of this 
strategy will ensure that current and future workforce needs are known, modelled and 
are capable of meeting changing service delivery requirements and needs. 

 

Page 14



5.8 Under this Strategy, we will work collaboratively to remove any artificial barriers to 
workforce development and work together strategically to provide comprehensive 
learning and development programmes, training initiatives and access to a wide 
range of digital resources that will be accessible to the wider workforce.    

 
5.9 Currently, there is no corporate coordinated approach to Learning and Development 

across the Council, with each service responsible for their own learning provision.  
This Strategy supports a workforce that is fit for the future and equipped with the 
necessary skills to innovate and deliver the Council’s Transformation Programme.  
To ensure that we provide comprehensive learning and development programmes, 
training initiatives and access to a wide range of digital resources, so that our 
employees will have every opportunity to enhance their skills and fulfil their potential, 
the central coordination of workforce development is key in the delivery of this 
strategy. 

 
5.10 This is an ambitious Workforce Development Strategy and comprehensive in content 

with key priorities highlighted and appropriate resources will be required for the future 
delivery of coordinated workforce development function.  Members will recall that the 
report to Council dated 13th July 2021 entitled ‘Provisional Revenue Budget Outturn 
for 2020/21, included a proposal to set aside funding of £168k to appoint staff on a 
fixed-term basis to undertake the initial planning and scoping required, which 
Members agreed.  The recruitment for these posts has commenced and an updated 
report in relation to centralised Learning and Development will be presented to Policy 
and Resources Scrutiny for information.  

 
5.11 Workforce development is being undertaken to different degrees across the Council. 

This ambitious Strategy will bring a coordinated approach to workforce development 
across the Council’s services. 

 

5.12 Conclusion   

 
 The Council’s clear commitment to workforce development is now captured in the 

Workforce Development Strategy 2021 – 24, to ensure that we have a well-trained, 
well-motivated and flexible workforce, that are capable of dealing with the many 
future challenges we will face across the Council. 

 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 There are no assumptions made within this report.    
 
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT  
 
7.1 The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; advance 
equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between 
different groups.  It is recognised that the key principles of this Workforce 
Development Strategy will have significant benefits for our employees, i.e. 
permanent, casual and temporary. 

 
7.2 This Strategy outlines our aspirations of being recognised as an employer of choice 

in terms of our approach to diversity, equalities, personal well-being, learning, being 

Page 15



forward thinking and resilient to change and leadership development. Strengthening 
Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart of this strategy. 

 
7.3 The Socio-economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put 

tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key decision making.  The changing 
landscape in public health, politics, economics, technology, demography, 
environmental impact mitigation and social attitudes are influencing how we resource 
the Council.  With concerns over skills shortages, an aging workforce and increasing 
competition to attract talent to the Council, a strategically planned approach to 
workforce development is necessary to align strategy, processes and people.  This 
includes a non-guaranteed hours’ review to restrict/limit the use of casual zero hours 
contracts moving forward and thus provide more sustainable employment 
opportunities.  

 
7.4 Under this Strategy, we will be exploring and developing new initiatives to enhance 

work opportunities for our residents, utilising government funded employment 
programmes to widen our provision of apprenticeships, work placements and work 
experience opportunities. The Council furthermore supports payment of the 
Foundation Living Wage which supports young people starting in modern 
apprenticeship roles.   

 
7.5 Agile Working Opportunities that promote greater choice for where work may be 

carried out will assist in reducing the Council’s and the employee’s carbon footprint 
and will in many instances support employee wellbeing and offer a greater choice of 
employment opportunities that may have been unreachable for some based on 
where they live and/or their individual circumstance.  

 
7.6 This Strategy supports learning and development opportunities for all staff and 

enables employment through the creation of more substantial and sustainable 
employment linked to a non-guaranteed hours review.  Combined with the provision 
of the Foundation Living Wage and strengthening of our employment programmes to 
widen our provision of apprenticeships, work placements and work experience 
opportunities, the impact of this Strategy is largely positive on the Council’s workforce 
as a whole, i.e. current and future.   

 
7.7  The Integrated Impact Assessment is attached at Appendix 2. 
 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no immediate financial implications to this report.  Any budgetary 

requirements to support workforce development will be subject to appropriate 
authorisation. 

 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The centralised Learning and Development team referred to in point 5.10 will be part 

of the HR structure and recruitment to the posts will be in accordance with Council 
policies and procedures. 

 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 The majority of consultation responses have been incorporated in the Strategy.  

Page 16



Some consultation responses were not included because they were more 
appropriate for consideration and inclusion in other areas of work. 

 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 Local Government Act 1972 
 
 
Author:        Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services  
 
Consultees: Corporate Management Team 
 Cllr Colin Gordon, Cabinet Member for Corporate Services 
 Leadership Team 
 HR Strategy Group 
 HR Management Team 
 Stephen Pugh, Head of Communications 
 Emma Townsend, Health and Safety Manager 
 Neil Cooksley, Principal HR Officer (Workforce Development) 
 Trade Unions – GMB, Unison, Unite 
  
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 Workforce Development Strategy 2021 – 24  

(An accessible version is available on request) 
Appendix 2 Integrated Impact Assessment 
 
 
 

Page 17



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 18



GWASANAETHAU POBL
PEOPLE SERVICES

Workforce 
Development 
Strategy 
21-24

Appendix 1

Page 19



1

Contents

Foreword	 2

Introduction	 4

The Strategic Context	 5

Our Workforce	 6

Employee Headcount 	 6

BAME	 7

Gender	 7

Gender by salary range	 8

Gender by type of contract	 9

	Disability	 9

Age profile	 10

Age by salary range  	 10

Our Challenges	 11

What localised challenges do we face?	 11

What are the external drivers for public sector change?	 11

Our Approach	 12

Our Priority Actions	 14

1. Focusing on what matters	 14

2. Managing talent and creating opportunity	 15

3. Valuing our employees	 16

4. Fulfilling our potential	 18

Our Responsibilities	 19

Delivery, Monitoring and Governance	 21

Appendix 1: Organisational Planning Framework	 22

Appendix 2: Workforce Development Strategic Action Plan	 23

Page 20



2

Workforce Development Strategy

I’m delighted to present our ambitious and 
forward-thinking Workforce Development 
Strategy. Our hard working and versatile workforce 
are the very backbone of our organisation and 
certainly our most valuable resource. It is in 
no doubt that the people that make up Team 
Caerphilly are the reason we are able to deliver 
high quality services to our communities and lead 
the way in many sectors. As we continue on our 
journey it is essential that we have a workforce 
with the required skills that align with the ever 
changing needs of our communities. The skills 
we have today, will be different to those we will 
need tomorrow. We therefore need to ensure 
we understand this gap and develop our staff 
appropriately.  The actions detailed within this 
strategy defines our plans accordingly.

We are passionate about providing great services 
and making life better for everyone in the 
Caerphilly county borough and our new operating 
model, TeamCaerphilly - Better Together,i details 
how we will achieve this.  In response to the many 
and varied challenges we face, we must re-purpose 
and re-shape our services, and this will mean 
developing and improving the ways in which we 
support our staff to maximise their capabilities, 
effectiveness and resilience. 

We must develop a healthy organisation, one which 
provides an environment that nurtures our people, 
provides opportunity for personal and professional 
development and recognises excellence. We have 
fantastic work life balance policies, which we 
will continue to develop to cater for the varying 

and changing needs of our people. We must be 
bold, brave and committed to modernising our 
practices, moving away from traditional models of 
delivery which restrict agility and flexibility.

We must show that we truly value our people by 
putting equality, inclusion and well-being at the 
very heart of everything we do. We will champion 
diversity and challenge conscious and unconscious 
bias in our decision making. We will strive to 
ensure all tiers are fairly represented across the 
organisation.

We must evolve at scale and at pace, especially 
as we recover from the Covid-19 health crisis. It 
would be remiss of me not to acknowledge and 
applaud our workforce for their contributions 
during this unprecedented time. We have 
responded amazingly, coming together as one 
team to transform operations practically overnight, 
ensuring our citizens continue to receive the 
essential services they need on a day-to-day basis. 
This has epitomised the spirit of Team Caerphilly.

Our workforce has been innovative, collaborative, 
resilient and resourceful in the face of extreme 
pressure. We have embraced the opportunities 
large scale remote and agile working provided us. 
The challenge now is to take what we’ve learned, 
harness the skills and teamwork that have been 
developed and create an environment that will 
deliver long term, sustainable growth. 

Our talented and highly committed workforce will 
be fundamental to our success and I am excited to 
see how we can shape the future of CCBC together.

Christina Harrhy
Chief Executive
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Foreword

i TeamCaerphilly - Better Together Strategy

Page 21



3

This strategy demonstrates how, as a council, we 
can continue to deliver high quality services fit for 
the future, by focusing on developing the people 
behind the services. 

We are a large council with more than 700 
services. To ensure we are equipped to meet the 
unprecedented demands placed on us, we must 
invest in our workforce and continue to develop 
skills and build on the vast amount of experience 
and knowledge we already have in our council. 

The Coronavirus Pandemic has brought into sharp 
focus the need to ensure a healthy workforce, 
this is vital on so many levels and we feel that 
we are well placed to take staff on the journey to 
delivering the Team Caerphilly Transformation 
Strategy which has positive outcomes for our 
communities and our workforce. Our people have 
performed outstandingly in an extremely difficult 
and uncertain time. We have a talented, versatile 
and dedicated Team Caerphilly family. 

This strategy identifies our key priorities as we look 
to build on our successes. We will focus on what 
matters, provide greater opportunities and value 
and nurture our workforce. 

Our workforce is, and continues to be, our greatest 
asset and I firmly believe that this strategy will see 
us continue to strive to provide the best support 
for both staff and the wider community, it will 
become the lifeblood of how we operate, and 
allow us to continue to evolve and innovate as an 
organisation.

Cllr. Philippa Marsden
Leader
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Foreword

Page 22



Innovative

Resilient

Open and 
TransparentConnected

United and

ii Driving the New Learning Organisation - Towards Maturity in Partnership with the CIPD

4

Workforce Development Strategy

Our people are our most valuable asset and are at 
the very heart of everything we do. Developing 
an engaged, skilled and effective workforce that 
champions our values and is capable of meeting 

the future needs of our residents, is essential to 
our ability to deliver our ambitious transformation 
objectives.

Introduction

❝The ability for organisations 
to successfully evolve is 
ultimately determined by the 
capability of their staff.❞
Chief Executive of the CIPDii

This strategy outlines our commitment to 
developing our workforce and details how we will 
create the right environment, enhance our support 

and better equip our people with the right skills to 
be highly effective in their jobs and achieve greater 
levels of job satisfaction.

Trusted

Page 23



5

The Corporate Plan 2018-2023 incorporates 
seven Cabinet commitments, which include the 
need to protect jobs in these  financially difficult 
times, continue to deliver innovative and high 
performing services and ensure we have an 
engaged and motivated workforce.

These commitments, together with the six 
Wellbeing objectives set out in the plan, formed 
the central tenets of the Transformation Strategy 
#Team Caerphilly – Better Together. 

SOCIAL HEART 
COMMERCIAL HEAD

RESOURCES

DIGITAL FIRST

WORKFORCE 
PLANNING

CULTURE

INNOVATION

COLLABORATION

SERVICE 
REVIEWS

COMMERCIALISATION

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Strategic Context

Transformation on this scale requires a workforce 
that can keep pace with change and acquire new 
skills. Workforce development is fundamental to 

iii Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 
iv Customer and Digital Strategy 2019-2023 
v Commercialisation and Investment Strategy 2020 
vi Service Review Methodology 2020

the success of our transformation programme and 
has given the strategy a clear purpose:

The foundations of this strategy are based on 
the principles of place shaping, collaboration, 
digitalisation and commercialisation and 
innovation; which in turn have helped shape 
our wider corporate strategies such as the 
Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024,iii the Customer 
& Digital Strategy 2019-2023,iv the Commercial 
and Innovation Strategyv and the Service Review 
Methodology.vi

❝To develop a workforce that is fit for the future.❞

#Team Caerphilly – Better Together:  Operating Model

Page 24



SCHOOLS

3178 38.3%

	 Number of employees  % of total workforce

	Education & Corporate Services3	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 4998	 60.2 
	 Economy & Environment	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 1398	 16.8
	 Social Services and Housing	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 1908	 23
	 Total	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 8304	 100

6

Workforce Development Strategy

Our Workforce

We are the largest employer within the borough, directly 
employing over 8000 staff (including schools)1, providing 
our communities with a wide and varied range of 
essential and non-essential public services. We currently 
supplement our workforce with 229 agency workers. 

Education and Corporate Services 
account for nearly two thirds of 
our workforce, with nearly 40%  
in our schools provision alone.

1  Workforce Intelligence Analysis - July 2020 
2  Where employees have multiple posts, the post holding the most contractual hours will be considered  
   the substantive role and has been used for statistical analysis. 
3  For the purposes of analysis, the Chief Executive has been grouped into Education & Corporate Services

To help inform our direction of travel and 
identify our priority actions, we must first 
assess our existing employee profile and 
understand what challenges we face as a 
council.

Employee headcount2

Page 25



SCHOOLS

2623
31.6%

555
6.7%

7

BAME		                                                         CCBC count and % of workforce   Caerphilly census data4 % of population

	 Asian or Asian British	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 17  	 0.2	 0.5
	 Black or Black British	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 25  	 0.3	 0.1
	 Mixed	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 25	 0.3	 0.6
	 Other Ethnic Groups	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 6  	 0.1	 0.4
	 White	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 7339	 88.4	 98.4
	Not Stated/Undisclosed	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 892 	 10.7	 -----

The percentage of non-white employees is very low, accounting for less 
than 1% of the total workforce. However, when this is compared with 
Census data for the Caerphilly County Borough, we can see that the 
number is broadly reflective of the demographics of the local community. 
We will continue to champion diversity and inclusivity and build upon 
existing good practice to increase numbers in under-represented groups.

Over two thirds of our workforce 
are female. Of particular note is 
Education & Corporate Services 
where the ratio of females to 
males is approximately 5:1. Only 
in Economy and Environment do 
males outnumber females, but 
the margin of difference is much 
lower at just 3.7%. 

We must continue to positively 
promote the wide range and 
variety of jobs across our services.

Gender*
	 n Female count and % of workforce    n Male count and % of workforce

	 CCBC Total Workforce	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 6095 	 73.4	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 2209 	 26.6
	 Education & Corporate 	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 4132 	 49.8	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 866 	 10.4
	Economy & Environment	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 547 	 6.6	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 857 	 10.3
	Social Services & Housing	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 1416 	 17	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 492 	 5.9

4 Caerphilly Census Data 2011 
* No employees were identifying as non-binary at the time of the analysis.

Page 26



8

Workforce Development Strategy

Gender by salary range

n Female count and % of total employees in salary range        n  Male count and % of total employees in salary range

	 <£20000	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 2000	 75.7	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 642 	 24.2
	£20000 - £29999 	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 2269 	 72.5	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 857 	 27.5
	£30000 - £39999	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 891 	 69.8	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 386 	 30.2
	£40000 - £49999	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 775 	 76.9	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 233 	 23.1
	£50000 - £59999	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 105 	 68.2	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 49 	 31.8
	£60000 - £69999	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 35 	 76.1	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 11 	 23.9
	£70000 - £79999	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 9 	 37.5	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 15 	 62.5
	£80000 - £89999	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 3 	 50	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 3 	 50
	£90000 - £99999	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 6 	 37.5	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 10 	 62.5
	 >£100000	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 2 	 40	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 3 	 60

What is of particular interest here, is that for the majority of salary ranges the proportion 
of females to males is reflective of the demographic split in the organisation. That is 
until we reach our top earners, at which point (despite the small numbers) we see a 
noticeable reverse. It is important that we fully understand the reasons for this.

Page 27



9

It is important we continue to develop our policies, 
regularly review our contractual arrangements and 
enhance our flexible working procedures to provide the 
best support for our workforce and their varying needs.

Gender by type of contract

	 n Count and % of total female employees    n Count and % of total male employees

	 Casual - Relief	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 515	 8.5	
		  nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 262	 11.9
	Fixed Term5 - Full Time 	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 421	 6.9	
	 (inc. TTO) 	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 267	 12.1
	Fixed Term - Part Time	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 643	 10.6	
	(inc. Job Share & TTO)	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 80	 3.6
	Permanent - Full Time	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 1703	 27.9	
	 (Inc. TTO)	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 1364	 61.7
	Permanent - Part Time	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 2813	 46.1	
	(Inc. Job Share & TTO)	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 236	 10.7

Disability
	 Number of employees and % of workforce

	 Yes	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 137	 1.7	
	 No	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 7168	 86.3
	Undisclosed 	 nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn 999	 12.0

As a Disability Confident Employer, we 
are recognised as going the extra mile 
to make sure disabled people get a fair 
chance in the workplace. We are fully 
committed to supporting employees 
with disabilities and long-term health 
conditions and will work to further 
enhance employment opportunities.

137

5 Employees in fixed term roles may have permanent employment status with the Council.

Page 28



10

Workforce Development Strategy

Age profile Number of Employees

	 449	 1558	 1949	 2335	 1702	 311

	 5.4%	 18.8%	 23.5%	 28.1%	 20.5%	 3.7%
% of Total Workforce

Age by salary range6

16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-65 >65

<£20000 319 12.1% 420 15.9% 453 17.2% 606 23% 634 24% 207 7.8%

£20000 - £29999 122 3.9% 635 20.3% 685 21.9% 907 29% 709 22.7% 71 2.3%

£30000 - £39999 8 0.6% 384 30.1% 324 25.4% 341 26.7% 195 15.3% 25 2%

£40000 - £49999 113 11.2% 420 41.7% 342 33.9% 126 12.5% 7 0.7%

£50000 - £59999 6 3.9% 58 37.7% 75 48.7% 15 9.7%

£60000 - £69999 4 8.7% 35 76.1% 7 15.2%

£70000 - £79999 1 4.2% 14 58.3% 8 33.3% 1 4.2%

£80000 - £89999 2 33.3% 3 50% 1 16.7%

£90000 - £99999 2 12.5% 8 50% 6 37.5%

>£100000 4 80% 1 20%

The average age of an employee is 45. Over half of the workforce are 45 or 
older and approximately a quarter are older than 55. This is likely to be a 
reflection of our ability to retain employees and this is reflected in the average 
length of service for our employees, 11.4 years. Changes to pension age and 
legislation may also be a contributing factor. Conversely the proportion of the 
workforce aged under 25 is relatively low at 5.4%. It is important we continue 
to refine our recruitment, employee development and succession planning to 
mitigate against any loss of acquired knowledge and skill.

25-34 35-4416-24 >6545-54 55-65

Broadly speaking, the patterns are as expected. Those who occupy posts within 
the higher salary ranges are predominantly aged 45 years or older; the majority 
of our under 25s occupy posts within the lower salary ranges and the middle 
range salaries have high percentages of employees aged between 35 and 55. 
This is likely to be a positive reflection of employees’ acquired knowledge, skill 
and experience within their chosen disciplines resulting in progression.

6 Count and % of Employees in salary range

Page 29



11

}} 	Navigating the recovery from Covid-19 
and establishing a ‘new normal’ presents 
an unprecedented organisational 
challenge with short, medium and 
long term implications across all of the 
Council’s services.

}} The Council has an aging workforce and 
we must address the threat of loss of 
organisational knowledge, experience 
and skills when they leave the workforce.

}} Recruitment and retention issues in key 
service areas, resulting from national 
and regional skills shortages, market 
competition, and agreed remuneration 
protocols.

Our Challenges
What localised challenges do we face?

What are the external drivers for public sector change?

Changing 
social attitudes

Budget cuts 
and ongoing 

austerity

 Emergency 
planning/Business 

continuity

Ageing 
populating

Skills 
shortages

Political 
leadership

Helping people 
with ever increasing 

complex needs

Closing the gap 
between poverty 

and prosperity

Modernisation  
and  

transformation

Digital 
advancement

Changing 
legislation

Welsh 
Government

Brexit Covid -19

Climate change

Digital 
advancement

}} Implementing smarter solutions to practices and 
technology to optimise our efficiency, quality and 
productivity.

}} Improvement and refinement of our data 
management systems and processes and to be more 
effective in our use of data intelligence in decision 
making.

}} Ensuring our learning and development programmes 
are fit-for-purpose and aligned to strategy and 
business needs whilst providing employees with 
opportunity to achieve individual goals. 

}} Delivering high quality services within the financial 
restrictions of the Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP).

Page 30



Organisation

Individual

Team

12

Workforce Development Strategy

What we do and how we do it

Our Approach

The changing landscape in public health, 
politics, economics, technology, demography, 
environmental impact mitigation and social 
attitudes are influencing how we resource the 
Council. With concerns over skills shortages, an 
aging workforce and increasing competition to 
attract talent to Caerphilly, a strategically planned 
approach to workforce development is necessary 
to align strategy, processes and people.

To be effective, workforce development needs to 
be planned and implemented at three levels.

Organisation: Workforce Development Strategy

We must ensure the workforce is skilled, fully 
supported and equipped to respond to rapid 
and evolutionary change. To achieve this aim, the 

Workforce Development Strategy will focus on 
four key themes, developed through extensive 
stakeholder engagement.*

Focusing on what matters

How we get the right people to do it

How we support our people to do it well

How we develop and grow our people

Managing talent and creating opportunity

Valuing our employees

Fulfilling our potential

* Leadership Team Consultations; Management Network Engagement; Director Summits Summary Findings;    
   Staff Survey (May 2021) and consultation with the Trade Unions.

Page 31



13

Individual: My Time and My time Extra
It is important that all employees are given an 
opportunity to reflect on their performance 
and discuss their continuous professional 
development. My Time and My Time EXTRA 
will facilitate positive conversations between 
employees and line managers and develop 
targeted personal development plans, whilst 
addressing service specific priorities and broader 
strategic workforce objectives.

To support our broader workforce development 
goals and initiatives, workforce planningvii must 
become embedded as an essential process in 
organisational planning (Appendix 1). A Workforce 
Planning Framework will be implemented to help 
translate strategy into practice and equip our 

Figure 1: Workforce Planning Framework

Team: Workforce Planning

vii  CIPD Workforce Planning Practice Guide May 2018

managers with a tool to proactively organise 
and develop their workforce, developing 
solutions to meet ever changing service needs 
and address shortages, surpluses, talent gaps 
and skill mismatches.  

STAGE 1: Understand the operating environment and determine future service needs

STAGE 2: Evaluate future workforce requirements

STAGE 3: Analyse the current workforce and identify issues, risks and skills gaps

STAGE 4: Develop solutions to mitigate the issues, risks and skills gaps

STAGE 5: Monitor and evaluate progress

Page 32



14

Workforce Development Strategy

No. Priority Actions Measure of Success

1.1 Implement a sustainable model of flexible/
agile working for the Council.

Flexible/agile working embedded and working 
effectively to meet the complex needs of our 
varying services.

1.2 Implement Workforce Planning. Workforce planning will be undertaken on a regular 
and scheduled basis and will include training 
needs analysis, structure reviews and identification 
of priority actions to address workforce risks and 
development needs.

1.3 Develop a workforce data dashboard. Managers provided with a suite of workforce data 
to support workforce planning.

1.4 Update HR and Health & Safety policies and 
procedures.

All relevant policies and procedures are reviewed 
to ensure they remain inclusive, fit-for-purpose and 
reflective of our values.

Our Priority Actions
1. Focusing on what matters

The Covid-19 pandemic has brought into 
sharp focus the importance of organisational 
transformation. It has highlighted the necessity 
to have resilient, efficient and effective services, 
where we adapt and respond positively to rapid 
and evolutionary change, truly embrace flexible/
agile working and work smarter. 

New ways of working require new ways of 
thinking. Employees and Elected Members must 
be fully engaged, embracing and shaping a culture 
of transformational change which will determine 
how the Council delivers services in the future

Our strategies and planning are clear and aligned, 
meaning we can continue to be effective, both as 
an organisation and as individuals, by providing a 
clear direction of travel and clarity of purpose. 

Workforce planning will be embedded as an 
essential business process and undertaken 
on a regular basis. Planning will include skills 
audits, structure reviews and identification of 
priority actions to address workforce risks and 
development needs.

Our employees will continue to have clear 
objectives and understand the purpose of their 
role in respect of the needs of the service and 
wider organisation.

The Council has a duty to safeguard and protect 
children, young people and vulnerable adults who 
may be at risk of harm and this is reflected in our 
robust policies and procedures. Guided by our 
Corporate Safeguarding Policy, we will continue 
to ensure that safeguarding responsibilities are 
emphasised throughout the employment lifecycle 
and all employees (and key stakeholders) who 
work with or on behalf of children, young people 
and vulnerable adults are appropriately trained 
and competent to do so

Page 33



15

In order to attract and retain the right people we 
must continue growing Caerphilly County Borough 
Council as an employer of choice, embedding our 
culture and core values in our management and 
day-to-day operations. 

Through further development of our recruitment 
strategies and procedures, we can address 
the challenges identified in our stakeholder 
engagement and improve our ability to attract the 
best and brightest talent to the Council. Analysing 
the market and benchmarking priority posts will 
aid the ongoing development of strategies to 
improve our retention in areas of high turnover.

Effective workforce planning, supported by 
tailored workforce data reports, will allow us to 
strengthen our succession planning, identify 

2. Managing talent and creating opportunity

existing talent and mitigate against any loss of 
knowledge and skill.

The My Time programme will be embedded, 
providing a new platform for our employees to 
discuss and plan their personal and professional 
development.

A culture of trust and empowerment will be 
nurtured, where innovative thoughts and new 
ideas are encouraged to facilitate change. 

We will explore and develop new initiatives 
utilising government funded employment 
programmes to widen the provision of 
apprenticeships, work placements and work 
experience; and will work to further enhance 
employment opportunities for people with 
disabilities and long-term health conditions.

No. Priority Actions Measure of Success

2.1 Update the recruitment procedure to 
enhance the customer experience.

Better use of technology to increase efficiency and 
effectiveness, shorten recruitment lifecycles and 
improve customer interactions. 

2.2 Implement development pathways and 
‘grow-our-own’ initiatives.

Improved recruitment to essential/hard-to-fill posts 
and improved retention in priority areas.

2.3 Embed the My Time/My Time Extra 
programme and train our managers to 
deliver effective conversations.

Employees receive regular My Time conversations 
and an annual My Time Extra conversation where 
personal and professional development needs are 
discussed and planned.

2.4 Continue to develop our employment 
programmes.

Enhanced provision of apprenticeships, work 
placements and work experience opportunities.

Page 34



16

Workforce Development Strategy

3. Valuing our employees

No. Priority Actions Measure of Success

3.1 Develop a new Corporate Induction and 
review our local induction programme.

Corporate Induction embedded as a scheduled 
programme and supported by a refined local 
induction.

3.2 Establish a network of equalities and 
inclusivity champions across the Council, 
who will act as representatives for all staff 
with protected characteristics; working in 
collaboration with the Equalities Team and 
the Trade Unions to drive the equalities 
agenda locally.

Equalities and inclusivity champions in place 
representing the workforce to promote and help 
steer the equalities agenda.

3.3 Continue to develop and facilitate targeted 
events, promotions and initiatives to 
celebrate diversity.

Increase the profile and visibility of workplace 
equality, diversity and inclusivity.

3.4 Develop opportunities to strengthen our 
equalities training provision.

Enhanced provision of equalities training courses 
for staff and managers.

Our services are only as good as the people we 
have delivering them.

The employment journey starts with the offer 
of employment. First impressions count so our 
early interactions will be customer focused and 
refined to ensure we maximise technology to drive 
efficiency and effectiveness. Our employees will 
be welcomed into Team Caerphilly, participating 
in our new Corporate Induction programme 
which will detail our values, commitments and 
expectations.  

We will continue to champion difference and 
diversity, work tirelessly to tackle all forms of 
discrimination, raise awareness and increase 
the profile of protected groups through events, 
promotions and initiatives. Through targeted 
equalities training, we will equip staff with the skills 
and understanding required to engage with our 
citizens and colleagues sensitively. Our Strategic 
Equality Plan (2020-2024) outlines our priority 
actions (Equality Objective 6: Inclusive, Diverse and 
Equal Workforce actions 1-6). 

Cultivating employee wellbeing is good for our 
staff and the organisation, helping to prevent 
stress and create positive working environments. 
Through our strategic approach to wellbeing, 
we’ll continue to develop an excellent work 
environment and fully support employees’ 
wellbeing across all our services. 

The collective and individual views and opinions 
of our workforce will continue to influence our 
decision making. We will strengthen existing 
mechanisms of engagement, which include 
staff surveys and consultation with our Trade 
Union partners via Corporate JCCs; and explore 
new approaches. Our Communications and 
Engagement Strategy 2019-2022 and Consultation 
and Engagement Framework 2020-2025 outline 
actions to improve employee engagement and 
create greater opportunities.

We will work to foster an environment of 
continuous improvement by recognising 
achievements.

Page 35



17

3.5 Develop a Wellbeing Strategy, outlining our 
priority actions and corporate objectives.

Agreed strategy in place that supports the health 
and physical, mental, social and emotional 
wellbeing of all staff.

3.6 Continue to develop our digital well-being 
platform.

Improved digital well-being platform providing 
access to enhanced services and resources which 
support a healthy approach to work life balance.

3.7 Implement a Corporate Volunteering Policy, 
outlining our commitment to corporate 
social responsibility.

Agreed policy in place, enabling staff to work within 
local communities supporting and developing the 
ethos of social action.

3.8 Embed the principles of our Consultation 
and Engagement Framework.

Increased opportunities/mechanisms for employee 
engagement.

3.9 Develop the Staff Recognition Awards 
initiative.

Awards initiative in place.

Page 36



18

Workforce Development Strategy

4. Fulfilling our potential

It is true that most people work in local 
government to make a difference.

It is important that we continue to develop 
our employees to be resilient when faced with 
organisational change, support them to develop 
the skills and behaviours necessary to be effective 
in their roles, and prepare them for the next step 
in their career. 

By working strategically to provide comprehensive 
learning and development programmes, 
training initiatives and access to a wide range of 
digital resources, our employees will have every 
opportunity to enhance their skills and fulfil their 
potential. 

We will continue to develop a strong learning 
culture, offering employees time and opportunity 
to engage in meaningful learning and training, 
empowering staff to take ownership of their 
personal development (refer to Priority Action 2.3).

We will strengthen existing partnerships and 
explore new opportunities with private training 
providers, colleges, universities and our Trade 
Union colleagues, to enhance our learning 
provision.

We will continue to promote the Welsh language 
in the workplace, develop Welsh language skills 
through effective training programmes and by 
creating greater opportunity for staff to use Welsh 
in day-to-day operations. Our Strategic Equality 
Plan (2020-2024) outlines our priority actions 
(Equality Objective 6: Inclusive, Diverse and Equal 
Workforce actions 7-9).

Our Digital First agenda and Customer & Digital 
Strategy (2019-2023) identified the need to 
embrace new technology in order to modernise the 
way that we work, streamline processes and drive 
efficiency. As we explore automation and develop 
our technologies we will ensure our workforce have 
the necessary digital skills to keep pace.

No. Priority Actions Measure of Success

4.1 Develop our management development 
programme.

Implementing an agreed Management 
development programme, incorporating key 
strategic themes and priorities associated with 
the transformation agenda (for example MeUs, 
Commercial skills, Coaching, Mentoring).

4.2 Develop our organisational learning and 
development function.

Effective management, administration, facilitation 
and evaluation of our learning and development 
programmes.

4.3 Develop our digital platform for managing 
corporate learning and development.

Improved Corporate Learning and Development 
intranet page; accessible to all our staff.

4.4 Develop our digital learning and 
development resources.

Workforce able to access a suite of resources 
covering a range of topics to support their learning 
and development.

4.5 Develop our links with private training 
providers, local colleges and universities.

Enhanced provision of accredited courses and 
apprenticeship training to upskill the existing 
workforce.

4.6 Explore in partnership with our trade union 
colleagues, how we can best utilise the 
Welsh Union Learning Fund to widen our 
training programmes.

Enhanced provision of learning and development 
initiatives/training courses, for trade union 
members and non-members, funded through the 
Welsh Union Learning Fund.

Page 37



19

Stakeholder Group Responsibilities

Cabinet/Council }} Embrace modernisation and transformation and remove artificial barriers to 
change.

Corporate 
Management Team 
and Leadership Team

}} Provide senior level commitment and support for the strategy.

}} Promote learning and development across the organisation, nurturing 
a learning culture where employees are given the opportunity and the 
appropriate resources to grow and perform at an optimal level.

}} Working within the financial constraints of the MTFP, ensure sufficient budget 
and resources are available to deliver change.

}} Lead by example, champion our values and build a culture of trust. Ensure 
fairness, equity and inclusivity are instilled across the organisation and driven 
from the top.

Management 
Network

}} Engage in multi-service collaboration to help deliver the wide range of 
projects that will stem from our priority actions. 

}} Think more strategically about the workforce and use the Workforce Planning 
Framework to develop detailed Workforce Plans. Identify workforce surpluses, 
shortages and skills gaps and develop strategies to mitigate problems. 

}} Ensure learning and development is planned, managed and optimised within 
area of responsibility.

Operational 
Management

}} Hold regular My Time conversations with staff, recognising good practice, 
addressing areas for improvement and setting development targets which are 
aligned to the needs to the service and the employees’ personal development. 

}} Trust employees and encourage them to use their initiative to effect change.

}} Improve recruitment and marketing by utilising new technologies and 
platforms to support the corporate on-line process. 

}} Promote an inclusive team environment which champions equality, diversity 
and fairness and address any form of discrimination.

}} Effectively manage employee well-being, creating a positive work 
environment and identifying concerns early.

Our Responsibilities

Page 38



20

Workforce Development Strategy

People Services }} Work collaboratively with senior managers to develop workforce plans.

}} Improve workforce data to better inform workforce planning.

}} Develop new, and review our current policies and procedures, to support 
change and deliver our priority actions.

}} Work closely with our recognised trade unions to achieve positive outcomes 
for our employees and deliver change initiatives. 

}} Work in collaboration with our partners across the Council, and externally, to 
develop a comprehensive learning and development offer for our employees.

}} Work with colleagues in Regeneration and Planning, to develop a centralised 
programme to manage apprenticeships and work placements.

}} Develop our on-boarding process to include a new Corporate Induction.

All Staff }} Take ownership of work, challenge poor practice and use initiative to propose 
changes to improve efficiency and effectiveness.

}} Ensure regular My Time conversations are undertaken, prepare for them and 
constructively develop targeted personal development plans, identifying 
learning and development opportunities. 

}} Live by our values of equality, diversity and inclusion in the workplace; and 
challenge all forms of discrimination and bias.

}} Effectively manage personal well-being, accessing the resources available to 
maintain physical and mental health. 

}} Actively engage in staff engagement initiatives which provide an opportunity 
to voice opinion and influence decision making.

Unions }} Work in partnership with the Council, striving for positive outcomes for the 
workforce.

}} Cultivate an effective partnership with officers to develop the Union Learning 
Group/programme. 

}} Work proactively with the Council in the development and implementation of 
new initiatives, policies and procedures which move away from traditional and 
out-dated organisational practices.

}} Be a critical friend and share best practice where appropriate.

Page 39



21

Delivery, Monitoring and Governance

Progress against targets and objectives will be monitored and reviewed as follows:

Governance Body Format Timeframe

HR Strategy Briefing 6 monthly

CMT Report 6 monthly

P&R Scrutiny Report Annually 

Cabinet Report Annually 

To deliver the many objectives identified in Our 
Priority Actions, the strategy will be supported 

by an action plan and project management 
framework.

Our trade union partners will be fully consulted 
in the delivery of this strategy with six monthly 
briefings at Corporate JCC.

Page 40



IN
D

IV
ID

U
A

L
SE

RV
IC

E
O

RG
A

N
IS

AT
IO

N
N

AT
IO

N
A

L

Public Services Board  
Well-being Plan  

2018-2023

Medium Term 
Financial 
Planning

Transformation  
Strategy 2020:

Service/Corporate 
Reviews

Commercialisation

Place Shaping

Digitalisation

Innovation

Corporate Plan
2018-2023

Service Planning

Workforce Planning

My Time
(Personal Development Plan)

22

Workforce Development Strategy

Appendix 1:
Organisational Planning Framework

Page 41



2423

Workforce Development Strategy

Appendix 2:
Workforce Development Strategic Action Plan

PRIORITY ACTIONS METHOD OF DELIVERY / PROJECT LEAD OFFICER PROJECT GOVERNANCE TIMESCALE

1.1 Implement a sustainable model of flexible/agile 
working for the Council.

Corporate Review: Flexible Working Head of Infrastructure ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board 2022

1.2 Implement Workforce Planning. Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Workforce Planning Framework 
and Manager Toolkit)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● HR Strategy Group

2022

1.3 Develop a workforce data dashboard Management Information Review Head of People Services ● HR Strategy Group 2022

1.4 Update HR and Health & Safety policies and 
procedures.

HR and H&S Policy Review Project Head of People Services ● HR Strategy Group
● Health & Safety Committee

Quarter 4 
2021-22

2.1 Update the recruitment procedure to enhance the 
customer experience.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Recruitment Review)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● HR Strategy Group

2022

2.2 Implement development pathways and ‘grow-our-
own’ initiatives.

Workforce Planning Framework and Manager 
Toolkit

Head of People Services ● Corporate Management Team
● HR Strategy Group

Quarter 3  
2021-22

2.3 Embed the My Time/My Time Extra programme 
and train our managers to deliver effective 
conversations.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Management Training)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● HR Strategy Group

Quarter 3  
2021-22

2.4 Continue to develop our employment 
programmes.

Caerphilly Academy - Gateway to 
Employment initiative

Head of Planning & Regeneration ● Corporate Management Team Quarter 4  
2021-22

3.1 Develop a new Corporate Induction and review 
our local induction programme.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream – Corporate Induction)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● HR Strategy Group

Quarter 3  
2021-22

3.2 Establish a network of equalities and inclusivity 
champions across the Council, who will act 
as representatives for all staff with protected 
characteristics; working in collaboration with the 
Equalities Team and the Trade Unions to drive the 
equalities agenda locally.

Strategic Equality Plan (2020-2024) Head of Transformation ● Corporate Management Team Quarter 4  
2021-22

3.3 Continue to develop and facilitate targeted events, 
promotions and initiatives to celebrate diversity.

Strategic Equality Plan (2020-2024) Head of Transformation ● Corporate Management Team Quarter 4  
2021-22

3.4 Explore opportunities to enhance our equalities 
training provision. 

Strategic Equality Plan (2020-2024) Head of Transformation ● Corporate Management Team 2022 

P
age 42



2625

Workforce Development Strategy

PRIORITY ACTIONS METHOD OF DELIVERY / PROJECT LEAD OFFICER PROJECT GOVERNANCE TIMESCALE

3.5 Develop a Wellbeing Strategy, outlining our 
priority actions and corporate objectives.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Wellbeing)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● HR Strategy Group

Quarter 2  
2021-22

3.6 Continue to develop our digital well-being 
platform.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream – Wellbeing)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● HR Strategy Group

Quarter 3  
2021-22

3.7 Implement a Corporate Volunteering Policy, 
outlining our commitment to corporate social 
responsibility.

Corporate Review: Corp Volunteering & 
Community Partnership 
(Workstream – Corporate Volunteering Policy)

Head of Transformation ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board Quarter 2  
2021-22

3.8 Embed the principles of our Consultation and 
Engagement Framework.

Corporate Communications & Engagement 
Strategy 2019-2023

Head of Transformation ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board Quarter 4  
2021-22

3.9 Develop the Staff Recognition Awards initiative. Corporate Communications & Engagement 
Strategy 2019-2023

Head of Transformation ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board Quarter 4  
2021-22

4.1 Develop our management development 
programme.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream – Learning & Development)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● Corporate Management Team

Quarter 4  
2021-22

4.2 Develop our organisational learning and 
development function.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream – Learning & Development)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● Corporate Management Team

Quarter 3  
2021-22

4.3 Develop our digital platform for managing 
corporate learning and development.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream – Learning & Development)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● HR Strategy Group

Quarter 4  
2021-22

4.4 Develop our digital learning and development 
resources.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream – Learning & Development)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● HR Strategy Group

2022

4.5 Develop our links with private training providers, 
local colleges and universities.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream – Learning & Development)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● HR Strategy Group

Quarter 3  
2021-22

4.6 Explore in partnership with our trade union 
colleagues, how we can best utilise the Welsh 
Union Learning Fund to widen our training 
programmes.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream – Learning & Development)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● HR Strategy
● Corporate Services JCC

Quarter 3  
2021-22

P
age 43



Page 44



1 
 

Caerphilly County Borough Council - Integrated Impact Assessment       APPENDIX 2 
 
This integrated impact assessment (IIA) has been designed to help support the Council in making informed and effective decisions whilst ensuring compliance 
with a range of relevant legislation, including: 
 

 Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011   Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 

 Socio-economic Duty – Sections 1 to 3 of the Equality Act 2010   Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

 Statutory Consultation v Doctrine of Legitimate Expectation and Gunning Principles 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  Section 3 Socio-economic Duty only needs to be completed if proposals are of a strategic nature or when reviewing previous strategic 
decisions.  See page 6 of the Preparing for the Commencement of the Socio-economic Duty Welsh Government Guidance. 
 
 

1. Proposal Details 

Lead Officer Head of Service Service Area & Department Date 

Neil Cooksley Lynne Donovan People Services 01/09/2021 

 
 

What is the proposal to be assessed?  Provide brief details of the proposal and provide a link to any relevant report or documents. 
 
The Council’s proposed ‘Workforce Development Strategy 2021 – 24’, attached at Appendix 1.   

Proposal aim: to develop our employees to maximise their capabilities, effectiveness and resilience to support the re-purposing and re-shaping of our 

services in response to the many challenges we face as a Council moving forward with a workforce that is fit for purpose and representative of our local 

demographic. . 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 45

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf


2 
 

2. Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011  
(The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
advance equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between different groups).  Please note that an individual may have 
more than one protected characteristic. 

Protected Characteristics 
Does the proposal have any positive, negative 
or neutral impacts on the protected 
characteristics and how?   

If there are negative impacts 
how will these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view? 

The strategy outlines our commitments to supporting people regardless of protected characteristics 

Age (people of all ages) 

Positive impact.  It is recognised that the key 
principles of this Strategic Workforce 
Development Plan will have significant benefits 
for our employees, i.e. permanent, casual and 
temporary.  
 

The plan also demonstrates the significant 
amount of time and funds we are committed to 
invest in our workforce to ensure we can 
provide the best possible service to our 
residents and help us become more resilient to 
change in the future.  
 

As one of the largest employers in the borough, 
this workforce development strategy outlines 
our aspirations of being recognised as an 
employer of choice in terms of our approach to 
diversity, equalities, personal well-being, 
learning, being forward thinking and resilient to 
change and leadership development.   
 

Positive impact: A new Digital Learning Platform 
will be a key component in enabling our 
employees to train and diversify their skillsets. 
Having a multi-skilled workforce and the 
flexibility that offers is a key factor in supporting 
our future service delivery. The promotion and 
engagement of staff in learning and 

Mitigation of negative impact: 
This Strategy supports 
digitalisation and effective 
engagement and under this 
strategy the Council will be 
looking at options to address 
issues associated with 
digitalisation/new technology 
including the development of a 
functional mobile platform, 
additional support and digital 
skills training and access to more 
digital Council systems for 
frontline staff. 
 

 
 

The foundations of this strategy are 
based on the principles of place 
shaping, collaboration, digitalisation 
and commercialisation and innovation; 
which in turn have helped shape our 
wider corporate strategies such as the 
Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024, the 
Customer & Digital Strategy 2019-
2023, the Commercial and Innovation 
Strategy and the Service Review 
Methodology. Together, these 
strategies will help close knowledge 
and skills gaps across the organisation 
and shape our future workforce. 
Opportunities to continue to support 
wellbeing, work life balance, actively 
promote inclusivity and equality and 
reduce carbon footprint through our 
current & proposed enhancements to 
agile and flexible working are 
supported under this strategy.   
 
Significant engagement and 
consultation was conducted to inform 
the strategy.  
 
Our workforce profile assessment 

P
age 46

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues


3 
 

development should lead to many benefits for 
both our colleagues and the Council as a whole.  
 
Potential negative impact: Our frontline 
workforce do not currently have a Council email 
address or access to Council systems including 
ITrent Self Service. This can cause inequality of 
accessibility to information for this group of 
staff. 
 
Negative impact: Some colleagues may have less 
experience/knowledge of digital platforms and 
may not have the digital skills to feel confident 
to use eLearning and digital resources to learn. 
  

identified an aging workforce and an 
aging workforce in our front line 
positions where digital skills and use of 
technology is not part of their roles.  
 
In our staff survey it was noted that 
57% of respondents listed face-to-face 
as their preferred method of learning. 
However, only 3% of respondents 
listed digital skills as a barrier to 
learning. 
 

Disability (people with 
disabilities/ long term 
conditions) 

Positive impact – Strengthening Inclusivity and 
Equality lies at the heart of this strategy.   
 
Potential negative impact: The development of 
new technology and methods of delivering 
learning and training digitally could present 
additional/new challenges to employees with 
conditions or disabilities.   
 
 

Mitigation of negative impact: 
We will ensure our eLearning 
and digital resources adhere to 
accessibility guidelines and 
where necessary alternative 
means of delivery will be 
provided i.e. face-to-face 
 

 
 

Gender Reassignment 
(anybody who’s gender 
identity or gender 
expression is different to the 
sex they were assigned at 
birth) 

Positive impact – Strengthening Inclusivity and 
Equality lies at the heart of this strategy.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Marriage or Civil 
Partnership (people who 
are married or in a civil 
partnership) 

Positive impact – Strengthening Inclusivity and 
Equality lies at the heart of this strategy. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 47



4 
 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
(women who are pregnant 
and/or on maternity leave) 

Positive impact – Strengthening Inclusivity and 
Equality lies at the heart of this strategy.  
 

The Council supports the protections given to 
staff who are pregnant and/or on maternity 
leave under UK law.   

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Race (people from black, 
Asian and minority ethnic 
communities and different 
racial backgrounds) 

Positive impact - Strengthening Inclusivity and 
Equality lies at the heart of this strategy.    
 
Workforce planning will challenge our 
managers to consider the demographics of 
their teams, whilst encouraging the 
development of a more diverse workforce.  
 
The Workforce Development Strategy makes 
specific and targeted links to our Strategic 
Equality Plan and actions identified within. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Religion or Belief (people 
with different religions and 
beliefs including people 
with no beliefs) 

Positive impact - Strengthening Inclusivity and 
Equality lies at the heart of this strategy.   

 
 
 

 
 
 

Sex (women and men, girls 
and boys and those who 
self-identify their gender) 

Positive impact - Strengthening Inclusivity and 
Equality lies at the heart of this strategy.  

 
 
 

 
 
 

Sexual Orientation 
(lesbian, gay, bisexual, 
heterosexual, other) 

Positive impact - Strengthening Inclusivity and 
Equality lies at the heart of this strategy.  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

3. Socio-economic Duty (Strategic Decisions Only) 
(The Socio-economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key decision making.  Socio-economic 
disadvantage means living on a low income compared to others in Wales, with little or no accumulated wealth, leading to greater material deprivation, restricting the 
ability to access basic goods and services) 

 

P
age 48



5 
 

Please consider these additional vulnerable groups and the impact your proposal may or may not have on them:  

 Single parents and vulnerable families  
 People with low literacy/numeracy  
 Pensioners 
 Looked after children  
 Homeless people 

 Carers 
 Armed Forces Community 
 Students 
 Single adult households 
 People misusing substances 

 People who have experienced the asylum system 
 People of all ages leaving a care setting 
 People living in the most deprived areas in Wales (WIMD)  
 People involved in the criminal justice system  

Socio-economic 
Disadvantage 

Does the proposal have any positive, negative or neutral 
impacts on the following and how?   

If there are negative impacts 
how will these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been 
used to support this view? 

Low Income / Income 
Poverty (cannot afford to 
maintain regular 
payments such as bills, 
food, clothing, transport 
etc.) 

Positive impact: The changing landscape in public health, 
politics, economics, technology, demography, environmental 
impact mitigation and social attitudes are influencing how we 
resource the Council.  With concerns over skills shortages, an 
aging workforce and increasing competition to attract talent to 
the Council, a strategically planned approach to workforce 
development is necessary to align strategy, processes and 
people.  This includes a non-guaranteed hours’ review to 
restrict/limit the use of casual zero hours contracts moving 
forward and thus provide more sustainable employment 
opportunities.  
Under this strategy, we will seek to address the challenges 
identified in our stakeholder engagement through the further 
development of our recruitment strategies and procedures.  We 
will explore and develop new initiatives to enhance work 
opportunities for our residents, utilising government funded 
employment programmes to widen our provision of 
apprenticeships, work placements and work experience 
opportunities. 
The Council supports payment of the foundation living wage 
which supports young people starting in modern apprenticeship 
roles and colleagues in entry level positions to be paid a living 
wage. It is noted that this is often more than what is offered for 
comparable roles in the private sector. 

 
 
 
 
 

The Council’s Pay policy 
Statement 2021.  
 
Workforce Partnership 
Council (WPC) Agreement 
on the acceptable use of 
Non Guaranteed Hours 
Arrangements (NGHA) 
 
 
 
 

Low and/or No Wealth 
(enough money to meet 
basic living costs and pay 

Positive impact as above – Non Guaranteed Hours 
Arrangements (NGHA) Review and sustainable employment 
opportunities.  

 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 49

http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx
http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx


6 
 

bills but have no savings 
to deal with any 
unexpected  spends and 
no provisions for the 
future) 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Material Deprivation 
(unable to access basic 
goods and services i.e. 
financial products like life 
insurance, repair/replace 
broken electrical goods, 
warm home, hobbies etc.) 

Neutral impact 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Area Deprivation (where 
you live (rural areas), 
where you work 
(accessibility of public 
transport) Impact on the 
environment? 

Positive impact.  As stated above, the changing landscape in 
public health, politics, economics, technology, demography, 
environmental impact mitigation and social attitudes are 
influencing how we resource the Council. Under this strategy, 
this will include the development of agile working solutions to 
meet our ever changing service needs.  This can provide choice 
for many as to where they work and opportunity to attain a job 
of choice is enhanced.  
 
Possible negative impact: It is recognised that some job roles 
will not support agile working and these front line opportunities 
may remain inaccessible for some.   
 

Front line working 
opportunities exist 
throughout the County 
Borough, providing choice 
and options for people to 
work locally and within a 
reasonable proximity to their 
home. 

Categorisation data 
collected as part of the 
Agile Working Corporate 
Review has evidenced the 
number of roles within 
each category of work.  
 
 
 
 

Socio-economic 
Background  
(social class i.e. parents 
education, employment 
and income) 

Neutral impact 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Socio-economic 
Disadvantage 
(What cumulative impact 
will the proposal have on 
people or groups because 
of their protected 

Positive impact – as above 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 50



7 
 

 

  

characteristic(s) or 
vulnerability or because 
they are already 
disadvantaged) 

  
 

P
age 51



8 
 

4. Corporate Plan – Council’s Well-being Objectives  
(How does your proposal deliver against any/all of the Council’s Well-being Objectives?  Which in turn support the national well-being goals for Wales as 
outlined in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  Are there any impacts (positive, negative or neutral?  If there are negative impacts 
how have these been mitigated?)  Well-being Objectives 

Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities 
for all 

Positive impact – the strategy supports a centrally co-ordinated learning & development function 
and the exploration of a digital learning platform.  
 
The strategy includes the section ‘Managing talent and creating opportunity’. In this section our 
actions include the development our employment programmes creating opportunities for people in 
our communities to access training, work placements and employment. 

Objective 2 - Enabling employment 

Positive impact – through the creation of more substantial and sustainable employment linked to a 
non-guaranteed hours review; the provision of the foundation living wage and strengthening of our 
employment programmes to widen our provision of apprenticeships, work placements and work 
experience opportunities. 

Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition 
and sustainability of homes throughout the 
county borough and provide advice, assistance  
or support to help improve people’s well-being 

 
N/A 
 

Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and 
sustainable transport system that increases 
opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises 
the adverse impact on the environment 

 
N/A 
 

  

P
age 52

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/Corporate_Plan_2018-2023.aspx


9 
 

Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that 
supports healthy lifestyle in accordance with the 
Sustainable Development principle with in the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 

N/A – will be addressed through the Council’s Wellbeing Strategy 
 

Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain 
independent and improve  
their well-being 

Positive impact in an employee context for the reasons stated in this Integrated Impact Assessment 
(IIA) and the comprehensive content of the Workforce Development Strategy.  

 
 

4a. Links to any other relevant Council Policy  

(How does your proposal deliver against any other relevant Council Policy?) 

Transformation Strategy 2020 
Corporate Plan 2018 – 2023 
Wellbeing Plan (under development) – 2018 – 2023 
Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2024 
Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 
Welsh Language Standards 
My Time Process 
 
The foundations of this Workforce Development Strategy are based on the principles of place shaping, collaboration, digitalisation and commercialisation 
and innovation; which in turn have also helped shape our wider corporate strategies such as the Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024, the Customer & 
Digital Strategy 2019-2023, the Commercial and Innovation Strategy and the Service Review Methodology. 
 
  

P
age 53



10 
 

5. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 – The Five Ways of Working (ICLIP)  
(Also known as the sustainable development principles.  The Act requires the Council to consider how any proposal improves the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales using the five ways of working as a baseline) 

Ways of Working How have you used the Sustainable Development Principles in forming the proposal? 

Long Term 

 

Consider the long-term impact of the proposal on the ability of communities to secure their well-being. 
 

This Strategy offers a comprehensive programme of support staff and development when combined with the Council’s Wellbeing 
Strategy will have a long term positive impact on the work community.   

Prevention 

 

Consider how the proposal is preventing problems from ocurring or getting worse 
 

The Workforce Planning requirement of this Strategy will support succession planning, a well-trained and motivated workforce that is 
fit for the future. A motivated, valued and confident workforce whose development needs are fulfilled will improve mental health 
and well-being. 

Integration 

 

Consider how your proposal will impact on other services provided in our communities (these might be Council services or services delivered by 
other organisations or groups) 
 

The foundations of this strategy are based on the principles of placeshaping, collaboration, digitalisation and commercialisation and 
innovation; which in turn have helped shape our wider corporate strategies such as the Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024, the 
Customer & Digital Strategy 2019-2023, the Commercial and Innovation Strategy and the Service Review Methodology. Together, 
these strategies will help close knowledge and skills gaps across the organisation and shape our future workforce and improved 
services to our communities.  

Collaboration 

 

Consider how you are working with Council services or services delivered by other organisations or groups in our communities. 
 

The effective implementation of this Strategy requires all parties to accept and own their individual responsibilities as outlined in this 
Strategy. It includes working collaboratively with Welsh Government, external employment/placement providers, Schools, 
Universities and Colleges, equality champions such as Stonewall and our Union colleagues.  The collaboration list in the effective 
implementation of this strategy is fluid and extensive.  

Involvement 

 

Consider how you involve people who have an interest in this proposal and ensure that they represent the diversity of our communities. 
 
This is an inward looking strategy and wider consultation with the community has not taken place in this context.  The Strategy is 
however based on the extensively consulted Strategies referred to in the Integration Section above.  

 

P
age 54

https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/content/5-ways-working


11 
 

6. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

Well-being Goals Does the proposal maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goal and how? 

A Prosperous Wales 
An innovative, productive and low carbon society which 
recognises the limits of the global environment and 
therefore uses resources efficiently and proportionately 
(including acting on climate change); and which develops a 
skilled and well-educated population in an economy which 
generates wealth and provides employment opportunities, 
allowing people to take advantage of the wealth generated 
through securing decent work 

Efficient use of resources, skilled, educated people generates wealth and provides jobs 
 

Yes it does as outlined in this IIA.  
 
 
 
 

A Resilient Wales 
A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse 
natural environment healthy functioning ecosystems that 
support social, economic and ecological resilience and the 
capacity to adapt to change (for climate change) 

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and ecosystems that support resilience and can adapt to change (e.g. 
climate change). Have you considered the environmental impact your proposal will have and have you 
completed an Environmental Impact Assessment or Strategic Environmental Assessment if required? 

N/A 

A Healthier Wales  
A society in which people’s physical and mental well-being 
is maximised and in which choices and behaviours that 
benefit future health are understood 

People’s physical and mental well-being is maximised and health impacts are understood 
Considered more comprehensively under the Council’s Wellbeing Strategy that will compliment this 
Workforce Development Strategy.  

A More Equal Wales 
A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no 
matter what their background or circumstances (including 
their socio-economic background and circumstances) 

People can fulfil their potential no matter what their background or circumstances.  This includes the 
protected characteristics listed in Q2 above.  Also consider the cumulative impacts. 

Strengthening our commitment to Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart of this Strategy.  

A Wales of Cohesive Communities 
Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities 

Communities are attractive, viable, safe and well connected. 

N/A 

A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language 
A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and 
the Welsh language, and which encourages people to 
participate in the arts, and sports and recreation 

Culture, heritage and the Welsh language are promoted and protected.  People are encouraged to 
participate in sport, art and recreation. 

N/A  

A Globally Responsible Wales 
A nation which, when doing anything to improve the 
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of 
Wales, takes account of whether doing such a thing may 
make a positive contribution to global well-being 

Taking account of impact on global well-being when considering local social, economic and environmental 
well-being.  Have you considered the environmental impact your proposal will have and have you 
completed an Environmental Impact Assessment or Strategic Environmental Assessment if required? 

Yes, in the context of the agile working agenda and sustainable employment opportunities, etc.  
 

 

P
age 55

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies,-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act?lang=en-GB


12 
 

7. Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and Welsh Language Standards  
(The Welsh Language Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards require the Council to have ‘due regard’ for the positive or negative 
impact a proposal may have on opportunities to use the Welsh language and ensuring the Welsh language is treated no less favourably than 
the English language) Policy Making Standards - Good Practice Advice Document 

 

Requirement 
Does the proposal have any positive, 
negative or neutral impacts on the 
following and how?  

If there are negative impacts 
how will these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view?  
e.g the WESP, TAN20, LDP, Pupil 
Level Annual School Census 

Links with Welsh Government’s 

Cymraeg 2050 Strategy and CCBC’s 

Five Year Welsh Language Strategy 

2017-2022 and the Language Profile 

 

 

Neutral impact.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Compliance with the Welsh Language 

Standards.   

Specifically Standards 88 - 93  

Positive impact.  The Workforce 

Development Strategy identifies the 

need to fulfil our commitments to 

developing Welsh Language and 

specifically references Equality 

Objective 6 of the Strategic Equality 

Plan which outlines our priority actions 

for Welsh Language training and 

training delivered through the medium 

of Welsh (Standards 130-132) 

  

 

 

Opportunities to promote the Welsh 

language e.g. status, use of Welsh 

language services, use of Welsh in 

everyday life in work / community  

Neutral impact 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Opportunities for persons to use the 

Welsh language e.g. staff, residents 

and visitors 

 
Neutral impact 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treating the Welsh language no less 

favourably than the English language 

Neutral impact 

 

 

 

 

 
 

7a.  Having considered the impacts above, how has the proposal been developed so that there are positive effects, or increased positive effects on (a) 

P
age 56

http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/getattachment/b33d6f35-d70e-4d8d-917d-cc0e4abe2624/Policy-Making-Standards-Advisory-Document.aspx
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Equalities/Welsh-Language-Strategy
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Equalities/Welsh-Language-Strategy
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh_Language_Profile_2016.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx


13 
 

opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language, and b) treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language. 

Impact on the use of Welsh, sustainability of Welsh speaking communities, numbers and/or percentages of Welsh speakers, fluency and confidence of Welsh speakers 
and learners to use Welsh, transmission of Welsh at home/from one generation to the next, using Welsh in the workplace, increase Welsh language digital media 
infrastructure and/or media, promoting Welsh in everyday life and its status 
 

The Workforce Development Strategy identifies the need to fulfil our commitments to developing Welsh Language and specifically references Equality 
Objective 6 of the Strategic Equality Plan which outline the priority actions for Welsh Language training.  
 

 

  

P
age 57



14 
 

8. Data and Information  
(What data or other evidence has been used to inform the development of the proposal?  Evidence may include the outcome of previous consultations, 
existing databases, pilot projects, review of customer complaints and compliments and or other service user feedback, national and regional data, 
academic publications and consultants’ reports etc.) 
Data/evidence  
(Please provide link to report if appropriate) 

Key relevant findings 
How has the data/evidence informed this 
proposal? 

One-to-one meetings with all members of the 
Leadership Team 
 
Consultation with Management Network – views 
collated on workforce development needs, issues 
and expectations. 
 
Consultation with the Trade Unions 
 
Staff Survey 
 
Significant research and utilisation of best 
practice from professional bodies - CIPD 

The key findings of the consultation were 
analysed and summarised to develop the four 
strategic focus points for the strategy: 
 

1. Focusing on what matters (What we do 
and how we do it) 

2. Managing and creating talent (How do we 
get the right people to do it) 

3. Value our employees (How we support 
our people to do it well) 

4. Fulfilling our potential (How we develop 
and grow our people) 

 

The views of those consulted helped to shape the 

Strategy 

Were there any gaps identified in the evidence and data used to develop this proposal and how will these gaps be filled?    
Details of further consultation can be included in Section 9. 

 
 No significant gaps identified, data provided a holistic view of workforce development needs and expectations.  Implementation of the strategy will be 
monitored and updated to reflect any changes required. 
 
 

  

P
age 58



15 
 

9. Consultation  
(In some instances, there is a legal requirement to consult.  In others, even where there is no legal obligation, there may be a legitimate expectation from 
people that a consultation will take place.  Where it has been determined that consultation is required, The Gunning Principles must be adhered to.  
Consider the Consultation and Engagement Framework.  Please note that this may need to be updated as the proposal develops and to strengthen the 
assessment. 

Briefly describe any recent or planned consultations paying particular attention to evidencing the Gunning Principles. 

Who was consulted?  
 

Leadership team, HR Strategy Group, Trade Unions, Cabinet Member for Corporate Services, Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee 
 
When they were consulted did the consultation take place at the formative stage and was adequate time given for consultees to consider and respond? 
 

July 2021 – sufficient time provided for critical feedback and agreement of priority actions. 
 
Was sufficient information provided to consultees to allow them to make an informed decision on the proposal? 
 

Yes 
 
What were the key findings? 
 

Strategy was well received and deemed to be addressing the needs identified through our consultation and engagement.  
 
How have the consultation findings been taken into account? 
 

All critical feedback was considered and amendments made to the strategy as appropriate.  
 
 

  

P
age 59

https://www.consultationinstitute.org/the-gunning-principles-implications/
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx


16 
 

10. Monitoring and Review  

How will the implementation and the impact 
of the proposal be monitored, including 
implementation of any amendments?   

For example, what monitoring will be used?  How frequent? 
As identified in the Workforce Development Strategy 
 

What are the practical arrangements for 
monitoring?   

For example, who will put this in place?  When will it start? 
As identified in the Workforce Development Strategy 
 

How will the results of the monitoring be 
used to develop future proposals? 

 
As identified in the Workforce Development Strategy 
 

When is the proposal due to be reviewed? 
 
Ongoing through dynamic action plans and fully 2024.  
 

Who is responsible for ensuring this 
happens? 

 
Head of People Services 
 

 

11. Recommendation and Reasoning  

x Implement proposal with no amendments 

 Implement proposal taking account of the mitigating actions outlined 

 Reject the proposal due to disproportionate impact on equality, poverty and socio-economic disadvantage 

 

Have you contacted relevant officers for advice and guidance?                                              Yes  X             No   

  

P
age 60



17 
 

12. Reason(s) for Recommendation  
(Provide below a summary of the Integrated Impact Assessment.  This summary should be included in the “Summary of Integrated Impact Assessment” 
section of the Corporate Report Template.  The Integrated Impact Assessment should be published alongside the Report proposal). 

Include here a conclusion to your IIA.  What is it telling you?  How has the data / evidence used helped you to make the decision for Section 11 above?  Mention any 
significant impacts (positive, negative or neutral) if any negative ones identified, how have they been mitigated to lessen the impact?  Did you identify any 
cumulative impact your proposal will have? The summary you provide here will be copied into your report going forward for a decision through the committee 
process, therefore this section must be concise but informative. 

 
The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
advance equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between different groups.  It is recognised that the key principles of 
this Workforce Development Strategy will have significant benefits for our employees, i.e. permanent, casual and temporary. 
 
This Strategy outlines our aspirations of being recognised as an employer of choice in terms of our approach to diversity, equalities, personal well-being, 
learning, being forward thinking and resilient to change and leadership development. Strengthening Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart of this 
strategy. 
 
The Socio-economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key decision making.  The 
changing landscape in public health, politics, economics, technology, demography, environmental impact mitigation and social attitudes are influencing 
how we resource the Council.  With concerns over skills shortages, an aging workforce and increasing competition to attract talent to the Council, a 
strategically planned approach to workforce development is necessary to align strategy, processes and people.  This includes a non-guaranteed hours’ 
review to restrict/limit the use of casual zero hours contracts moving forward and thus provide more sustainable employment opportunities.  
 
Under this Strategy, we will be exploring and developing new initiatives to enhance work opportunities for our residents, utilising government funded 
employment programmes to widen our provision of apprenticeships, work placements and work experience opportunities. The Council furthermore 
supports payment of the foundation living wage which supports young people starting in modern apprenticeship roles.   
 
Agile Working Opportunities that promote greater choice for where work may be carried out will assist in reducing the Council’s and the employee’s 
carbon footprint and will in many instances support employee wellbeing and offer a greater choice of employment opportunities that may have been 
unreachable for some based on where they live and/or their individual circumstance.  
 
This Strategy supports learning and development opportunities for all staff and enables employment through the creation of more substantial and 
sustainable employment linked to a non-guaranteed hours review.  Combined with the provision of the foundation living wage and strengthening of our 
employment programmes to widen our provision of apprenticeships, work placements and work experience opportunities, the impact of this Strategy is 
largely positive on the Council’s workforce as a whole, i.e. current and future.   
 
 

P
age 61



18 
 

13. Version Control  
(The IIA should be used in the early stages of the proposal development process.  The IIA can be strengthened as time progresses to help shape the 
proposal.  The Version Control section will act as an audit trail to evidence how the IIA has been developed over time) 
Version No. Author Brief description of the amendments/update Revision Date 
1 Lisa Downey Original Submission 01/09/2021 

    
    
 

Integrated Impact Assessment Author 

Name: Lisa Downey 

Job Title: Service Manager 

Date: 01/09/2021 

  

Head of Service Approval 

Name: Lynne Donovan 

Job Title: Head of People Services 

Signature:  Date: 01.09.21 
 

 

P
age 62



 
 

CABINET – 29TH SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

    
SUBJECT:    EMPLOYEE WELLBEING STRATEGY 2021 - 24 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES  
 
 
1.1 The attached report is due to be considered by the Policy and Resources Scrutiny 

Committee on the 28th September 2021.  Due to publication deadlines the views of 
the Scrutiny Committee and its recommendations will be reported verbally to Cabinet. 

 
 

Author:  Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services    
 
Appendices:  
 
Appendix  Report to Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 28th September 2021 
 
 
 
  

Page 63

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 64



APPENDIX 

 
 
 

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –  
28TH SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT:      EMPLOYEE WELLBEING STRATEGY 2021 - 24 
 
REPORT BY:  HEAD OF PEOPLE SERVICES  
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to consult with Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee 

in relation to the Employee Wellbeing Strategy 2021 – 24, attached at Appendix 1.   
 

 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The Council’s Team Caerphilly – Better Together Transformation Strategy was 

adopted by Cabinet on the 12th June 2019.  As part of this Strategy, ten corporate 
reviews are being undertaken to transform how the Council Works and Workforce 
Development is one of them. 

 
2.2 One of the actions of this review is to produce a Wellbeing Strategy, detailing how we 

will work together to fully support our employees’ health and wellbeing.  
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee are asked to note the contents of the 

report and make comments prior to recommending the Employee Wellbeing Strategy 
2021 – 24 attached at Appendix 1 to Cabinet for approval.   

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 The recommendation is made to ensure that we have an Employee Wellbeing 

Strategy in place to work with our employees to promote and facilitate good health 
and wellbeing, and to provide excellent services to our people.   

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 As stated, the Council’s Team Caerphilly – Better Together Transformation Strategy 

was adopted by Cabinet on the 12th June 2019 and ten corporate reviews are being 

Page 65



undertaken to transform how the Council works and Workforce Development is one 
of them.  

 
5.2 The Employee Wellbeing Strategy 2021 – 24 (attached at Appendix 1), 

acknowledges that the importance of employee health and wellbeing has become 
more widely recognised over the past decade.  In particular there is increasing 
concern about mental health, and the growing pressures people face living and 
working in today’s world.  We also cannot underestimate the ongoing impact Covid 
may have on people. 

 
5.3 Employee wellbeing is critical for business performance. A healthy workplace, that 

promotes a state of contentment, benefits both employees and the organisation. 
 
5.4 The workplace can be an effective place to improve the wellbeing of individuals, 

families and communities. It can offer financial security, social connections and a 
sense of belonging, meaning and purpose. Our employees spend a significant 
amount of time in work so we have a critical role to play in the wellbeing of our 
workforce. 

 
5.5 This is an ambitious Strategy and comprehensive in content with key priorities 

highlighted.  It details how we achieve our vision: ‘Working together to fully support 
our employees’ health and wellbeing.’ 

 
5.6 Together with the actions and objectives prioritised in our Strategic Equality Plan 

2020 - 2024, Workforce Development Strategy 2021 - 24, Sports & Recreation 
Strategy 2019 - 2029 and Green Infrastructure Strategy 2020, the effective 
implementation of this Employee Wellbeing Strategy will be fundamental to ensuring 
that wellbeing lies at the core of how the Council fulfils its strategic aims, conducts 
operations and delivers excellent services to our communities.     

 
5.7 The Council’s HR polices confirm that employees are our most valuable asset and 

recognise the importance of supporting the wellbeing of our employees when they 
are at work or absent due to sickness and ill health.  Our people are at the very heart 
of everything we do.  Our continuing success as a Council will be dependent on us 
promoting and facilitating good health and wellbeing, to enable us to provide 
excellent services to our communities.  This Wellbeing Strategy reinforces this.  

 
5.8 We have also taken account of the responses to the employee survey when 

developing this Strategy. 
 
5.9 Under this Strategy, we will work collaboratively to support the health and wellbeing 

of our employees and to address the challenges identified within the Strategy and 
also any others that may arise.   

 
5.10 Conclusion   

 
 The Council’s clear commitment to employee wellbeing is now captured in the 

Employee Wellbeing Strategy 2021 – 24, to ensure that we work with our employees 
to promote and facilitate good health and wellbeing, to provide excellent services to 
our people.     

 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 There are no assumptions made within this report.    
 

Page 66



 
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT  
 
7.1 The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the 

need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; advance 
equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between 
different groups.  It is recognised that the key principles of this Employee Wellbeing 
Strategy will have significant benefits for our employees. 

 
7.2 This Strategy outlines our aspirations of being recognised as an employer of choice 

in terms of our approach to diversity, equalities, personal well-being, learning, being 
forward thinking and resilient to change and leadership development. Strengthening 
Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart of this strategy. 

 
7.3 The information collated through research, consultation, engagement (staff survey) 

and employee data has provided significant insights and evidence around which we 
were able to develop a holistic framework. 

 
7.4 By strengthening the five key areas identified in the strategy, we can create a 

supportive and nurturing work environment that effectively supports employee 
physical and mental health and wellbeing.  

 
7.5 The Integrated Impact Assessment is attached at Appendix 2. 
 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no immediate financial implications to this report.  Any budgetary 

requirements to support wellbeing will be subject to appropriate authorisation. 
 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The personnel implications are included in the report. 
 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 The consultation responses have been incorporated in the Strategy.   
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 Local Government Act 1972 
 
 
Author:        Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services  
 
Consultees: Corporate Management Team 
 Cllr Colin Gordon, Cabinet Member for Corporate Services 
 Leadership Team 
 HR Strategy Group 
 HR Management Team 
 Stephen Pugh, Head of Communications 
 Emma Townsend, Health and Safety Manager 

Page 67



 Neil Cooksley, Principal HR Officer (Workforce Development) 
 Trade Unions – GMB, Unison, Unite 
  
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 Employee Wellbeing Strategy 2021 – 24 

(An accessible version is available on request) 
Appendix 2 Integrated Impact Assessment 
 
 
 

Page 68



GWASANAETHAU POBL
PEOPLE SERVICES

Employee 
Wellbeing 
Strategy 
21-24

Appendix 1

Page 69



1

Contents

Foreword 2

Introduction 4

The Strategic Context 5

Our Employee Data 6

Employee pro� le  6

Sta�  survey summary 8

Sickness absence summary (2020/2021) 11

Our Challenges 12

Our Approach 13

1. Health and lifestyle 14

What we do 14

2. Environment 17

What we do 17

3. Culture and values 19

What we do 19

4. Personal development 21

What we do 21

5. Financial wellbeing 23

What we do 23

Our Responsibilities 24

Delivery, Monitoring and Governance 26

Appendix: Employee Wellbeing Strategic Action Plan 27

Page 70



2

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

I’m pleased to present the Council’s new Employee 
Wellbeing Strategy, which has been developed in 
order to support all our brilliant employees who 
are at the heart of Team Caerphilly.

We employ over 8,000 hard-working colleagues, 
who provide a huge range of services direct to our 
communities and it goes without saying that our 
workforce is our most valuable asset. 

We are in unprecedented times and it is clear 
that the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic 
on employee health and wellbeing has been 
signi� cant. However, we have responded 
amazingly and shown incredible resilience and 
character in the face of such adversity to repurpose 
and reshape our services, ensuring our citizens 
continue to receive the services they need on a 
day-to-day basis. 

Working across the council, with our communities 
and with our partners we have united together as 
one team and it makes me very proud to be a part 
of Team Caerphilly.

As we move forward, through the unchartered 
waters of Covid recovery, we will continue to 
work alongside our communities, businesses 
and partners to ensure we consolidate, reshape 
and refocus wherever necessary. It is therefore 
more important than ever that we have in place 
a robust Employee Wellbeing Strategy to support 
and nurture the people we have within the 
organisation during these critical times.

We have fantastic work life balance policies and a 
wide range of procedures, schemes and initiatives 
in place already to support our employees’ physical 
and mental health and wellbeing. Our aim now 
is to strengthen and build upon these solid 
foundations. 

I look forward to seeing this strategy embed within 
the organisation and I’m sure sta�  at all levels will 
bene� t from the principles and priorities contained 
within it.

Christina Harrhy
Chief Executive
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Foreword

Page 71



3

The Cabinet, along with all other elected members, 
recognise the importance of promoting and 
protecting employee wellbeing.

The Council is a large and diverse organisation, so 
it is vital that sta�  at all levels are able to access 
appropriate levels of support and resources when 
and if they need it, particularly at this time as we 
continue to navigate our way through a global 
pandemic. 

It is no surprise that good workplace wellbeing 
has mutual bene� ts for employees, organisations, 
economies and communities, so it is vitally 
important that we have the right strategy in place 
to achieve this.

The wellbeing of our employees must continue 
to be at the very forefront of everything we do, 
embedded in our culture, day-to-day operations, 
leadership and management. 

We are fully committed to ensuring we have a 
healthy organisation, where each and every one 
of our employee feels valued, protected and 
supported. This strategy will provide the blueprint 
for this commitment and I would like to thank all 
those involved in its preparation and delivery.

Cllr. Philippa Marsden
Leader
Caerphilly County Borough Council

Foreword

Page 72



4

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

The importance of employee health and wellbeing 
has become more widely recognised over the past 
decade. In particular there is increasing concern 
about mental health, and the growing pressures 
people face living and working in today’s world. 

Employee wellbeing is critical for business 
performance. A healthy workplace, that promotes 
a state of contentment, bene� ts both employees 
and the organisation. 

The workplace can be an e� ective place to 
improve the wellbeing of individuals, families and 
communities. It can o� er � nancial security, social 
connections and a sense of belonging, meaning 
and purpose. Our employees spend a signi� cant 
amount of time in work so we have a critical role to 
play in the wellbeing of our workforce. 

Our absolute priority at Caerphilly County Borough 
Council is to work with our employees to promote 
and facilitate good health and wellbeing, and to 
provide excellent services to those who need our 
support.

The Covid-19 Pandemic
In a time of national, indeed global crisis, the 
Covid-19 pandemic changed how we operated 
overnight. Our services were rapidly repurposed 
and large numbers of our workforce were thrust 
into remote working. We responded incredibly 

well, enabling our services to function e� ectively 
whilst keeping our employees safe. By embracing 
agile and home working, in accordance with 
service provision, we enabled our employees 
to � ex their working patterns to support their 
varying and complex needs, provide care for family 
members and home school their children. 

However, the Covid-19 pandemic created 
signi� cant additional health and wellbeing 
concerns for our employees. There is a serious risk 
to health from contracting the virus and living 
with long-Covid, and our employees have also 
faced psychological stress such as isolation, grief 
through the loss of loved ones, fear of infection, 
fear of loss of work, managing additional caring 
responsibilities and rapid changes to service 
delivery. 

As we recover from the pandemic and continue 
our journey of transformation and review our 
services to meet future demands, we must ensure 
we have a holistic framework in place to support 
our employees’ health and wellbeing needs. The 
wellbeing of our employees must continue to be at 
the heart of everything we do.

This strategy will detail how we achieve our vision: 
‘Working together to fully support our employees’ 
health and wellbeing.’ 

Introduction

❝Fostering employee wellbeing is good 
for people and the organisation. Promoting 
wellbeing can help prevent stress and 
create positive working environments where 

individuals and organisations can thrive.❞
CIPD: Wellbeing at Work 2020

Page 73



Engagement

Well-being

Culture Leadership
People

management

CIPD: Wellbeing at Work 2020

5

Wellbeing drives and shapes our strategies 
and planning. Our Corporate Plan 2018-2023 is 
in� uenced by the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015. The Act adopts a sustainable 
development principle with a view to improving 
the economic, social, environmental and cultural 
well-being of Wales; and de� nes seven well-being 
goals, three of which focus on resilience, health and 
equality.

Our Corporate Plan details six locally determined 
wellbeing objectives. These include the 
development of healthier lifestyles and the 
improvement of wellbeing within our communities 
and the workplace. To support delivery, 
the Corporate Plan outlines seven Cabinet 
Commitments, the third commitment is ensuring 
we have an engaged and motivated workforce.

These commitments, together with the six 
wellbeing objectives set out in the Corporate 
Plan, shaped the transformation strategy #Team 
Caerphilly - Better Together. Creating the right 
culture and developing a workforce that is � t for 
the future are key objectives within the strategy. 
Underpinned by our core values and behaviours, 
it details our commitment to developing and 
supporting our workforce, changing relationships 
between managers and employees and creating a 
nurturing environment that enables our people to 
work e� ectively.

Our Sport and Active Recreation Strategy 2019-
2029 has an important role to play in our ability to 
achieve our corporate wellbeing objectives and 
has a clear vision  ‘to encourage healthy lifestyles 
and support our residents to be more active, more 
often’. The strategy details the actions required 
to meet our wellbeing goals and also recognises 
that future approaches demand that people take 
greater responsibility for their own health and 
levels of activity.

The Green Infrastructure Strategy 2020 outlines our 
vision to ensure Caerphilly is a green and healthy 
place to live, with a speci� c aim to ensure our green 
infrastructure provides enjoyment, relaxation, 

inspiration and wellbeing for local people, visitors 
and by extension our employees, many of which 
reside within the borough.

The Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 identi� es 
the need to create a workplace which is safe 
and inclusive; and promotes a positive working 
environment (Equality Objective 6 Inclusive, 
Diverse and Equal Workforce). 

The Workforce Development Strategy 2021-2024 
outlines our commitment to value our people, and 
sets out a number of priority actions which include 
the development of the Wellbeing Strategy.

The Council has a duty to safeguard and protect 
children, young people and vulnerable adults 
who may be at risk of harm and this is re� ected in 
our robust policies and procedures. Safeguarding 
means protecting the health, wellbeing and human 
rights of individuals and enabling them to live 
free from harm, abuse and neglect. Guided by 
our Corporate Safeguarding Policy and working 
proactively with partners, we will take action to 
ensure that our employees and everyone living 
within the County Borough is safe and protected 
and that our statutory responsibilities to safeguard 
and protect children, young people and vulnerable 
adults are e� ectively met.

In policy and in practice, we will seek to ensure 
the links between our corporate strategies and 
planning are well established and e� ective. 

Wellbeing lies at the core of how the Council ful� ls 
its strategic aims, conducts operations and delivers 
excellent services to our communities.

The Strategic Context

Page 74



SCHOOLS

3178 38.3%

 Number of employees  % of total workforce

 Education & Corporate Services ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 4998 60.2 
 Economy & Environment ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 1398 16.8
 Social Services & Housing ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 1908 23
 Total ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 8304 100

6

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

Our Employee Data

We are the largest employer within the borough, directly 
employing over 8000 employees (including schools)1, 

Education and Corporate Services 
account for nearly two thirds of 
our workforce, with nearly 40% 
in our schools provision alone.

1  Workforce Intelligence Analysis - July 2020
2  Where employees have multiple posts, the post holding the most contractual hours 
   will be considered the substantive role and has been used for statistical analysis.

providing our communities with a wide range 
of essential and non-essential public services.

Employee Profi le
Headcount2

Page 75



SCHOOLS

2623
31.6%

555
6.7%

176  2.1

176 2.1

397  4.8

462  5.6

579  7

501  6

273  3.3

1161 14

1487  17.9

1756  21.1

1201  14.5

217 2.6

7

Age profi le
■ Female count and % of workforce      ■ Male count and % of workforce      ■■ All employees count and % of workforce

 16-24 449 5.4

 25-34 1558 18.8

 35-44 1949 23.5 

 45-54 2335 28.1 

 55-65 1702 20.5

 <65 311 3.7

Gender
 ■ Female count and % of workforce    ■ Male count and % of workforce

 CCBC Total Workforce ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 6095  73.4 
  ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 2209  26.6
 Education & Corporate  ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 4132  49.8 
  ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 866  10.4
 Economy & Environment ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 547  6.6 
  ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 857  10.3
 Social Services & Housing ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 1416  17 
  ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 492  5.9

Disability
 Number of employees and % of workforce

 Yes ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 137 1.7 
 No ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 7168 86.3
 Undisclosed  ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 999 12.0

Page 76



1400

1200

1000

800

600

400

200

0

792

416

1337

139

441

1047

344

626

342

1190

924

806

693

424 

140

266

709
666

491

285

599

Physical

■ Exercise at home     ■ Exercise at gym     ■ Exercise outdoors     ■ Talk to others     ■ Hobby     ■ Eat well     ■ Drink sensibly

Mental Social

8

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

“Exercising outdoors” ranked highest in all three categories (physical, 
mental and social wellbeing), and “Talk to others” was ranked second 
highest by our employees for supporting their mental and social health, 
suggesting strong relationships are a key component for their wellbeing. 
“Eating well” is also an important lifestyle choice for our employees.

3 All non-school sta� .

Staff survey summary
In our recent Sta�  Survey (May 20021)3 one of the 
key themes was employee wellbeing. We received 
a total of 1596 completed surveys (approximately 
one third of the workforce polled) with a good 
distribution from across each directorate and 
service area. Of those who responded, 73% (1070 
sta� ) were female, which is re� ective of the current 
gender pro� le for the Council.

Activities enjoyed that support physical, mental and social wellbeing (number of responses)

The key � ndings were as follows.

Managing and maintaining 
our health and wellbeing
The survey asked employees to list what activities 
they did to support their physical, mental and 
social health and wellbeing.

Page 77



9

Care First - our Employee 
Assistance Programme
92% of employees indicated that they were aware 
of Care First and 22% of these con� rmed that 
they have used Care First services. The majority of 
employees (81%) that have used the service have 
found it useful or very useful.

The fi ndings show that there 
are high levels of awareness 
and satisfaction with Care 
First Services. 

Care First services used  Responses by number 

 Telephone advice ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 190
 Counselling ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 130
 Weekly articles ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  118
 Online advice ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  53
 Webinars ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  39
 Other ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  17

 Responses by number and %

 Good ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 879 56
 Very Good ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ 433 28
 Poor ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  179 11
 Very poor ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  44 3
 Don’t know ■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  36 2

Work life balance 
84% of employees felt their work life balance was 
good or very good.

One of the key reasons given as a contributing 
factor to good work life balance was agile working. 
Employees commented that agile working has 
meant they can spend more time with family, work 
� exibly around personal needs, improve their 
productivity, feel more trusted and support their 
caring responsibilities. This is particularly relevant 
given approximately two thirds of the employees 
who responded to the survey have caring 
responsibilities (40% being child care). 

Conversely for some employees working from 
home has negatively impacted their work life 
balance; employees commented that it is hard to 
separate work from home life, they have no space 
to work in and some feel isolated. 

Employees also reported that increased 
workloads and an absence of � exible working are 
contributing factors to poor work life balance.

Page 78



34%

55%

11%

■ Yes     ■ No     ■ Unsure

10

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

Staff Networks
Sta�  networks can help support the mental health 
and wellbeing of sta�  who are struggling or feel 
alone and isolated, they can o� er peer-to-peer 
support, help raise awareness of issues and give sta�  
a channel to feed back their views on strategies and 
policies that might a� ect them. 

Are you interested in joining a Sta�  Network?
11% indicated that they would be interested in a 
sta�  network group with 34% being unsure.  

The groups most sta�  indicated they would be 
interested in getting involved with were mental 
health and menopause.

There was also interest in groups for young people, 
LGBTQ+ and Black and Minority Ethnic groups but in 
smaller numbers.

Team Caerphilly
One of the key principles of Team Caerphilly is 
further supporting our workforce to feel proud 

 Responses by %

■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  86

■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  75

■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  90

■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  94

■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  80

■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  74

■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  82

■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  85

■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■  73

Taking everything into account 
I am satis� ed with my job

I am satis� ed with the opportunities 
I have to voice my opinions

I feel I am trusted to 
make the right decisions

I know what is expected of me

I feel there is a good working 
environment in my service area

I feel valued in my role

I am proud to tell others 
I work for Caerphilly CBC

I am proud to be a member 
of Team Caerphilly

The council is changing 
how we work for the better

These results are really positive, with 86% of employees satisfi ed in their roles, 
and is evidence that we are moving in the right direction. Our challenge is to 
continue to engage our employees to understand why some are unsatisfi ed.

and trusted, which are important elements of 
employee wellbeing.

Page 79



11

Sickness absence summary

4 Figures include short term and long term absences 

Sickness absence percentages4

Directorate Year
April 18 - March 19

Year
April 19 - March 20

Year
April 20 - March 21

Economy & Environment 5% 6.11% 4.61%

Education & Corporate Services 3.62% 3.76% 2.75%

Social Services & Housing 5.89% 5.92% 6.84%

Authority Total 4.38% 4.63% 4.03%

Top 10 reasons for absence Rank Order

Top 10 reasons for absence Year
April 18 - March 19

Year
April 19 - March 20

Year
April 20 - March 21

Stress (non-work related), depression, 
anxiety, neurasthenia, mental health, 
fatigue

1 1 1

Other musculo-skeletal problems 2 2 2

Stomach, liver, kidney and 
digestion including gastroenteritis 3 3 4

Infections including colds and � u 4 4 8

Back and neck problems 5 6 6

Injury 6 5 5

Chest and respiratory including chest 
infections 7 7 9

Work related stress 8 8 7

Neurological including headaches 
and migraines 9 9 N/A

Heart, blood pressure and circulation 10 N/A 10

Eye, ear, nose and mouth/dental 
including sinusitis N/A 10 N/A

Coronavirus N/A N/A 3

The Council’s percentage absence rate, although 
� uctuating, has decreased from 4.38% to 4.03% 
over the three year period. However, there is a 

To better understand our challenges and the 
actions we can prioritise to address them, it is 

notable increase in our Directorate of Social 
Service and Housing, from 5.89% to 6.84%, 
over the same period.

important we analyse our sickness absence data to 
identify patterns, trends and areas of concern.

Page 80



Implementing 
Transformation – 

changing how we work

Supporting employee 
wellbeing across diverse 

services and job types

Increasing 
workloads

Consistent 
and e� ective 
management

Managing 
stress

Raising awareness of key 
issues that a� ect health 

and wellbeing

Implementing 
an e� ective agile 

working model

Promoting self-care and 
ensuring employees take 

responsibility for their wellbeing

Tackling mental 
health issues

Medium Term 
Financial Plan 

(MTFP)

Recovering 
from 

Covid-19

Advancing 
technology and the 

impact on employees

12

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

5  Health and Well-being at Work Survey Report March 2021 - CIPD
6  Health and Well-being at Work Survey Report March 2021 - CIPD

Mental ill health (including non-work related stress) 
and musculoskeletal problems have for some 
time been the highest ranked reasons for absence 
within the Council. In the year from the 1st April 
2020 to 31st March 2021, mental ill-health and 
work related stress (which we record separately) 
accounted for 38.7% of all Full Time Equivalent 
(FTE) days lost. Musculoskeletal absences 
accounted for 9.9% of FTE days lost.

Our data broadly re� ects the national picture. In 
a recent survey conducted by the CIPD5 it was 
reported that mental ill health, musculoskeletal 
injuries and stress were the top three causes of 
long term sickness absence in UK work places. 
Two-� fths of the respondents reported in increase 
in stress-related absence over the last year and the 
two main causes were workloads and management 
style. 

Recent changes in the world of work mean 
that people now face wider organisational and 
environmental pressures. Intense and stressful 
working conditions are reported by as many as one 
in four workers. Many employees will also be under 
stress as a result of their personal circumstances. 
Such stressors have given rise to signi� cant 
increases in mental health issues and absence and 
these patterns are evident in our data. 

However, it should also be noted, that studies have 
shown that the right amount of positive stress can 
actually be bene� cial and is a major factor in our 
development. It can increase our ability to cope 
and be motivated, improve our performance, 
productivity and creativity and increase energy 
levels whilst reducing boredom and keeping us 
engaged.

The Impact of Covid-19
Notably, in the year from the 1st April 2020 to 31st 
March 2021, Coronavirus has become the third 
highest cause of absence for the Council behind 
mental ill health and musculoskeletal injuries, 
highlighting the signi� cant impact the pandemic 
is having on employee health and wellbeing in the 
Council. What is di�  cult to measure is the impact of 
the virus on mental health related absence, which 
has no doubt been e� ected through this period. 

The CIPD6 found that the impact of COVID-19 
on UK working lives shows a range of worsening 
mental health e� ects on many people, particularly 
those with an existing mental health condition. 
In November 2020, mental health charity Mind 
revealed that more people had experienced a 
mental health crisis during the COVID-19 pandemic 
than ever previously recorded.

Our Challenges

Page 81



13

Our Approach

Most employers now recognise the importance 
of wellbeing and improving employee wellness 
to e� ect positive changes. As an employer we 
must continue to put wellbeing at the very heart 
of everything we do, and our employees must 
recognise their responsibility to e� ectively manage 
their own health and wellbeing. 

Investing in employee wellbeing can lead to 
increased resilience, higher performance and 
productivity and reduced sickness absence. 
However, wellbeing initiatives often fall short of 
their potential because they stand alone, isolated 

from the everyday business. To gain real bene� t, 
our strategy must be focused on creating a culture 
and environment that supports the mental and 
physical health and wellbeing of our employees. 

We understand that wellbeing is not a “one size � ts 
all” and the support needed for one person may 
di� er considerably from the next person. We must 
therefore ensure our strategy is holistic and wide 
reaching. 

To achieve our aim, the Wellbeing Strategy will 
focus on � ve key areas of wellbeing:

How we support the mental and physical health of our employees 
and facilitate healthy lifestyle choices. 

1. Health and Lifestyle

How we provide a safe and healthy work environment that meets 
the needs of our employees and supports them to be e� ective. 

How we build a culture of trust, strong core values, equality and 
strong collective leadership.

How we support personal growth and development. 

How we support and contribute to employee � nancial wellbeing.

2. Environment

3. Culture and Values

4. Personal Development

5. Financial Wellbeing

In each area we will review what we do and identify priority actions to strengthen that area.

Page 82



14

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

1. Health and lifestyle 
What we do
People Services
Our People Services Section incorporating Human 
Resources, Health & Safety and Communications 
teams work collaboratively together to provide 
specialist advice, guidance and support to 
managers and employees as outlined below.

Occupational Health Service
Our in-house service provides health and 
wellbeing advice to sta�  and managers in relation 
to � tness to work and health surveillance. The 
team supports sta�  to take care of their own 
physical and mental health to maximise their 
work attendance. The service is provided by 
Occupational Health Physicians, Physiotherapists 
and Nurses.

Sickness Absence Management Support
HR, incorporating a dedicated Managing 
Attendance Team, o� er advice, guidance and 
support to sta�  in relation to their wellbeing and 
to managers to assist them to e� ectively and 
equitably manage their sta�  including health 
issues. 

Policies, Procedures and Guidance
Our policies and procedures support the wellbeing 
of our employees when they are at work or absent 
due to sickness and ill health.
We have developed speci � c policies and guidance 
to address health issues, raise awareness and guide 
our managers on how to provide relevant and 
appropriate support including the No Smoking 
Policy, Menopause in the Workplace factsheet, 
Managing Cancer in the Workplace – Guidance for 
Managers and the Substance Misuse Policy.

Our Domestic Abuse, Gender-based Violence 
and Sexual Violence Policy provides support and 
guidance for our managers to deal with di�  cult 
and sensitive issues. In accordance with the 
National Training Framework on violence against 

women, domestic abuse and sexual violence, all 
sta�  are expected to undertake training according 
to their role. The minimum requirement being 
Group 1 training providing basic awareness of 
what violence against women, domestic abuse 
and sexual violence is, how to recognise domestic 
abuse and sexual violence, and to know the help 
available to victims. 

Cycle to Work Scheme
The Cycle to Work Scheme is a salary sacri� ce 
initiative that encourages alternative commute/
travel to improve health and � tness and reduce 
carbon emissions and environmental impact. We 
have recently widened the scope of the initiative to 
include electric bikes up to the value of £5000. 

Corporate Eyecare Voucher Scheme
Employees who are regular users of display screen 
equipment or who require prescription safety 
glasses can apply for the vouchers which entitle 
the user to a free eye and eyesight test, a choice of 
glasses from a selected range (subject to eligibility) 
or a 15 per cent discount o�  glasses in store. 

People Services Digital and online 
support
Health Wall 
Features links to organisations that provide expert 
information and advice for a number of health 
related issues.

Wellbeing@work: Covid 19 Webpage
Provides information, resources and links to 
support our employees’ wellbeing.

Wellbeing@work Bulletin
Our monthly bulletin contains information, advice 
and links to digital resources to support employee 
wellbeing. 

Page 83



15

Wellbeing@work: Monthly Themes
Focused on promoting healthy lifestyle choices 
and raising awareness on topics that impact 
physical and mental health.

Employee Assistance Programme 
We work with Care � rst, who provide a completely 
independent and strictly con� dential service for 
our employees which includes:

Counselling Service
Care First Counsellors, who are members of 
the British Association for Counselling and 
Psychotherapy (BACP), are available 24/7 to 
help with work-related issues such as feeling 
pressure, work-load, changes at work, bullying 
or harassment. Care � rst also advise on personal 
problems such as family matters, stress and loss or 
bereavement. 

Information and Advice Service
Highly trained, professional information specialists 
can provide comprehensive answers and 
assistance on a wide range of issues which a� ect 
daily life including advice on � nancial issues and 
debt management.

Management Support
Provide managers with support in their 
management role.

Care � rst Lifestyle
A comprehensive online information, support and 
wellness resource, where employees and managers 
can access information, advice, webinars and 
online counselling to address problems occurring 
as part of every-day life, not just work related 
issues.

Care � rst Zest
An interactive health management online portal 
designed to help individuals pro-actively manage 
and improve all aspects of their mental and 
physical health - including stress management and 
resilience, weight management, diet and nutrition, 
and � tness and personal training. 

Wellbeing Group
The Health and Wellbeing Group was established 
in 2010 to support the improved health of 
employees. The group has representatives from 
across the Council including Trade Union partners.

Health Awareness
Initiatives, events and promotion
We run a series of initiatives and promotions 
throughout the calendar year to raise awareness of 
topics that impact physical and mental health. For 
example lunchtime walks, free lunchtime bike hire 
and the Team Steps Challenge.

Sports and Active Recreation 
Sports & Leisure Service
The service actively promote sport and active 
recreation and operate a wide range of active 
recreation activities, sites and venues. Sports 
development initiatives and partnerships include 
the free swimming programme, the Caerphilly 10k 
and National Exercise Referral Scheme. 

Workplace Initiatives
Recognising the need for employees to take 
responsibility for their health, we promote a range 
of healthy lifestyle initiatives in the workplace, 
encouraging employees to engage in activities 
during the working day. For example lunchtime 
walks, free lunchtime bike hire and the Team Steps 
Challenge.

Corporate Membership Scheme
Our employees enjoy a 20% discounted rate for 
leisure centre membership throughout the county 
borough.

Trade Unions
Our recognised Trade Union partners provide 
advice and support to their members on a 
wide range of employment matters, including 
wellbeing. 

Page 84



16

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

No. Priority Actions Measure of Success

1.1 Update our HR policies and procedures. All relevant policies and procedures are reviewed 
to ensure they remain inclusive, � t-for-purpose and 
re� ective of our values.

1.2 Engage and support employees to volunteer 
as Mental Health Champions and explore 
opportunities to train employees as Mental 
Health First Aiders.

Mental Health Champions establish e� ective 
channels of communication and are trained to 
provide appropriate support to employees who 
seek out their support. 

1.3 Undertake a review of the Wellbeing Group 
and repurpose the terms of reference to align 
to the principles of the Wellbeing Strategy.

Terms of Reference are agreed. Meetings are 
regularly held supported by an Agenda and 
minutes taken. 

1.4 Develop our wellbeing digital platforms and 
communications.

Raised employee awareness of the digital resources 
available to support their own wellbeing and 
improve their lifestyle choices.

1.5 Review our Corporate Membership Scheme Enhanced o� er and improved levels of 
membership across our workforce.

1.6 Promote healthy work habits and explore 
new opportunities to engage our employees 
in exercise. 

Employees proactively engage in healthy work 
habits and exercise to support their wellbeing.

Page 85



17

2. Environment 
What we do
Physical Environment
Health & Safety
Our Health and Safety team provide managers 
and employees with comprehensive advice, 
support and resources to ensure that the working 
environment and work practices are safe and 
contribute to employees’ safety, health and 
wellbeing. We deliver a comprehensive portfolio of 
health and safety related training courses to impart 
information, encourage learning and to support 
our positive safety culture.

Facilities
A number of support services work collaboratively 
and cohesively to ensure that our work places 
are designed, equipped and maintained to be 
ergonomic, healthy and safe. In addition to 
promoting a safe place of work this approach 
ensures the provision of comfortable spaces for 
rest and socialisation.

Work Environment
Agile Working
Wide scale agile working practices have 
been implemented in accordance with Welsh 
Government guidance, enabling our employees 
to work � exibly to support their work life balance, 
whilst continuing to deliver excellent services to 
our people during the Covid-19 pandemic. The 
principles of agile working, developed in response 
to the Covid-19 crisis, will form the foundation for 
long term sustainable agile working, enabling new 
ways of working, focused on what we do and not 
where we do it.

Policies and Schemes
Our employees have the opportunity to take 
advantage of excellent family-friendly work-life 
balance policies and schemes which include (but 
are not limited to) a generous Flexible Working 
Scheme, Child Care Voucher Scheme, Career Break 
Scheme, Carers’ Policy, Home Working Scheme, 
Leave of Absence Policy, Adoption Leave Policy, 
Job-Share Policy, Reservists Policy and Parental/
Shared Parental Leave Schemes.

E� ective Management
Within our strategies and practices our focus is very 
much on e� ective and supportive management. 
Individual management style will vary from 
manager to manager, but our expectation is that 
our managers nurture e� ective team working and 
healthy, productive relationships with employees 
built on mutual respect and trust. Through our My 
Time and My Time Extra programme, managers 
can have e� ective two-way discussions where 
employees can discuss their wellbeing and 
personal development needs.

Page 86



18

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

No. Priority Actions Measure of Success

2.1 Repurpose and modernise Ty Penallta 
and other o�  ces to facilitate agile 
working.

Workspaces will be recon� gured, modernised and 
furnished with appropriate equipment to facilitate agile 
working. Workspaces will support employee wellbeing, 
encouraging healthy lifestyle choices and socialisation 
enabling working relationships to � ourish.

2.2 Implement a sustainable model of 
� exible/agile working for the Council.

Supported by the modernised workplace, � exible and 
family friendly working policies are � t for purpose and 
in place to support the agile workforce.

2.3 Expand the scope and provision of 
training to further upskill our managers 
to support employee health and 
wellbeing.

Management training has been implemented and 
evident in practice. 

2.4 Update our H&S policies and procedures. All relevant policies and procedures are reviewed to 
ensure they remain � t-for-purpose and re� ective of our 
values and objectives.

Page 87



19

 3. Culture and Values 
What we do
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
Equality underpins our strategies, policies and 
planning and we are committed to creating a 
workplace which is safe and inclusive, where our 
employees feel valued and empowered to be 
themselves. 

Strategic Equality Plan (2020-2024) 
Our Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 outlines our 
corporate strategic objectives.

Equalities Team
Our Equalities Team drive the agenda locally, 
championing diversity and inclusion and 
facilitating equalities and welsh language training.

Celebrating Diversity 
We recognise important issues and celebrate 
diversity through the promotion of national 
awareness events. For example LGBTQ+ History 
Month and Black Lives Matter. Caerphilly County 
Borough Council is once again joining the Proud 
Council partners to support and promote equality 
for LGBTQ+ communities and we are working with 
Stonewall Cymru to re-establish our membership 
and position in the Workplace Diversity Champions 
Index. 

Charters, Campaigns and Commitments
We were the � rst local authority in Wales to adopt 
the Unity Over Division Charter, joining with our 
Trade Union partners, Unison, GMB and Unite 
to work toward a shared goal of inclusivity and 
equality in the workplace.

We have signed up to the Dying To Work 
Charter, which sets out an agreed way that our 
employees will be supported, protected and 
guided throughout their employment, following a 
terminal diagnosis.

We are the � rst council in the UK to sign up to 
the Pledge to Be Seen Campaign, and we are 
committed to ensuring equal representation for 
people with dis� gurements across Wales and 
better representing people with a visible di� erence 
in our communications.

We have demonstrated our ongoing support of 
the Armed Forces community by signed the Armed 
Forces Covenant (AFC), and are committed to 
ensuring that those who serve or have served in 
the armed forces, and their families, are treated 
fairly.

Disability Con� dent Employer
We are proud to be a Disability Con� dent Employer, 
committed to supporting the recruitment, 
retention and development of disabled people 
who support our services to achieve success.

Leadership and Strategy
Team Caerphilly
#Team Caerphilly - Better Together is our operating 
model. The strategy outlines our mission and 
details our objectives and priority actions for 
transformational change. It provides clarity of 
purpose for the organisation, our services and 
our employees. The message is clear that our 
employees are at the heart of everything we 
do. Underpinned by our core values (Trusted, 
Open and Transparent, United and Connected, 
Innovative, Resilient), the strategy outlines how we 
will fully support our employees to be ‘brave, bold 
and brilliant’.

Corporate Volunteering
We are developing a Corporate Volunteering 
Policy and exploring how we overcome barriers to 
enable our employees to volunteer within the local 
community.

Page 88



20

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

Employee Engagement
We listen and respond to views and opinions 
through sta�  surveys, engagement events 
and via collective consultation with our Trade 
Union partners through agreed processes. Our 
Communications and Engagement Strategy 
2019-2022 and Consultation and Engagement 
Framework 2020-2025 outline actions to improve 
employee engagement and create greater 
opportunities to develop stronger links with our 
communities.

Support for Charities
We support vulnerable people both within our 
communities and nationally, not only through 
the excellent work of our front line services, but 

through charitable events and initiatives including 
Operation Santa, the Mayor’s Charity, Children in 
Need, Comic Relief and Sports Relief. As we move 
into a more agile model of service delivery, we will 
ensure our employees can continue to engage in 
charitable events and initiatives.

Foundation Living Wage Employer
We’re incredibly proud 
to be accredited by the 
Living Wage Foundation 
and our commitment 
to voluntarily pay our 
employees a wage that 
re� ects what we believe to 
be the true cost of living.

No. Priority Actions Measure of Success

3.1 Deliver the key workforce objectives of the 
Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024.

Objectives are delivered in line with agreed 
timeframes.

3.2 Working with the Trade Unions, continue to 
raise awareness of all forms of discrimination 
and the requirement to e� ectively challenge 
prejudice at source.

Embed a proactive approach to building a more 
inclusive workplace, ful� lling our commitments 
to the 5 core principles of the Unity Over Division 
Charter.

3.3 Upgrade our membership of the Disability 
Con� dent Scheme.

Membership upgraded from Employer to Leader.

3.4 Re-establish our membership of Stonewall 
Cymru.

Join Stonewall Cymru’s Diversity Champions 
Programme and assess our progress using the 
Workplace Equality Index.

3.5 Publish the Neurodiversity Factsheet and 
work with the Trade Unions to organise 
neurodiversity training.

Employees and managers can access the 
Neurodiversity Factsheet online and improve their 
understanding with training. 

3.6 Develop the Sta�  Recognition Awards 
initiative.

We better evidence how we value our employees’ 
contributions by recognising achievement. 

3.7 Develop and implement diversity and 
inclusivity training for our Members.

Members receive current and timely diversity and 
inclusivity training.

3.8 Conduct regular pulse surveys to support 
our more comprehensive sta�  surveys.

Data and analytics used to inform decision making 
and assess progress against targets in key areas.

Page 89



21

 4. Personal Development 
What we do
Workforce Development Strategy
Our Workforce Development Strategy outlines our 
strategic approach and priority actions required to 
support the personal growth and development of 
our employees, creating a resilient workforce that 
is � t for the future. 

Workforce Planning
To support our broader workforce development 
goals and initiatives, workforce planning will 
become embedded as an essential business 
process. A Workforce Planning Framework is 
being developed to help translate strategy into 
practice and equip our managers with a tool to 
proactively organise the workforce, e� ectively plan 
for succession and identify personal development 
needs and skills gaps.

Learning and Development
We organise and facilitate a range of learning 
and development opportunities via corporate 
initiatives, service speci� c training, Health & 
Safety training, accredited programmes and 
courses delivered via training providers or higher 
education and our Joint Workforce Development 
Team (a collaborative service with Blaenau Gwent 
which specialises in delivering social care training 
for both authorities).

MeUs
We have joined forces with Gwent Police to launch 
an innovative joint leadership programme aimed 
at developing a new generation of bold and 
innovative leaders. 

The 12 month leadership programme will be 
delivered by the University of South Wales and 
the initial cohort will be instrumental in helping to 
shape the direction and content of the course for 
participants in future.

Coaching
We are fully invested in developing a strong 
coaching culture and establishing a network of 
coaches across our services.

Career Development
We have established development pathways in a 
number of service areas, a� ording employees the 
opportunity to gain professional quali� cations 
and/or training to support their current roles and 
further their progression within their chosen � elds.

My Time/My Time Extra
Our My Time/My Time Extra programme facilitates 
positive conversations between employees and 
line managers. With a focus on development, 
it provides a mechanism for employees to take 
responsibility of their own personal development.

First Aid, AED and Fire Wardens
We support our employees to volunteer as 
workplace � rst aiders and � re wardens, providing 
funded training and a � nancial incentive, in line 
with service needs and requirements. We also 
facilitate Automated External De� brillation (AED) 
training for all employees in support of recent 
campaigns.

Page 90



22

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

No. Priority Actions Measure of Success

4.1 Implement the Workforce Development 
Strategy 2021-2024.

Agreed strategy in place that outlines our strategic 
approach and priority actions.

4.2 Deliver the Priority Actions outlined in 
the Workforce Development Strategy 
2021. 

Priority actions are delivered in accordance with the 
action plan and achieve the desired outcomes and 
bene� ts for the Council.

4.3 Implement Workforce Planning. Workforce planning will be undertaken on a regular 
and scheduled basis facilitating more proactive people 
resourcing, succession analysis and identi� cation of 
priority learning and development needs.

4.4 Embed the My Time/My Time Extra 
programme and train our managers to 
deliver e� ective conversations.

Employees receive regular My Time conversations and 
an annual My Time Extra conversation where personal 
and professional development needs are discussed 
and planned.

Page 91



23

 5. Financial Wellbeing 
What we do
Fair Pay
We continue to review and monitor our grading 
protocols with the Trade Unions and ensure all 
jobs across the Council are remunerated fairly 
and equitably in line with our agreed grading 
procedures. Additional bene� ts also include (but 
are not limited to) a generous employer pension 
contribution, annual leave entitlement and paid 
sickness absence. We are also committed to paying 
the Foundation Living Wage minimum rate of pay, 
meaning our employees occupying our lower 
graded posts enjoy an enhanced rate of pay for 
their work which we believe better re� ects the true 
cost of living.

Contracts
We provide varying types of contracts of 
employment across our services to meet our 
business needs. Our Flexible Working Policies 
enables employees, where appropriate, to � ex their 
contractual arrangements to meet their personal 
circumstances.  

Policies and Procedures
We have generous leave of absence policies and 
schemes which provide our employees with paid 
leave for various types of absence which include 
(but are not limited to) sickness, bereavement, 
maternity and shared parental leave. 

Retirement Planning
We support our employees through this signi� cant 
undertaking by providing advice and guidance, 

through our Flexible and Early Retirement Schemes 
and by running pre-retirement courses. 

Care First
Our employee assistance programme provides 24 
hour support to our employees, including advice 
on � nancial issues and debt management.

Trade Unions
Our recognised Trade Union partners are on hand 
to support their members, providing advice on 
issues such as bene� ts and debt management, 
signposting to the appropriate organisations for 
expert help or through the facilitation of � nancial 
assistance schemes.

Credit Unions
We facilitate Credit Union payments for our 
employees through our payroll system. Credit 
unions o� er an alternative to borrowing from, 
or saving with national banks. Owned and 
democratically controlled by its members, they 
o� er a range of � nancial services including loans 
and savings accounts.

Employee Bene� ts 
There are a number of initiatives available to our 
employees which have � nancial bene� ts (as well 
as other wellbeing bene� ts). These include our 
Child Care Voucher, Cycle to Work and Green Car 
salary sacri� ce schemes, Corporate Eyecare Voucher 
Scheme and discounted leisure centre membership.

No. Priority Actions Measure of Success

5.1 Undertake a Non-Guaranteed Hours 
Arrangement (NGHA) review.

Work with managers and Trade Unions to review and 
monitor our contractual arrangements to ensure they 
are � t-for-purpose and provide secure employment.

5.2 Periodically promote the � nancial advice 
provided by Care First.

Raised awareness of the support available to our 
employees through Care First.

5.3 Review our processes for recording and 
analysing retirement feedback and data.

Consultation, feedback and data will be used to inform 
and shape our pre-retirement support and training.

5.4 Review our employee bene� ts packages Employees continue to enjoy excellent bene� ts and 
schemes that help support their � nancial wellbeing.

Page 92



24

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

Our Responsibilities

Cabinet/Council
  To endorse the strategy and review progress 
against agreed actions.

Corporate Management Team and 
Leadership Team
  Provide senior level commitment and support 
for the strategy.

  Promote wellbeing across the organisation, 
nurturing a culture and environment where 
employees are given the support, opportunity 
and resources to grow and perform at an 
optimal level.

  Working within the � nancial constraints of the 
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP), ensure 
appropriate resources are available within the 
agreed budget.

  Lead by example and champion our values. 
Ensure fairness, equality and inclusivity is 
instilled across the organisation and driven 
from the top.

HR Strategy Group
   Responsible for the implementation of the 
strategy and the review of progress against 
targets.

Health and Safety Committee
   Responsible for reviewing the measures taken 
to ensure health and safety at work which 
includes mental health and wellbeing.

Management Network/Operational 
Management
   Think more strategically about the workforce 
and the demands placed upon individuals. Use 
the Workforce Planning Framework to develop 
detailed workforce plans and strategies to 
mitigate risks and plug skills gaps.

   Proactively manage employee wellbeing, 
creating a positive work environment and 
identifying concerns early.

   Promote the importance of self-care and 
encourage employees to take ownership of 
their health and wellbeing.

   Work with HR to proactively manage employee 
health, seeking early interventions to mitigate 
absence. 

   Hold regular My Time conversations with 
employees, where employees can discuss their 
wellbeing and personal development needs.

   Nurture e� ective team working and healthy, 
productive relationships with employees.

   Promote an inclusive team environment which 
champions equality, diversity and fairness and 
address any form of discrimination.

   Ensure that health and safety risks are managed 
by e� ective risk assessments, safe working 
practices, training and employee engagement 
on all matters relating to their health, safety and 
wellbeing.

People Services
   Responsible for the implementation of the 
strategy and delivery of the priority actions. 

   HR will continue to proactively advise 
and support our managers in respect of 
sickness absence policy and procedure, 
supporting employee attendance through our 
Occupational Health provision. 

   Review HR and Health & Safety policies and 
procedures with the Trade Unions to support 
the wellbeing agenda.

   Work closely with our recognised Trade 
Unions to achieve positive outcomes for our 
employees.

  Work in collaboration with our partners 
across the Council, and externally, to provide 
wellbeing training and initiatives.

Page 93



25

The Wellbeing Group
   Continue to support and promote the improved 
health and wellbeing of employees via 
representatives across the Council and Trade 
Unions.

All Employees
   E� ectively manage personal wellbeing, make 
good lifestyle choices and utilise the resources 
available to maintain physical and mental 
health. 

  Take early action to seek help and support 
to help prevent issues escalating into serious 
health concerns. 

  Ensure regular My Time conversations 
are undertaken, prepare for them and 
constructively develop targeted personal 
development plans with managers.

  Live by our values of equality, diversity and 
inclusion in the workplace and challenge all 
forms of discrimination and bias.

  Actively participate in employee engagement 
initiatives which provide an opportunity to 
voice opinion and in� uence decision making.

Trade Unions
   Work in partnership with the Council, striving 
for positive outcomes for the workforce.

  Cultivate an e� ective partnership with o�  cers 
to help develop wellbeing training and 
initiatives. 

  Work proactively with the Council in the 
development and implementation of new and 
updated policies and procedures.

Page 94



26

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

Delivery, Monitoring and Governance

The Strategy has been developed by People 
Services and approved by Cabinet. The HR Strategy 
Group will be responsible for the implementation 

of the strategy. Progress against targets and 
objectives will be monitored and reviewed as 
follows:

Our trade union partners will be fully consulted 
in the delivery of this strategy with six monthly 
brie� ngs at Corporate JCC.

Group/Body Format Timeframe

HR Strategy Brie� ng 6 Monthly

CMT Report 6 Monthly

P&R Scrutiny Committee Report Annually

Cabinet Report Annually

Page 95



2827

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

 Appendix
Employee Wellbeing Strategic Action Plan

PRIORITY ACTIONS METHOD OF DELIVERY / PROJECT LEAD OFFICER PROJECT GOVERNANCE TIMESCALE

1.1 Update our HR policies and procedures. HR and H&S Policy Review Project Head of People Services ● HR Strategy Group
● Health & Safety Committee

2022

1.2 Engage and support employees to volunteer 
as Mental Health Champions and explore 
opportunities to train employees as Mental Health 
First Aiders. 

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream – Wellbeing)

Head of People Services ● HR Strategy Group
● Health & Safety Committee

2022

1.3 Undertake a review of the Wellbeing Group and 
repurpose the terms of reference to align to the 
principles of the Wellbeing Strategy.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream – Wellbeing)

Head of People Services ● HR Strategy Group
● Health & Safety Committee

Quarter 4
2021-2022

1.4 Develop our wellbeing digital platforms and 
communications.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Wellbeing)

Head of People Services ● HR Strategy Group 2022

1.5 Review our Corporate Membership Scheme Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream – Wellbeing)

Leisure Services Manager ● Corporate Management Team Quarter 3
2021 - 2022

1.6 Promote healthy work habits and explore new 
opportunities to engage our employees in 
exercise. 

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Wellbeing)

Leisure Services Manager ● HR Strategy Group 2022

2.1 Repurpose and modernise Ty Penallta and other 
o�  ces to facilitate agile working. 

Corporate Review: Flexible Working Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board Quarter 4
2021 - 2022

2.2 Implement a sustainable model of � exible/agile 
working for the Council.

Corporate Review: Flexible Working Head of Infrastructure ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board 2022

2.3 Expand the scope and provision of training to 
further upskill our managers to support employee 
health and wellbeing.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Management Training)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● HR Strategy Group

Quarter 4
2022 - 2023

2.4 Update our H&S policies and procedures. HR and H&S Policy Review Project Head of People Services ● HR Strategy Group
● Health & Safety Committee

2022

3.1 Deliver the key workforce objectives of the 
Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024.

Strategic Equality Plan (2020-2024) Head of Transformation ● Corporate Management Team All actions delivered 
by 2024

3.2 Working with the Trade Unions, continue to raise 
awareness of all forms of discrimination and the 
requirement to e� ectively challenge prejudice at 
source.

HR and H&S Policy Review Project Head of People Services ● Corporate JCC Quarter 4 
2021-22

P
age 96



3029

Employee Wellbeing Strategy

PRIORITY ACTIONS METHOD OF DELIVERY / PROJECT LEAD OFFICER PROJECT GOVERNANCE TIMESCALE

3.3 Upgrade our membership of the Disability 
Con� dent Scheme.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream – Wellbeing)

Head of People Services ● Corporate Management Team
● HR Strategy Group

2022

3.4 Re-establish our membership of Stonewall Cymru. Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Wellbeing)

Head of People Services ● Corporate Management Team
● HR Strategy Group

2022 

3.5 Publish the Neurodiversity Factsheet and work 
with the Trade Unions to organise neurodiversity 
training.

HR and H&S Policy Review Project Head of People Services ● HR Strategy Group Quarter 3
2021 - 2022

3.6 Develop the Sta�  Recognition Awards initiative. Corporate Communications & Engagement 
Strategy 2019-2023.

Head of Transformation ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board Quarter 4
2021-2022

3.7 Develop and implement diversity and inclusivity 
training for our Members.

Strategic Equality Plan (2020-2024) Head of Legal Services & 
Monitoring O�  cer

● Team Caerphilly Programme Board 2022

3.8 Conduct regular pulse surveys to support our 
more comprehensive sta�  surveys.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Wellbeing)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board 2024

4.1 Implement the Workforce Development Strategy 
2021-2024.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Workforce Development 
Strategy)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee 
● Cabinet

Quarter 3
2021-2022

4.2 Deliver the Priority Actions outlined in the 
Workforce Development Strategy 2021-2024.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Workforce Development 
Strategy)

Head of People Services ● HR Strategy Group
● Corporate Management Team
● Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee 
● Cabinet

All actions delivered 
by 2024

4.3 Implement Workforce Planning Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Workforce Planning Framework 
and Manager Toolkit)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● HR Strategy Group

2022

4.4 Embed the My Time/My Time Extra programme 
and train our managers to deliver e� ective 
conversations.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Management Training)

Head of People Services ● Team Caerphilly Programme Board
● HR Strategy Group

Quarter 3
2021-2022

5.1 Undertake a Non-Guaranteed Hours Arrangement 
(NGHA) review.

Contract Review Project Head of People Services ● HR Strategy
● Corporate Management Team

Quarter 4 
2021-2022

5.2 Periodically promote the � nancial advice provided 
by Care First.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Wellbeing)

Head of People Services ● HR Strategy Group Quarter 3
2021-2022

5.3 Review our processes for recording and analysing 
retirement feedback and data.

Corporate Review: Workforce Development 
(Workstream - Wellbeing)

Head of People Services ● HR Strategy
● Corporate Management Team

2022

5.4 Review our employee bene� ts packages HR and H&S Policy Review Project Head of People Services ● HR Strategy Group
● Health & Safety Committee

2022

 

P
age 97



Page 98



1 
 

Caerphilly County Borough Council - Integrated Impact Assessment       APPENDIX 2 
 
This integrated impact assessment (IIA) has been designed to help support the Council in making informed and effective decisions whilst ensuring compliance 
with a range of relevant legislation, including: 
 

 Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011   Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 

 Socio-economic Duty – Sections 1 to 3 of the Equality Act 2010   Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

 Statutory Consultation v Doctrine of Legitimate Expectation and Gunning Principles 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  Section 3 Socio-economic Duty only needs to be completed if proposals are of a strategic nature or when reviewing previous strategic 
decisions.  See page 6 of the Preparing for the Commencement of the Socio-economic Duty Welsh Government Guidance. 
 
 

1. Proposal Details 

Lead Officer Head of Service Service Area & Department Date 

Geraldine Burns Lynne Donovan People Services 01/09/2021 

 
 

What is the proposal to be assessed?  Provide brief details of the proposal and provide a link to any relevant report or documents. 
 

The Council’s proposed ‘Employee Wellbeing Strategy 2021 – 24’, attached at Appendix 1.   

Proposal aim:  To work together to fully support the wellbeing needs of employees by placing wellbeing at the heart of everything we do and ensuring we 

have a holistic framework in place. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

P
age 99

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf


2 
 

2. Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011  
(The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
advance equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between different groups).  Please note that an individual may have 
more than one protected characteristic. 

Protected Characteristics 
Does the proposal have any positive, 
negative or neutral impacts on the 
protected characteristics and how?   

If there are negative impacts how will 
these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view? 

The strategy outlines our commitments to supporting people regardless of protected characteristics. 

Age (people of all ages) Positive impact – Strengthening 
Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart 
of this strategy.  
 
By strengthening the key areas of 
wellbeing, employees of all ages will 
benefit from a work environment that 
fully supports their needs. 
 

 Evidence of potential positive impacts 
collated through extensive research 
including results of the CIPD Health 
and Well-being at Work Survey Report 
March 2021, our staff survey and 
manager engagement. 

Disability (people with 
disabilities/ long term 
conditions) 

Positive impact – Strengthening 
Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart 
of this strategy. 
 
The strategy outlines our commitments 
to supporting people with disabilities or 
long term/terminal diagnoses and 
identifies actions to continuously 
develop.  
 

 
 
 
 

We are a Disability Confident 
Employer and committed to playing a 
leading role in changing attitudes, 
behaviour and culture; benefitting 
from inclusive recruitment practices. 
 
We are also committed to enhancing 
our position to Disability Confident 
Leader. 
 

Gender Reassignment 
(anybody who’s gender 
identity or gender 
expression is different to the 
sex they were assigned at 
birth) 

Positive impact – Strengthening 
Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart 
of this strategy. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

P
age 100

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues


3 
 

Marriage or Civil 
Partnership (people who 
are married or in a civil 
partnership) 

Positive impact – Strengthening 
Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart 
of this strategy. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
(women who are pregnant 
and/or on maternity leave) 

Positive impact – Strengthening 
Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart 
of this strategy.  
 
The Council supports the protections 
given to staff who are pregnant and/or 
on maternity leave under UK law.  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Race (people from black, 
Asian and minority ethnic 
communities and different 
racial backgrounds) 

Positive impact - Strengthening 
Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart 
of this strategy. 
 
The strategy has a section dedicated to 
culture and values, and outlines actions 
to develop inclusive practice, enhance 
our membership of campaigns and 
create opportunity for staff to join staff 
networks. 
 
The Wellbeing Strategy makes specific 
and targeted links to our Strategic 
Equality Plan and actions identified 
within. 
 

 
 
 
 

Our staff survey indicated that there is 
an appetite to develop networks for 
black and minority ethnic groups.  
 
 
 

Religion or Belief (people 
with different religions and 
beliefs including people 
with no beliefs) 

Positive impact - Strengthening 
Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart 
of this strategy 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 101



4 
 

Sex (women and men, girls 
and boys and those who 
self-identify their gender) 

Positive impact - Strengthening 
Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart 
of this strategy 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Sexual Orientation 
(lesbian, gay, bisexual, 
heterosexual, other) 

Positive impact - Strengthening 
Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart 
of this strategy. 
 
The strategy outlines our commitments 
to championing difference and inclusion 
and identifies actions to continuously 
develop.  
 

 
 
 
 

The Council currently: 

 Is a members of Proud Councils 

 Has2 LGBTQ+ Ambassadors 

 Takes an active role at Pride Cymru 

 Raises awareness annual 
awareness of LGBTQ+ History 
Month, Pride etc.  

 
 
 

  

P
age 102



5 
 

3. Socio-economic Duty (Strategic Decisions Only) 
(The Socio-economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key decision making.  Socio-economic 
disadvantage means living on a low income compared to others in Wales, with little or no accumulated wealth, leading to greater material deprivation, restricting the 
ability to access basic goods and services) 

 
Please consider these additional vulnerable groups and the impact your proposal may or may not have on them:  
 Single parents and vulnerable families  
 People with low literacy/numeracy  
 Pensioners 
 Looked after children  
 Homeless people 

 

 Carers 
 Armed Forces Community 
 Students 
 Single adult households 
 People misusing substances 

 People who have experienced the asylum system 
 People of all ages leaving a care setting 
 People living in the most deprived areas in Wales (WIMD)  
 People involved in the criminal justice system  

Socio-economic Disadvantage 
Does the proposal have any positive, 
negative or neutral impacts on the 
following and how?   

If there are negative impacts how 
will these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view? 

Low Income / Income Poverty 
(cannot afford to maintain regular 
payments such as bills, food, 
clothing, transport etc.) 

Positive impact - The strategy 

identifies the importance of financial 

wellbeing as a key factor in overall 

employee wellbeing. The strategy 

outlines our commitment to 

strengthening this area and identifies 

priority actions to further support 

our employees. This includes: 

A non-guaranteed hours’ 

arrangement review to restrict/limit 

the use of casual zero hours 

contracts moving forward and thus 

provide more sustainable 

employment opportunities.  

Continued commitment to pay the 
foundation living wage which 
supports young people starting in 
modern apprenticeship roles and 
colleagues in entry level positions to 

 
 
 
 
 

The Council’s Pay Policy Statement 
2021.  
 
Workforce Partnership Council 
(WPC) Agreement on the acceptable 
use of Non-Guaranteed Hours 
Arrangements 
 
 
 
 

P
age 103

http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx


6 
 

be paid a living wage. It is noted that 
this is often more than what is 
offered for comparable roles in the 
private sector. 
 
Development of our employee 
benefits packages. 
 
The Employee Wellbeing Strategy has 
strategic links to our Workforce 
Development Strategy, working in 
synergy to support and develop the 
workforce. A key action in the 
Workforce Development Strategy is 
to explore and develop new 
initiatives to enhance work 
opportunities for our residents, 
utilising government funded 
employment programmes to widen 
our provision of apprenticeships, 
work placements and work 
experience opportunities. 
 

Low and/or No Wealth (enough 
money to meet basic living costs 
and pay bills but have no savings to 
deal with any unexpected  spends 
and no provisions for the future) 
 

Positive impact.  See above. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Material Deprivation (unable to 
access basic goods and services i.e. 
financial products like life insurance, 
repair/replace broken electrical 
goods, warm home, hobbies etc.) 
 

Neutral impact 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Socio-economic Disadvantage Does the proposal have any positive, If there are negative impacts how What evidence has been used to 

P
age 104

http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/Departments/Corporate-Policy-Business-Support-Unit/Socio-Economic-Duty.aspx


7 
 

negative or neutral impacts on the 
following and how?   

will these be mitigated? support this view? 

Area Deprivation (where you live 
(rural areas), where you work 
(accessibility of public transport) 
Impact on the environment? 

Positive impact.  Under this strategy, 
this will include the development of 
agile working solutions to meet our 
ever changing service needs.  This 
can provide choice for many as to 
where they work and opportunity to 
attain a job of choice is enhanced.  
 
Possible negative impact: It is 
recognised that some job roles will 
not support agile working and these 
front line opportunities may remain 
inaccessible for some.   
 

Front line working opportunities 
exist throughout the County 
Borough providing choice and 
options for people to work locally 
and in within a reasonable proximity 
to their home. 

Categorisation data collected as part 
of the Agile Working Corporate 
Review has evidenced the number 
of roles within each category of 
work.  
 
 
 
 

Socio-economic Background 
(social class i.e. parents education, 
employment and income) 

Positive impact - The Employee 
Wellbeing Strategy has strategic links 
to our Workforce Development 
Strategy, working in synergy to 
support and develop the workforce. 
A key action in the Workforce 
Development Strategy is to explore 
and develop new initiatives to 
enhance work opportunities for our 
residents, utilising government 
funded employment programmes to 
widen our provision of 
apprenticeships, work placements 
and work experience opportunities. 
These programmes will create 
pathways to employment for people 
with varying socio-economic 
backgrounds. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Socio-economic Disadvantage Positive impact – as above   

P
age 105



8 
 

  

(What cumulative impact will the 
proposal have on people or groups 
because of their protected 
characteristic(s) or vulnerability or 
because they are already 
disadvantaged) 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 106



9 
 

4. Corporate Plan – Council’s Well-being Objectives  
(How does your proposal deliver against any/all of the Council’s Well-being Objectives?  Which in turn support the national well-being goals for Wales as 
outlined in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  Are there any impacts (positive, negative or neutral?  If there are negative impacts 
how have these been mitigated?)  Well-being Objectives 

Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all 

 
Positive impact - The strategy identifies the importance of personal development to 
employee wellbeing and includes strategic links to our Workforce Development 
Strategy. It recognises that all employees must be able to access learning and training 
relevant to their needs and role in the authority. It also includes actions to develop our 
employment programmes creating opportunities for people in our communities to 
access training, work placements and employment. 
 

Objective 2 - Enabling employment 

Positive impact – through the creation of more substantial and sustainable 
employment linked to a non-guaranteed hours review; the provision of the foundation 
living wage and strengthening of our employment programmes to widen our provision 
of apprenticeships, work placements and work experience opportunities. 
 

Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of homes 
throughout the county borough and provide advice, assistance  
or support to help improve people’s well-being 
 

N/A 
 

Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable  
transport system that increases opportunity, promotes prosperity  
and minimises the adverse impact on the environment 
 

N/A 
 

Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports healthy  
lifestyle in accordance with the Sustainable Development principle with in 
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 

Positive impact - The strategy identifies the importance of health and lifestyle to 
employee wellbeing. This is a key focus within the strategy outlining how the authority 
will continue to support the health of our employees and develop programmes and 
initiatives to encourage healthy lifestyle choices, to be adopted both within and 
outside of the workplace.  

Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve  
their well-being 

Positive impact - The workplace can be an effective place to improve the wellbeing of 
individuals, families and communities. It can offer financial security, social connections 
and a sense of belonging, meaning and purpose. Our employees spend a significant 
amount of time in work so we have a critical role to play in the wellbeing of our 
workforce. This strategy outlines our commitments and priority actions to achieve this 
aim. 
 

 

P
age 107

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/Corporate_Plan_2018-2023.aspx


10 
 

4a. Links to any other relevant Council Policy  

(How does your proposal deliver against any other relevant Council Policy?) 
Transformation Strategy 2020 
Corporate Plan 2018 – 2023 
Wellbeing Plan (under development) – 2018 – 2023 
Workforce Development Strategy 2021 -24 
Sports & Recreation Strategy 2019-2029 
Green Infrastructure Strategy  
Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 
Welsh Language Standards 
 
In policy and in practice, we will seek to ensure the links between our corporate strategies and planning are well established and effective. Wellbeing lies at the core of 
how the Council fulfils its strategic aims, conducts operations and delivers excellent services to our communities. This strategy is aligned to the abovementioned 
strategies, translating our broader strategic objectives, together with data and the results of our engagement, into a holistic framework to support our employee’s 
health and wellbeing. 
 
 

  

P
age 108



11 
 

5. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 – The Five Ways of Working (ICLIP)  
(Also known as the sustainable development principles.  The Act requires the Council to consider how any proposal improves the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales using the five ways of working as a baseline) 

Ways of Working How have you used the Sustainable Development Principles in forming the proposal? 

Long Term 

 

Consider the long-term impact of the proposal on the ability of communities to secure their well-being. 
 
This Strategy offers a comprehensive framework of support for our employees. Strategically aligned to the Council’s Workforce Development 
Strategy and Strategic Equality Plan, this will have a long term positive impact on the work community.   

 

Prevention 

 

Consider how the proposal is preventing problems from ocurring or getting worse 
 
The strategy is focussed on developing an excellent work environment that fully supports our employees’ health and wellbeing. Strengthen our 
commitments and investments in employee wellbeing will have preventative benefits.  

 

Integration 

 

Consider how your proposal will impact on other services provided in our communities (these might be Council services or services delivered by 
other organisations or groups) 
 
Working in synergy with other strategies, we will continue to develop a strong organisational culture and values, strengthen the work 
environment, fully support the health and wellbeing of our employees, close knowledge and skills gaps across the organisation and shape our 
future workforce 

Collaboration 

 

Consider how you are working with Council services or services delivered by other organisations or groups in our communities. 
 
The effective implementation of this Strategy requires all parties to accept and own their individual responsibilities as outlined in the ‘Our 
Responsibilities’ section. Working effectively with our partners, both internal and external, is key to delivering our objectives. The collaboration 
list in the effective implementation of this strategy is fluid and extensive.  

Involvement 

 

Consider how you involve people who have an interest in this proposal and ensure that they represent the diversity of our communities. 
 
This is an inward looking strategy and wider consultation with the community has not taken place in this context.  The Strategy is however based 
on the extensively consulted Strategies referred to in the Integration Section above.  

 

 

P
age 109

https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/content/5-ways-working


12 
 

6. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

Well-being Goals Does the proposal maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goal and how? 

A Prosperous Wales 
An innovative, productive and low carbon society which 
recognises the limits of the global environment and 
therefore uses resources efficiently and proportionately 
(including acting on climate change); and which develops a 
skilled and well-educated population in an economy which 
generates wealth and provides employment opportunities, 
allowing people to take advantage of the wealth generated 
through securing decent work 

Efficient use of resources, skilled, educated people generates wealth and provides jobs 
 
Yes it does as outlined in this IIA.  
 
 
 
 
 

A Resilient Wales 
A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse 
natural environment healthy functioning ecosystems that 
support social, economic and ecological resilience and the 
capacity to adapt to change (for climate change) 

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and ecosystems that support resilience and can adapt to change (e.g. 
climate change). Have you considered the environmental impact your proposal will have and have you 
completed an Environmental Impact Assessment or Strategic Environmental Assessment if required? 
 
N/A 

A Healthier Wales  
A society in which people’s physical and mental well-being 
is maximised and in which choices and behaviours that 
benefit future health are understood 

People’s physical and mental well-being is maximised and health impacts are understood 
 
The Wellbeing Strategy outlines our framework, commitments and priority actions for supporting 
employee health and wellbeing. The workplace can be an effective place to improve the wellbeing of 
individuals, families and communities. It can offer financial security, social connections and a sense of 
belonging, meaning and purpose. Our employees spend a significant amount of time in work so we have a 
critical role to play in the wellbeing of our people.  
 

A More Equal Wales 
A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no 
matter what their background or circumstances (including 
their socio-economic background and circumstances) 

People can fulfil their potential no matter what their background or circumstances.  This includes the 
protected characteristics listed in Q2 above.  Also consider the cumulative impacts. 
 
Strengthening our commitment to Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart of this Strategy.  
 
 

A Wales of Cohesive Communities 
Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities 

Communities are attractive, viable, safe and well connected. 
 
N/A 
 

A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language 
A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and 
the Welsh language, and which encourages people to 

Culture, heritage and the Welsh language are promoted and protected.  People are encouraged to 
participate in sport, art and recreation. 
 

P
age 110

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies,-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act?lang=en-GB


13 
 

participate in the arts, and sports and recreation In policy and in practice, we will seek to ensure the links between our corporate strategies and planning 
are well established and effective.  
 
The Employee Wellbeing Strategy is aligned to the Strategic Equality Plan which outlines our commitments 
to promoting and developing Welsh Language; and the Sports and Recreation Strategy which details 
actions increase opportunity and engagement in sports and active recreation. 
 

A Globally Responsible Wales 
A nation which, when doing anything to improve the 
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of 
Wales, takes account of whether doing such a thing may 
make a positive contribution to global well-being 

Taking account of impact on global well-being when considering local social, economic and environmental 
well-being.  Have you considered the environmental impact your proposal will have and have you 
completed an Environmental Impact Assessment or Strategic Environmental Assessment if required? 
 
Yes, in the context of the Agile Working Agenda and sustainable employment opportunities, etc.  
 

 

  

P
age 111



14 
 

7. Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and Welsh Language Standards  
(The Welsh Language Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards require the Council to have ‘due regard’ for the positive or negative 
impact a proposal may have on opportunities to use the Welsh language and ensuring the Welsh language is treated no less favourably than 
the English language) Policy Making Standards - Good Practice Advice Document 

 

Requirement 

Does the proposal have any 
positive, negative or neutral 
impacts on the following and 
how?  

If there are negative impacts how 
will these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view?  
e.g the WESP, TAN20, LDP, Pupil 
Level Annual School Census 

Links with Welsh Government’s 

Cymraeg 2050 Strategy and CCBC’s 

Five Year Welsh Language Strategy 

2017-2022 and the Language Profile 

Neutral impact in the context of this 

Strategy.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Compliance with the Welsh Language 

Standards.   

Specifically Standards 88 - 93  

Neutral impact in the context of this 
Strategy. However, Employee 
Wellbeing Strategy is strategically 
aligned to the Workforce 
Development Strategy and the 
Strategic Equality Plan which outline 
our commitments to promoting and 
developing (through effective 
training) Welsh Language (Standards 
130-132) 
 
Positive impact: Our Employee 
Assistance Programme Care first, 
provides fully translated digital 
resources. 
 
 

 Research undertaken in the 

development of the strategy. 

 

Staff survey results. 

 

Opportunities to promote the Welsh 

language e.g. status, use of Welsh 

language services, use of Welsh in 

everyday life in work / community  

Actively encourage and promote the 
use of our services in Welsh to see an 
increase in demand over time  
  

Neutral impact.  See above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Opportunities for persons to use the 

Welsh language e.g. staff, residents 
The rights of Welsh speakers to use 
Welsh when dealing with the council 

 

 

 

 

P
age 112

http://sc-aptdken2/KENTICO10/getattachment/b33d6f35-d70e-4d8d-917d-cc0e4abe2624/Policy-Making-Standards-Advisory-Document.aspx
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Equalities/Welsh-Language-Strategy
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Equalities/Welsh-Language-Strategy
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh_Language_Profile_2016.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx


15 
 

and visitors and for staff to use Welsh at Work 
 
Neutral impact.  See above. 

 

 

 

 

Treating the Welsh language no less 

favourably than the English language 

 
Neutral impact.  See above 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

7a.  Having considered the impacts above, how has the proposal been developed so that there are positive effects, or increased positive effects on (a) 

opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language, and b) treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language. 

Impact on the use of Welsh, sustainability of Welsh speaking communities, numbers and/or percentages of Welsh speakers, fluency and confidence of Welsh speakers 
and learners to use Welsh, transmission of Welsh at home/from one generation to the next, using Welsh in the workplace, increase Welsh language digital media 
infrastructure and/or media, promoting Welsh in everyday life and its status 
 
The Employee Wellbeing Strategy is strategically aligned to the Workforce Development Strategy and the Strategic Equality Plan which outline our commitments to 
promoting and developing (through effective training) Welsh Language (Standards 130-132) 
 
 
 

  

P
age 113



16 
 

8. Data and Information  
(What data or other evidence has been used to inform the development of the proposal?  Evidence may include the outcome of previous consultations, 
existing databases, pilot projects, review of customer complaints and compliments and or other service user feedback, national and regional data, 
academic publications and consultants’ reports etc.) 
Data/evidence  
(Please provide link to report if appropriate) 

Key relevant findings 
How has the data/evidence informed this 
proposal? 

What data / evidence was used?                                   
Provide links to any reports if appropriate e.g. 
Household Survey 2017 
 
Consultation  
 
Staff Survey 
 
Significant research and utilisation of best practice 
from professional bodies – i.e. CIPD 
 
 
Employee data 
 
Sickness data 
 

What were the key findings?                                     
What did the data / evidence used tell you?   
  
 
Key findings summarised in the ‘Our Employee Data’ 
(See Appendix 1) 
 
 
 
 

How has the data / evidence available helped inform 
the proposal?                                                                   
Did it support the proposal and how?                           If 
the data / evidence didn’t support the proposal why 
was this? 
  
The key findings used to develop our approach and 
strategic framework: 
 

P
age 114



17 
 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 115



18 
 

Were there any gaps identified in the evidence and data used to develop this proposal and how will these gaps be filled?    
Details of further consultation can be included in Section 9. 

Are there any gaps in the existing data and how will you go about filling these gaps? 
 
No significant gaps identified, data provided significant information to inform the development of the strategy.  Implementation of the strategy will be monitored and 
updated to reflect any changes required. 

 

  

P
age 116



19 
 

9. Consultation  
(In some instances, there is a legal requirement to consult.  In others, even where there is no legal obligation, there may be a legitimate expectation from 
people that a consultation will take place.  Where it has been determined that consultation is required, The Gunning Principles must be adhered to.  
Consider the Consultation and Engagement Framework.  Please note that this may need to be updated as the proposal develops and to strengthen the 
assessment. 

Briefly describe any recent or planned consultations paying particular attention to evidencing the Gunning Principles. 

Who was consulted?  
 
Leadership team, HR Strategy Group, Trade Unions, Cabinet Member for Corporate Services, Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee 
 
When they were consulted did the consultation take place at the formative stage and was adequate time given for consultees to consider and respond? 
 
August 2021 – sufficient time provided for critical feedback and agreement of priority actions. 
 
Was sufficient information provided to consultees to allow them to make an informed decision on the proposal? 
 
Yes 
 
What were the key findings? 
 
Strategy was well received and deemed to be addressing the needs identified through our consultation and engagement.   
 
How have the consultation findings been taken into account? 
 
All critical feedback was considered and amendments made to the strategy as appropriate.  
 

 

  

P
age 117

https://www.consultationinstitute.org/the-gunning-principles-implications/
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx


20 
 

10. Monitoring and Review  

How will the implementation and the impact 
of the proposal be monitored, including 
implementation of any amendments?   

For example, what monitoring will be used?  How frequent? 
 
As identified in the Employee Wellbeing Strategy 
 

What are the practical arrangements for 
monitoring?   

For example, who will put this in place?  When will it start? 
 
As identified in the Employee Wellbeing Strategy 
 

How will the results of the monitoring be 
used to develop future proposals? 

 
As identified in the Employee Wellbeing Strategy 
 

When is the proposal due to be reviewed? 
 
Ongoing through dynamic action plans and fully 2024.  
 

Who is responsible for ensuring this 
happens? 

 
Head of People Services 
 

 

11. Recommendation and Reasoning  

x Implement proposal with no amendments 

 Implement proposal taking account of the mitigating actions outlined 

 Reject the proposal due to disproportionate impact on equality, poverty and socio-economic disadvantage 

 

Have you contacted relevant officers for advice and guidance?                                              Yes  X             No   

  

P
age 118



21 
 

12. Reason(s) for Recommendation  
(Provide below a summary of the Integrated Impact Assessment.  This summary should be included in the “Summary of Integrated Impact Assessment” 
section of the Corporate Report Template.  The Integrated Impact Assessment should be published alongside the Report proposal). 

Include here a conclusion to your IIA.  What is it telling you?  How has the data / evidence used helped you to make the decision for Section 11 above?  Mention any 
significant impacts (positive, negative or neutral) if any negative ones identified, how have they been mitigated to lessen the impact?  Did you identify any 
cumulative impact your proposal will have? The summary you provide here will be copied into your report going forward for a decision through the committee 
process, therefore this section must be concise but informative. 

 
It is believed that the key principles of the Employee Wellbeing Strategy will have significant benefits for our employees. 

The Employee Wellbeing Strategy outlines our aspirations of being recognised as an employer of choice in terms of our approach to supporting employee physical and 

mental health and wellbeing.   

The information collated through research, consultation, engagement (staff survey) and employee data has provided significant insights and evidence around which we 
were able to develop a holistic framework.  
 
We believe that by strengthening the five key areas identified in the strategy, we can create a supportive and nurturing work environment that effectively supports 
employee physical and mental health and wellbeing.  
 
Strengthening Inclusivity and Equality lies at the heart of this strategy, and this IIA has not identified any areas of concern or potential negative impacts/risks that need 
mitigating. The strategy is inclusive and will be beneficial to all employees. 

 
 

  

P
age 119



22 
 

13. Version Control  
(The IIA should be used in the early stages of the proposal development process.  The IIA can be strengthened as time progresses to help shape the 
proposal.  The Version Control section will act as an audit trail to evidence how the IIA has been developed over time) 
Version No. Author Brief description of the amendments/update Revision Date 
1 Neil Cooksley Original submission 01/09/2021 

    
    
 

Integrated Impact Assessment Author 

Name: Neil Cooksley 

Job Title: Principal HR Officer 

Date: 01/09/2021 

  

Head of Service Approval 

Name: Lynne Donovan 

Job Title: Head of People Services 

Signature:  Date: 01.09.21 
 

P
age 120



 
 
 

CABINET -  29TH SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

 
SUBJECT: CHRISTMAS CLOSEDOWN ARRANGEMENTS 2021 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR, EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES 
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to seek Cabinet’s agreement for  

 

 the Council’s Office Christmas Closedown arrangements for 2021 

 the 2 hour time credit arrangement that has in previous years only applied to 
office based staff who have been required to vacate Council Offices by no later 
than 12 Noon on Christmas Eve to be extended to include all Corporately 
employed staff 

 the annual leave entitlement of all Corporately employed staff to be increased 
by one additional day for 2021 in recognition of their exceptional work during 
the pandemic. 

 the maximum carry over of leave as defined in the Council’s Annual Leave 
Policy to increase from 5 days to 6 days for 2021. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The Council has in previous years implemented a closedown for offices over the 

Christmas period.  This report recommends the closedown again for 2021 and 
outlines arrangements for all staff to receive 2 hours’ credit for the afternoon of 
Christmas Eve. 

 
2.2 Cabinet are also asked to agree an additional day annual leave for all staff for 2021.   
 
2.3  This report only applies to Council Staff employed under Section 112 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 and for whom the Council has the power ’to appoint and 
manage staff on such reasonable terms and conditions as the Authority thinks 
fit’.  This report does not apply to School appointed staff for whom the Council does 
not hold this power.  

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Cabinet are asked to agree that: 

Page 121

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 7



 
3.1.1 Corporate offices close at 12 noon on Christmas Eve and reopen on January 4th 

2022 
 
3.1.2 All staff receive 2 hours’ credit for Christmas Eve as per the arrangements detailed in 

this report 
 
3.1.3 All staff receive an additional day annual leave for 2021 
 
3.1.4  Carry over annual leave be increased to 6 days for this year only. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 The recommendations are made to recognise the exceptional commitment and hard 

work of employees during the pandemic and their excellent response to the 
challenges it has brought. 

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 Cabinet will be aware that the Council has in previous years implemented a 

closedown for offices over the Christmas period.   
 
5.2 Christmas Day and Boxing Day 2021 fall on Saturday and Sunday respectively and 

New Year’s Day 2022 falls on a Saturday. In line with NJC and JNC National 
Agreements, Monday 27th December 2021 automatically becomes a public holiday in 
place of Christmas Day and the Government has designated Tuesday 28th December 
and Monday 3rd January 2022 as public holidays in substitution for Boxing Day and 
New Year’s Day respectively. The Council’s extra Statutory Day falls on Wednesday 
29th December 2021.  

 
5.3 In accordance with closedown arrangements, offices would close at 12 noon on 

Christmas Eve and reopen on January 4th 2022.  Employees affected by the 
closedown arrangements will be required to take 2 days annual leave or accrued flexi 
leave to cover the closedown days of Thursday 30th and Friday 31st December 
2021.  Any employee required to work during the Christmas closedown period to 
cover essential services will not be required to take leave.  

 
5.4 It is proposed to continue with this practice again this year and shut corporate offices 

at 12 noon on Christmas Eve and staff who would ordinarily be office based will be 
encouraged to start the Christmas closedown period at that time also, crediting staff 
with 2 hours for the afternoon. 

 
5.5 It is proposed this year that all staff receive a 2 hour credit.  Where front line service 

and some essential services need to be open on the afternoon of Christmas Eve, 
services may support the 2 hour paid absence at another time.  Where services 
cannot practically accommodate this 2 hour absence from shift, staff will benefit from 
2 hours’ additional pay.  

 
5.6 In recognition of our excellent staff that have worked tirelessly during the pandemic to 

ensure that services have not only continued to be provided but have supported new 
services to be introduced, Cabinet are also asked to agree an additional day annual 
leave for all staff for 2021, that staff may wish to use during this Christmas period.   

 

Page 122



5.7 The Council’s Annual Leave Policy confirms that ‘Employees may carry over up to 
five days annual leave into the following leave year with the prior approval of their 
manager.  Carried over leave should be used as soon as is reasonably possible in 
the new holiday year.’  It may not be possible for all staff to use this additional day 
annual leave by 31st December 2021 due to service provision, so Cabinet are asked 
to agree that carry over annual leave can be increased to 6 days for this year only. 

 
5.8 For clarity this arrangement is for 2021 only and is not a permanent change to the 

Council’s Annual Leave Policy or to the annual leave entitlements of staff. 
 

5.9 Conclusion   

Our staff have been exemplary and we owe them a debt of gratitude.  The ethos of 
“TeamCaerphilly – Better Together” really has been demonstrated on so many levels, 
each and every day during the pandemic.   As a Council we want to ensure our staff 
know how proud we are of them.   
 
 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 There are no assumptions made within this report.    
 
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 An Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) has not been completed because the 

outcome of the report, if approved, will benefit every single employee regardless of 
who they are, what job they hold and where they work. 

 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 Any associated costs relating to the 2 hours credit or the additional day annual leave 

will be a cost to the employing service. 
 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The personnel implications are included within this report.  
 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 All consultation responses have been reflected in this report. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 Local Government Act 1972 
 
 
Author:        Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services  
 
Consultees: Cllr. Philippa Marsden, Leader of the Council 
 Cllr. Colin Gordon, Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance 

Page 123



 Corporate Management Team  
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer,  
 Steve Harris, Head of Corporate Finance/s.151 officer,  
 Lisa Downey, HR Service Manager 
 Shaun Watkins, HR Service Manager 
 Trade Unions – GMB, Unison, Unite 

Page 124



 
 
 

CABINET – 29TH SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

  
SUBJECT: SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT - MANAGING BUILDING AND 

SERVICE RISK AT ALERT LEVEL ZERO 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES  
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 This is a supplementary report requested by Cabinet following the decision to 

endorse the Managing Building and Service Risk at Alert Level Zero report received 
on the 1st September 2021. 
 

1.2 Cabinet’s previous decision required a template based on the hierarchy of controls to 
be completed for every Council building that was currently closed to the public, and 
for those templates to be received at this meeting. 
 

1.3 This report includes completed templates along with some proposals for Cabinet to 
consider on how to reopen buildings with a suite of location specific reasonable 
measures in place that sufficiently minimise any risks to staff or visitors. 

  
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Wales is now at Alert level zero but coronavirus has not gone away and remains a 

serious health risk. The Council has a responsibility to minimise risks and to protect 
employees and customers when providing ‘in person’ services. 

 
2.3 The guidance introduced by WG as part of the move to Alert Level Zero requires the 

‘responsible person’ at businesses, workplaces, public places and events to put in 
place a set of ‘reasonable measures’ to minimise the risks associated with accessing 
services in person.  

 
2.4 The hierarchy of controls set out within the recent WG guidance has provided a 

helpful framework through which reasonable measures can be defined, whilst 
recognising the different challenges that may exist in different buildings.  

 
2.5 At its meeting of the 1st September, Cabinet endorsed the use of a template based 

on the hierarchy of controls, as a mechanism for assessing and subsequently 
reducing any risks attached with delivering in person services from buildings not 
currently open to the public. 

Page 125

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 8



 
2.6 The outcome of those assessments are set out within the templates attached at 

Appendix 1 and 2 along with a recommendation as to whether or not the building 
should be reopened and, if so, what additional safeguards need to be put in place in 
advance.  

 
2.7 Cabinet are asked to note the content of the templates and the proposals set out by 

relevant Heads of Service within and to consider the recommendations set out below. 
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That Cabinet agree to: 
 

1) Reopen the Council premises set out in 5.6 in accordance with the templates and 
recommended controls set out in Appendix 1 
 

2) Agree that the premises set out in 5.7 should remain closed in accordance with 
the templates attached at Appendix 2 

 
3) Reintroduce Customer First and Reception provision at Ty Penallta from the 4th 

October 2021, in accordance with the template and recommended controls set 
out in Appendix 3. 

 
4) Agree the reopening recommendations and timescales set out in 5.11 for the 

remaining Customer First Offices in accordance with the templates set out in 
Appendix 4. 

 
5) To receive ongoing reports over coming months that outline any further changes 

that need to be made should the guidance or risk levels change again. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 With the current prevalence of the COVID-19 virus and rising numbers of positive 

cases across Caerphilly, it is paramount that the reopening of any Council buildings 
currently closed to the public, occurs with risks appropriately assessed and controls 
put in place. The recommendations set out in 3.1 are based on assessments that 
have been undertaken by Officers responsible for specific Council buildings and 
utilise the template adopted by Cabinet on September 1st and based on the hierarchy 
of controls framework. 

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The risks attached to contracting or transmitting COVID-19 are significantly reduced 

when buildings are not being accessed by people. Moving from a closed setting to 
one that is then accessible by workers, visitors, clients and face to face customers 
naturally increases that risk. 

 
5.2 Each building will also differ in terms of the levels of available space, required staffing 

levels, ventilation and the ability to support separate access and egress. As a result 
the risks of reopening buildings that are currently closed will differ depending on a 
range of local factors.  

 

Page 126



5.3 Council buildings currently closed to the public have all been individually risk 
assessed using a recently adopted template based on a hierarchy of control 
framework set out within Welsh Governments latest guidance.  

 
5.4 The hierarchy of controls is widely accepted as an effective way of determining how 

to implement feasible and effective control solutions that lead to inherently safer 
systems where the risk of illness or injury has been substantially reduced.  

 
5.5 The hierarchy of control model includes five levels which range from ‘Elimination’ as 

the most effective method of managing the risk to ‘PPE’ as the least effective. 
 
 Elimination   -  Physically remove the hazard 
 
 Substitution   -  Replace the hazard 
 
 Engineering Controls  -  Isolate people from the hazard 
 
 Administrative Controls  -  Change the way people work 
 
 Personal Protective Equipment  -  Protect the worker with PPE     
 
5.6 The buildings set out in the table below have been assessed through the new 

template and the resulting recommendations for reopening and any associated 
control levels are also stated: 

 

Building Service Reopen  Recommended 
Control Level(s) 

Tredomen House  Planning Yes Elimination 

Ty Pontygwindy  Children’s 
Services / 
Adult 
Services 

Yes Engineering 

Ty Risca  Children’s 
Services 

Yes Engineering 

Ty Bargoed  Children’s 
Services 

Yes Engineering 

Ty Gilfach  Children’s 
Services 

Yes Engineering 

Woodfieldside Units 2, 3, 4 & 5 Children’s 
Services / 

Adult 
Services 

Yes Engineering 

Foxes Lane, First Floor  Children’s 
Services 

Yes Engineering 

Ty Graddfa Adult 
Services 

Yes Engineering 

Rhymney Youth Centre Youth 
Service 

Yes Elimination 

The Hangar Youth and 
Community Centre, Aberbargoed  

Youth 
Services 

Yes Elimination 

Crosskeys Youth Centre – Youth 
Services 

Youth 
Services 

Yes Elimination 

Crumlin Community Education/ 
Youth Centre  

Youth 
Services 

Yes Elimination 

Page 127



Blackwood Youth Centre  Youth 
Services 

Yes Elimination 

Risca Youth Centre  Youth 
Services 

Yes Elimination 

The Basement ‘drop in’ centre-
Blackwood Library  

Youth 
Services 

Yes Elimination 

Business Technology Centre Housing Yes Elimination 

Ty Gilfach Housing Yes Elimination 

 
 If Cabinet are minded to support these proposals, planning can begin with a view to 

buildings reopening as soon as the relevant controls and reasonable measures have 
been put in place. 

 
5.7 In accordance with the templates set out in Appendix 2, the following buildings are 

not recommended for reopening at this time: 
 

Building Service Reopen  

Lansbury Park Neighbourhood Housing Office Housing Not Yet 
(Review in 
April 2022) 

Graig Y Rhacca Neighbourhood Housing Office Housing Not Yet 
(Review in 
April 2022) 

Community Housing Office Holly Road Housing Not Yet 
(Review in 
April 2022) 

 
5.8 As an addendum to the assessments on closed buildings, the Head of Customer and 

Digital has also made use of the templates to assess Customer Service desks that 
are co-located and provided from buildings that are already open, such as Libraries. 

 
5.9 In many cases, the recommendations made on the recommencement of those 

functions run beyond the assessment of risk. The service continues to support critical 
services such as Test Trace and Protect (TTP) through the redeployment of its staff. 

 
5.10 Should Cabinet be minded to recommend a broader reopening of buildings than that 

proposed in the table below, or indeed to propose a more aggressive timescale, then 
a decision will need to be taken to cancel those redeployments so that staff operating 
in those critical functions can be made available again to support Customer Services.  

 
5.11 It should also be noted that during the pandemic, all Customer First offices have 

been closed to the public, while online and telephone-based access have remained 
in place and well used.  

   

Building Reopen  
 

Controls (and Notes) 

Customer First @ Ty Penallta Yes Substitution (Reopen from w/c 4th 
October) 

Customer First @ Newbridge 
Library 

Not Yet Review in April 2022  

Customer First @ Caerphilly 
Library 

Not Yet Elimination (Open in April 2022 for 
Appointments Only)  

Customer First @ Risca Library Not Yet Elimination (Open in April 2022 for 
Appointments Only) 

Page 128



Customer First @ Blackwood 
Library 

Not Yet Review in April 2022 

Customer First @ Bargoed 
Library 

Not Yet Review in April 2020 

Customer First Office at 
Pontlottyn  

Not Yet Review in April 2022 

 
 
5.12 Conclusion   

Having assessed a range of Council buildings currently closed to the public against 
the adopted hierarchy of controls template, this report seeks agreement from Cabinet 
to reopen certain buildings subject to the reintroduction of a series of controls 
designed to minimise risk and to keep some buildings and services closed for the 
moment.  

 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 None.   
 
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 Full Integrated Impact Assessment is attached at Appendix 5. The additionality 

provided by the reopening of the specific Council buildings is identified as a benefit 
for residents that would prefer to access services in person. The potential risk of 
transmission of COVID-19 through accessing services within a building, rather than 
remotely, is acknowledged and a number of reasonable measures are proposed to 
mitigate the risk. 

 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There should be no significant adverse financial implications attached to this report 

as budgets remain in place for the operation of core council buildings.  
 
8.2 There may be ad hoc expenditure required should recommendations be to open 

specific settings that require additional safety features (partitions, signage etc) to be 
purchased. 

 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Where reasonable measures include the deployment of staff that are double 

vaccinated there may be some personnel implications that emerge if staff employed 
in front facing roles are not sufficiently vaccinated. Vaccinations remain a matter of 
personal choice, therefore there may be a need to redeploy staff in order to mitigate 
any risks highlighted, which will be worked through accordingly. 

  
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 The consultees are set out at the bottom of this report and any views received are set 

out below: 

Page 129



 
  
Author:        Richard (Ed) Edmunds Corporate Director Education & Corp Services  
 
Consultees: Cllr. Philippa Marsden, Leader of the Council 
 Cllr. Colin Gordon, Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance 
 Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive  
 Corporate Management Team  
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer 
 Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
 Steve Harris, Head of Corporate Finance & S151 Officer 
 Leadership Team  
 Cllr Gez Kirby, Chair of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
 Cllr Brenda Miles, Vice Chair of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Buildings Recommended for Reopening 
Appendix 2 Buildings Not Recommended for Reopening at this Time 
Appendix 3 Proposals for Customer Services and Reception at Ty Penallta 
Appendix 4 Proposals for Customer Service Functions 
Appendix 5 Integrated Impact Assessment Building Reopening 
 
 

Page 130



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Tredomen 
House 
 
Planning 
Services 

Reasonable Measure 
Stopping an infectious 
person being in an 
environment by e.g. 
prohibit people from 
attending if feel 
unwell, and advise 
they should get tested 
and ensuring that all 
employees follow self-
isolation advice if they 
are a contact of a 
possible confirmed 
case. 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by personal 
search agents only for 
a limited number of 
appointments per day, 
normally 3 days a 
week.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring that accurate 
records are kept of 
which employees (and, 
where applicable, 
customers / visitors / 
clients) have been 
present so that they 
can be contact traced 
if necessary 
 
 
Proposed Approach: 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face-
to-face contact.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Yes appointments for 
personal search 
agents only. 
Reasonable Measure 
Changing work 
patterns so that people 
work in a fixed group 
or cohort or arrive at 
and leave work at 
staggered times. This 
limits the number of 
people that the virus 
can potentially spread 
to.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Yes appointments only 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce 
how much the virus 
can spread through 
surface contamination 
and aerosol 
transmission.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Not possible 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only. 
Cleaning and 
disinfecting to be 
carried out between 
appointments. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. 
Providing additional 
hand wash stations –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, 
including providing 
facilities and signage 
to encourage regular 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are 
touched a lot  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Cleaning and 
disinfecting to be 
carried between 
appointments. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning  
 
Proposed Approach: 
New processes 
required or cleaning 
staff dedicated to the 
area 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Providing hand 
sanitiser  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Avoiding sharing of 
equipment such as 
‘hot-desking’  
 
Proposed Approach: 

Reasonable Measure 
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance) 
Gloves and aprons  
Eye protection 
 
Proposed Approach: 
All available for use. 
Personal Search 
agents to wear face 
masks and sanitise 
hands before and after 
accessing the register. 

Yes but by 
appointment 
only for 
personal 
search 
agents to 
access the 
public 
register. 

P
age 131



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Access by 
appointment only will 
enable accurate 
records of staff, 
contact details of 
customers and time 
and date in the 
building. 
Reasonable Measure 
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much 
as possible, such as 
areas where social 
distancing cannot be 
maintained.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Tredomen House 
provides sufficient 
space for social 
distancing and access 
and movement 
controls to be in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both 
vaccine doses as soon 
as recommended.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Only staff with two 
vaccines in place to 
meet Personal Search 
Agents 
 

 
Reasonable Measure 
Using other 
technologies to 
replace face-to-face 
interactions, for 
example using ‘click 
and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Yes move all services 
on line except access 
for personal search 
agents to inspect the 
register. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Installation of 
partitions at 
appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks 
or between work 
stations) to separate 
staff etc. If used 
ensure they are 
cleaned and 
disinfected in line with 
cleaning procedures. 
Cleaning, hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace 
COVID-secure 
(hse.gov.uk)  

handwashing and 
sanitising 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly 
ventilated spaces –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Limited opportunities. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, 
for example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined 
areas such as lifts, 
toilet facilities, 
kitchens or meeting 
rooms at the same 
time.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Setting allows for this. 
One way system can 
be established, 
appointments would 
control numbers 
 
 
 

Manageable if 
appointment only 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in 
a particular location 
by, for example, 
encouraging home 
working where 
possible 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff numbers can be 
reduced through 
introduction of 
appointments only. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staggering shifts 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Officer Hours only but 
staff numbers can be 
reduced through 
introduction of 
appointments only. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between 
them,  
 
Proposed Approach: 

P
age 132

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Cleaning and 
disinfecting to be 
carried between 
appointments 
 
 
 

 
Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at Setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination 
take up of your 
workforce 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Underway 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Physical distancing of 
staff and customers / 
children 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments for 
personal search 
agents only.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms 
before ventilation   
 
Proposed Approach: 

Appointments only 
one way systems can 
be introduced.  
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
The use of face-
coverings and or face-
shields in indoors 
areas for workers and 
members of the public 
– all above  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings 
in indoor spaces to be 
requested 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage 
LFD at home   
 
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a 
new process and an 
associated HR policy 
would be required 
 

P
age 133



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Appointments only. 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety 
improvements  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering Customers 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary 
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to 
promote adherence to 
necessary ones  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Will remain under 
review 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning 
and teams to maintain 
operational capacity 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only will 
assist 

 

 

P
age 134



APPENDIX 1 
 

Assessment Summary 

 

Venue     Tredomen House     Open Yes / No  Yes   

  

Service(s)    Planning Services    Control   Elimination    

         

          

          

          

 

 

Head of Service (Title):  Rhian Kyte     Director     Mark S Williams          

 

Signed:          Signed:        

 

Date:     14/09/2021     Date:   14 /09/2021  

  

P
age 135



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Children’s 
Services: 
 
Ty Pontygwindy 
 
Ty Risca 
 
Ty Bargoed 
 
Ty Gilfach 
 
Woodfieldside 
Units 2, 3, 4 & 5 
 
Foxes Lane 
First floor 
 
NB: excludes 
staff based in Ty 
Penallta – please 
see Caveat’s in 
final column 

Reasonable Measure 
Stopping an 
infectious person 
being in an 
environment e.g. 
prohibit people from 
attending if feel 
unwell, and advise 
they should get 
tested and ensuring 
that all employees 
follow self-isolation 
advice if they are a 
contact of a possible 
confirmed case. 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Under current 
operational 
guidance staff are 
fully aware of the 
need to report 
symptoms to line 
managers 
immediately and to 
book PCR tests 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring that 
accurate records are 
kept of which 
employees (and, 
where applicable, 
customers / visitors / 
clients) have been 
present so that they 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face-
to-face contact.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All visitors to our 
buildings will be pre-
arranged, bay 
appointment so 
numbers can be 
managed to ensure 
potential risks are 
minimised. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Changing work 
patterns so that people 
work in a fixed group 
or cohort or arrive at 
and leave work at 
staggered times. This 
limits the number of 
people that the virus 
can potentially spread 
to.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff teams operate on 
rotas for home and 
office working and 
Team Managers are 
therefore able to 
manage numbers as 
appropriate. 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Not available. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All work stations are 
kept clear to assist 
cleaning. All staff 
clean the workstation 
before use and after 
use. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. 
Providing additional 
hand wash stations –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Hand sanitising 
stations are available 
in all office spaces and 
public areas 
 
Reasonable Measure 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are 
touched a lot  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All work stations are 
kept clear to assist 
cleaning. All staff 
clean the workstation 
before use and after 
use. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Laminated guidance 
on cleaning 
requirements is 
present on every work 
station of table 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Providing hand 
sanitiser  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Hand sanitising 
stations are available 
in all office spaces and 
public areas 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance) 
Gloves and aprons  
Eye protection 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appropriate PPE for 
the tasks undertaken 
is available to all staff 
in all offices. 
 

Yes 
Please note 
below: 
 
Control: 
Children’s 
Services 
offices are 
not ‘open’ to 
the public but 
are open for 
pre-planned, 
pre-arranged 
visits, 
meetings and 
appointments 
so numbers 
are able to be 
managed and 
monitored. 
 
Caveats: 
Propose 
these 
arrangements 
continue until 
such time as 
Government 
guidance 
may change 
and 
restrictions 
may be 
reinstated. 
 
 

P
age 136



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

can be contact 
traced if necessary 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Team Managers are 
aware of which 
workers are in their 
offices on a daily 
basis 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Close high risk 
environments in 
your work setting as 
much as possible, 
such as areas where 
social distancing 
cannot be 
maintained.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Spacing between 
work stations is in 
place. No particular 
areas of the 
buildings have had 
to be closed. Limited 
numbers of staff 
allowed in 
communal areas ie 
kitchens at any time. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both 
vaccine doses as 

 
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce 
how much the virus 
can spread through 
surface contamination 
and aerosol 
transmission.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Social Workers have 
been undertaking 
outdoor visits 
wherever possible and 
weather permitting. 
However, during 
inclement weather 
they have to enter 
individual homes. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using other 
technologies to 
replace face-to-face 
interactions, for 
example using ‘click 
and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Social Work Teams 
undertake telephone 
calls, video 

Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, 
including providing 
facilities and signage 
to encourage regular 
handwashing and 
sanitising 
 
Proposed Approach: 
All in place in every 
office. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly 
ventilated spaces –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All Managers and staff 
are aware of the need 
to maintain good fresh 
air ventilation. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, 
for example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined 
areas such as lifts, 
toilet facilities, 
kitchens or meeting 
rooms at the same 
time.   
 

 
Reasonable Measure 
Avoiding sharing of 
equipment such as 
‘hot-desking’  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All work stations are 
kept clear to assist 
cleaning. All staff 
clean the workstation 
before use and after 
use. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in 
a particular location 
by, for example, 
encouraging home 
working where 
possible 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff teams operate on 
rotas for home and 
office working and 
Team Managers are 
therefore able to 
manage numbers as 
appropriate. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staggering shifts 
 
Proposed Approach: 

The roles of 
Children’s 
Services staff 
based in Ty 
Penallta do 
not require 
them to 
arrange 
appointments 
or have 
visitors to the 
building so 
this does not 
apply to 
them. 
 

P
age 137



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

soon as 
recommended.   
Proposed Approach: 
Completed : Social 
Care staff were 
amongst those 
prioritised for the 
vaccine 
 
 
 
 
 

conferencing, Teams 
calls wherever 
possible. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Installation of 
partitions at 
appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks 
or between work 
stations) to separate 
staff etc. If used 
ensure they are 
cleaned and 
disinfected in line with 
cleaning procedures. 
Cleaning, hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace 
COVID-secure 
(hse.gov.uk)  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Cleaning of surfaces, 
hand washing and 
sanitising is all in 
place. Space is 
maintained between 
work stations rather 
than installation of 
barriers. 
 
 
 

Proposed Approach: 
All staff attending the 
offices are aware of 
the need to maintain 
an appropriate level of 
social distancing.  
Numbers of staff 
allowed in kitchen 
areas at any one time 
are limited and 
signage ensures staff 
are reminded of these 
requirements. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above, appropriate 
signage is in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination 
take up of your 
workforce 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Completed. Social 
Care staff were priority 
group for the first 
round of vaccinations. 

Social Care staff are 
not used to working 
standard 9-5 office 
hours so they arrive 
and leave offices at 
naturally different 
(therefore staggered) 
times. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between 
them,  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All staff attending the 
offices are aware of 
the need to maintain 
an appropriate level of 
social distancing.   
 
Reasonable Measure 
The use of face-
coverings and or face-
shields in indoors 
areas for workers and 
members of the public 
– all above  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All staff have access to 
PPE which is utilised 
as and when 
necessary. 
 

P
age 138

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Reasonable Measure 
Physical distancing of 
staff and customers / 
children 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Any visitors to 
buildings will be pre-
planned and by 
appointment only so 
triage arrangements, 
social distancing and 
the use of PPE as 
required can all be 
planned ahead. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms 
before ventilation   
 
Proposed Approach: 
All offices and rooms 
are being ventilated 
with windows opened 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety 
improvements  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Managers and staff are 
fully aware of the 
requirements on them 
and these have been in 

Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage 
LFD at home   
Proposed Approach: 
All eligible staff have 
received vaccinations 
 

P
age 139



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

place and have been 
kept under review 
since the start of the 
first lockdown. 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary 
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to 
promote adherence to 
necessary ones  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Operational guidance 
for staff is continually 
kept under review to 
take account of 
changing WG 
guidance 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning 
and teams to maintain 
operational capacity 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Frontline service 
delivery has been 
successfully 
maintained throughout 
the entire pandemic. 
 

 

  

P
age 140



APPENDIX 1 
 

Assessment Summary 

Venue    Various – please see above    Open Yes / No Yes 

Service(s)   Children’s Services     Control  As above 

 

 

 

Head of Service (Title): Gareth Jenkins     Director  Dave Street     

  

Signed:          Signed:        

Date:    13/09/2021       Date:  13/09/2021  

  

P
age 141



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Adult 
Services: 
 
Ty Pontygwindy 
 
Ty Gradffa 
 
Woodfieldside 
Units 2, 3, 4 & 5 
 
Tir-y-berth 
 
NB: excludes 
staff based in Ty 
Penallta – please 
see Caveat’s in 
final column 

Reasonable Measure 
Stopping an 
infectious person 
being in an 
environment by e.g. 
prohibit people from 
attending if feel 
unwell, and advise 
they should get 
tested and ensuring 
that all employees 
follow self-isolation 
advice if they are a 
contact of a possible 
confirmed case. 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Under current 
operational 
guidance staff are 
fully aware of the 
need to report 
symptoms to line 
managers 
immediately and to 
book PCR tests 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring that 
accurate records are 
kept of which 
employees (and, 
where applicable, 
customers / visitors / 
clients) have been 
present so that they 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face-
to-face contact.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All visitors to our 
buildings will be pre-
arranged, bay 
appointment so 
numbers can be 
managed to ensure 
potential risks are 
minimised. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Changing work 
patterns so that people 
work in a fixed group 
or cohort or arrive at 
and leave work at 
staggered times. This 
limits the number of 
people that the virus 
can potentially spread 
to.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff teams operate on 
rota’s for home and 
office working and 
Team Managers are 
therefore able to 
manage numbers as 
appropriate. 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Not available. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All work stations are 
kept clear to assist 
cleaning. All staff 
clean the workstation 
before use and after 
use. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. 
Providing additional 
hand wash stations –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Hand sanitising 
stations are available 
in all office spaces and 
public areas 
 
Reasonable Measure 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are 
touched a lot  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All work stations are 
kept clear to assist 
cleaning. All staff 
clean the workstation 
before use and after 
use. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Laminated guidance 
on cleaning 
requirements is 
present on every work 
station of table 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Providing hand 
sanitiser  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Hand sanitising 
stations are available 
in all office spaces and 
public areas 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance) 
Gloves and aprons  
Eye protection 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appropriate PPE for 
the tasks undertaken 
is available to all staff 
in all offices. 
 

Yes 
Please note 
below: 
 
Control: 
Children’s 
Services 
offices are 
not ‘open’ to 
the public but 
are open for 
pre-planned, 
pre-arranged 
visits, 
meetings and 
appointments 
so numbers 
are able to be 
managed and 
monitored. 
 
Caveats: 
Propose 
these 
arrangements 
continue until 
such time as 
Government 
guidance 
may change 
and 
restrictions 
may be 
reinstated. 
 

P
age 142



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

can be contact 
traced if necessary 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Team Managers are 
aware of which 
workers are in their 
offices on a daily 
basis 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Close high risk 
environments in 
your work setting as 
much as possible, 
such as areas where 
social distancing 
cannot be 
maintained.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Spacing between 
work stations is in 
place. No particular 
areas of the 
buildings have had 
to be closed. Limited 
numbers of staff 
allowed in 
communal areas ie 
kitchens at any time. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staff take vaccine 
doses as soon as 
recommended.   

 
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce 
how much the virus 
can spread through 
surface contamination 
and aerosol 
transmission.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Social Workers have 
been undertaking 
outdoor visits 
wherever possible and 
weather permitting. 
However, during 
inclement weather 
they have to enter 
individual homes. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using other 
technologies to 
replace face-to-face 
interactions, for 
example using ‘click 
and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Social Work Teams 
undertake telephone 
calls, video 

Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, 
including providing 
facilities and signage 
to encourage regular 
handwashing and 
sanitising 
 
Proposed Approach: 
All in place in every 
office. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly 
ventilated spaces –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All Managers and staff 
are aware of the need 
to maintain good fresh 
air ventilation. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, 
for example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined 
areas such as lifts, 
toilet facilities, 
kitchens or meeting 
rooms at the same 
time.   
 

Reasonable Measure 
Avoiding sharing of 
equipment such as 
‘hot-desking’  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All work stations are 
kept clear to assist 
cleaning. All staff 
clean the workstation 
before use and after 
use. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in 
a particular location 
by, for example, 
encouraging home 
working where 
possible 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff teams operate on 
rota’s for home and 
office working and 
Team Managers are 
therefore able to 
manage numbers as 
appropriate. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staggering shifts 
 
Proposed Approach: 

The roles of 
Children’s 
Services staff 
based in Ty 
Penallta do 
not require 
them to 
arrange 
appointments 
or have 
visitors to the 
building so 
this does not 
apply to 
them. 
 

P
age 143



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

 
Proposed Approach: 
Completed : Social 
Care staff were 
amongst those 
prioritised for the 
vaccine and booster  
 
 
 
 
 

conferencing, Teams 
calls wherever 
possible. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Installation of 
partitions at 
appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks 
or between work 
stations) to separate 
staff etc. If used 
ensure they are 
cleaned and 
disinfected in line with 
cleaning procedures. 
Cleaning, hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace 
COVID-secure 
(hse.gov.uk)  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Cleaning of surfaces, 
hand washing and 
sanitising is all in 
place. Space is 
maintained between 
work stations rather 
than installation of 
barriers. 
 
 
 

Proposed Approach: 
All staff attending the 
offices are aware of 
the need to maintain 
an appropriate level of 
social distancing.  
Numbers of staff 
allowed in kitchen 
areas at any one time 
are limited and 
signage ensures staff 
are reminded of these 
requirements. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above, appropriate 
signage is in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination 
take up of your 
workforce 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Completed. Social 
Care staff were priority 
group for the first 
round of vaccinations. 

Social Care staff are 
not used to working 
standard 9-5 office 
hours so they arrive 
and leave offices at 
naturally different 
(therefore staggered) 
times. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between 
them,  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All staff attending the 
offices are aware of 
the need to maintain 
an appropriate level of 
social distancing.   
 
Reasonable Measure 
The use of face-
coverings and or face-
shields in indoors 
areas for workers and 
members of the public 
– all above  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All staff have access to 
PPE which is utilised 
as and when 
necessary. 
 

P
age 144

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

 
Reasonable Measure 
Physical distancing of 
staff and customers / 
children 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Any visitors to 
buildings will be pre-
planned and by 
appointment only so 
triage arrangements, 
social distancing and 
the use of PPE as 
required can all be 
planned ahead. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms 
before ventilation   
 
Proposed Approach: 
All offices and rooms 
are being ventilated 
with windows opened 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety 
improvements  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Managers and staff are 
fully aware of the 
requirements on them 

Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage 
LFD at home   
Proposed Approach: 
All eligible staff have 
received vaccinations 
 

P
age 145



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

and these have been in 
place and have been 
kept under review 
since the start of the 
first lockdown. 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary 
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to 
promote adherence to 
necessary ones  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Operational guidance 
for staff is continually 
kept under review to 
take account of 
changing WG 
guidance 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning 
and teams to maintain 
operational capacity 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Frontline service 
delivery has been 
successfully 
maintained throughout 
the entire pandemic. 
 

 

 

P
age 146



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Rhymney 
Youth 
Centre 
 
Youth 
Service 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Continued application 
of Locally approved 
guidance informed by 
WG Youth Work 
guidance.  Includes 
pre-sessional 
assessment of health 
and dynamic 
assessment during 
activity. 
All staff briefed on 
control measures, 
including actions 
relating to self-
isolation.  Cleaning 
and movement 
regimes established, 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number (max 15 at 
present) of young 
people.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Attendance And 
registration records 
are maintained, as is 
regular contact with 
parents/carers – 
additional 
communication is 
made as warranted. 
 
Proposed Approach: 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face-
to-face contact.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Youth work sessions 
are currently limited to 
1 hour’s duration 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring fixed staff 
delivery groups where 
possible. This limits 
the number of people 
that the virus can 
potentially spread to.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce 
how much the virus 
can spread through 
surface contamination 
and aerosol 
transmission.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Significant investment 
in outdoor/detached 
youth work delivery 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions focus on 
least contaminating 
actions.  As per 
stringent guidance, no 
sharing of resources 
or use of external 
resources/equipment  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. 
Providing additional 
hand wash stations –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, 
including providing 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are 
touched a lot  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All staff briefed and 
trained 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Providing hand 
sanitiser  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Avoiding sharing of 
equipment  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in 
a particular location 

Reasonable Measure 
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance) 
Gloves and aprons  
Eye protection 
 
Proposed Approach: 
All available for use 

Yes – open 
throughout 
Covid period 
but 
recommend 
expansion of 
use    
 
Suggest – 
 
September to 
December 
and monitor 
impact, 
footfall and 
refine 
approaches 

P
age 147



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Limited open access 
arrangements will 
enable accurate 
records of staff, 
contact details of 
young people and time 
and date in the 
building. 
Reasonable Measure 
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much 
as possible, such as 
areas where social 
distancing cannot be 
maintained.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
The Hangar has 
sufficient space for 
social distancing and 
access and movement 
controls are in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both 
vaccine doses as soon 
as recommended.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
As per broader 
Education guidance, 
educators can engage 
with young people if 
not vaccinated but this 
is not encouraged. 

Reasonable Measure 
Using other 
technologies to 
replace face-to-face 
interactions, for 
example using ‘click 
and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of online 
delivery/engagement 
where 
possible/relevant 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Installation of 
partitions at 
appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks 
or between work 
stations) to separate 
staff etc. If used 
ensure they are 
cleaned and 
disinfected in line with 
cleaning procedures. 
Cleaning, hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace 
COVID-secure 
(hse.gov.uk)  
 

facilities and signage 
to encourage regular 
handwashing and 
sanitising 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly 
ventilated spaces –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All youth work spaces 
in premises subject to 
ventilation 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, 
for example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined 
areas such as lifts, 
toilet facilities, 
kitchens or meeting 
rooms at the same 
time.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Setting allows for this. 
One way and 
staggered systems in 
place. 

by, for example, 
encouraging home 
working where 
possible 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff are currently 
redistributed in this 
manner. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staggering shifts 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions are 
staggered so that none 
coincide. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between 
them,  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Regularly monitored 
and in place.  
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
The use of face-
coverings and or face-
shields in indoors 
areas for workers and 
members of the public 
– all above  

P
age 148

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Approach: 
Cleaning and 
disinfecting carried 
out between different 
youth work sessions 
 
 
 

 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at Setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination 
take up of your 
workforce 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Underway – also 
includes vaccination 
take-up 
encouragement 
(education sessions) 
by young people 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Physical distancing of 
staff and young 
people/others 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place in all settings.  
 
Reasonable Measure 

 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings 
currently under review 
for education and 
related services 
engaging with young 
people. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage 
LFD at home   
 
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a 
new process and an 
associated HR policy 
would be required 
 

P
age 149



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms 
before ventilation   
Proposed Approach: 
Planned sessions only 
with known 
participants 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety 
improvements  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering users 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary 
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to 
promote adherence to 
necessary ones  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Will remain under 
review 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning 
and teams to maintain 
operational capacity 

P
age 150



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

 
Proposed Approach: 
Briefing and 
supervision to support 
best capacity. 

 

Assessment Summary 

 

Venue    Rhymney Youth Centre  Open Yes  

Service(s)   Youth Service  Control   Elimination 

 

 

Head of Service (Title): Chief Education Officer  Director   Richard Edmunds 

 

Signed:          Signed:        

 

Date:     / /     Date:    / /  

 

 

  

P
age 151



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

The 
Hangar 
Youth and 
Communi
ty Centre, 
Aberbarg
oed 
 
Youth 
Service 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Continued application 
of Locally approved 
guidance informed by 
WG Youth Work 
guidance.  Includes 
pre-sessional 
assessment of health 
and dynamic 
assessment during 
activity. 
All staff briefed on 
control measures, 
including actions 
relating to self-
isolation.  Cleaning 
and movement 
regimes established, 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number (max 15 at 
present) of young 
people.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Attendance And 
registration records 
are maintained, as is 
regular contact with 
parents/carers – 
additional 
communication is 
made as warranted. 
 
Proposed Approach: 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face-
to-face contact.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Youth work sessions 
are currently limited to 
1 hour’s duration 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring fixed staff 
delivery groups where 
possible. This limits 
the number of people 
that the virus can 
potentially spread to.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce 
how much the virus 
can spread through 
surface contamination 
and aerosol 
transmission.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Significant investment 
in outdoor/detached 
youth work delivery 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions focus on 
least contaminating 
actions.  As per 
stringent guidance, no 
sharing of resources 
or use of external 
resources/equipment  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. 
Providing additional 
hand wash stations –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, 
including providing 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are 
touched a lot  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All staff briefed and 
trained 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Providing hand 
sanitiser  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Avoiding sharing of 
equipment  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in 
a particular location 

Reasonable Measure 
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance) 
Gloves and aprons  
Eye protection 
 
Proposed Approach: 
All available for use 

Yes – open 
throughout 
Covid period 
but 
recommend 
expansion of 
use    
 
Suggest – 
 
September to 
December 
and monitor 
impact, 
footfall and 
refine 
approaches 

P
age 152



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Limited open access 
arrangements will 
enable accurate 
records of staff, 
contact details of 
young people and time 
and date in the 
building. 
Reasonable Measure 
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much 
as possible, such as 
areas where social 
distancing cannot be 
maintained.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
The Hangar has 
sufficient space for 
social distancing and 
access and movement 
controls are in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both 
vaccine doses as soon 
as recommended.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
As per broader 
Education guidance, 
educators can engage 
with young people if 
not vaccinated but this 
is not encouraged. 

Reasonable Measure 
Using other 
technologies to 
replace face-to-face 
interactions, for 
example using ‘click 
and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of online 
delivery/engagement 
where 
possible/relevant 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Installation of 
partitions at 
appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks 
or between work 
stations) to separate 
staff etc. If used 
ensure they are 
cleaned and 
disinfected in line with 
cleaning procedures. 
Cleaning, hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace 
COVID-secure 
(hse.gov.uk)  
 

facilities and signage 
to encourage regular 
handwashing and 
sanitising 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly 
ventilated spaces –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All youth work spaces 
in premises subject to 
ventilation 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, 
for example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined 
areas such as lifts, 
toilet facilities, 
kitchens or meeting 
rooms at the same 
time.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Setting allows for this. 
One way and 
staggered systems in 
place. 

by, for example, 
encouraging home 
working where 
possible 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff are currently 
redistributed in this 
manner. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staggering shifts 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions are 
staggered so that none 
coincide. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between 
them,  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Regularly monitored 
and in place.  
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
The use of face-
coverings and or face-
shields in indoors 
areas for workers and 
members of the public 
– all above  

P
age 153

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Approach: 
Cleaning and 
disinfecting carried 
out between different 
youth work sessions 
 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at Setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination 
take up of your 
workforce 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Underway – also 
includes vaccination 
take-up 
encouragement 
(education sessions) 
by young people 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Physical distancing of 
staff and young 
people/others 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place in all settings.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms 
before ventilation   

 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings 
currently under review 
for education and 
related services 
engaging with young 
people. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage 
LFD at home   
 
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a 
new process and an 
associated HR policy 
would be required 
 

P
age 154



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Proposed Approach: 
Planned sessions only 
with known 
participants 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety 
improvements  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering users 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary 
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to 
promote adherence to 
necessary ones  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Will remain under 
review 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning 
and teams to maintain 
operational capacity 
 
 
 

P
age 155



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

 
Proposed Approach: 
Briefing and 
supervision to support 
best capacity. 

 

Assessment Summary 

 

Venue    The Hangar Youth and Community Centre  Open Yes  

Service(s)   Youth Service  Control   Elimination 

 

 

Head of Service (Title): Chief Education Officer  Director   Richard Edmunds 

 

Signed:          Signed:        

 

Date:     / /     Date:    / /  

  

P
age 156



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Crosskeys 
Youth 
Centre 
 
Youth 
Service 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Continued application 
of Locally approved 
guidance informed by 
WG Youth Work 
guidance.  Includes 
pre-sessional 
assessment of health 
and dynamic 
assessment during 
activity. 
All staff briefed on 
control measures, 
including actions 
relating to self-
isolation.  Cleaning 
and movement 
regimes established, 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number (max 15 at 
present) of young 
people.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Attendance And 
registration records 
are maintained, as is 
regular contact with 
parents/carers – 
additional 
communication is 
made as warranted. 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face-
to-face contact.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Youth work sessions 
are currently limited to 
1 hour’s duration 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring fixed staff 
delivery groups where 
possible. This limits 
the number of people 
that the virus can 
potentially spread to.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce 
how much the virus 
can spread through 
surface contamination 
and aerosol 
transmission.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Significant investment 
in outdoor/detached 
youth work delivery 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions focus on 
least contaminating 
actions.  As per 
stringent guidance, no 
sharing of resources 
or use of external 
resources/equipment  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. 
Providing additional 
hand wash stations –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, 
including providing 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are 
touched a lot  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All staff briefed and 
trained 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Providing hand 
sanitiser  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Avoiding sharing of 
equipment  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in 
a particular location 

Reasonable Measure 
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance) 
Gloves and aprons  
Eye protection 
 
Proposed Approach: 
All available for use 

Yes – open 
throughout 
Covid period 
but 
recommend 
expansion of 
use    
 
Suggest – 
 
September to 
December 
and monitor 
impact, 
footfall and 
refine 
approaches 

P
age 157



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Proposed Approach: 
Limited open access 
arrangements will 
enable accurate 
records of staff, 
contact details of 
young people and 
time and date in the 
building. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much 
as possible, such as 
areas where social 
distancing cannot be 
maintained.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
The Hangar has 
sufficient space for 
social distancing and 
access and 
movement controls 
are in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both 
vaccine doses as 
soon as 
recommended.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
As per broader 
Education guidance, 

Reasonable Measure 
Using other 
technologies to 
replace face-to-face 
interactions, for 
example using ‘click 
and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of online 
delivery/engagement 
where 
possible/relevant 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Installation of 
partitions at 
appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks 
or between work 
stations) to separate 
staff etc. If used 
ensure they are 
cleaned and 
disinfected in line with 
cleaning procedures. 
Cleaning, hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace 
COVID-secure 
(hse.gov.uk)  
 

facilities and signage 
to encourage regular 
handwashing and 
sanitising 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly 
ventilated spaces –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All youth work spaces 
in premises subject to 
ventilation 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, 
for example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined 
areas such as lifts, 
toilet facilities, 
kitchens or meeting 
rooms at the same 
time.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Setting allows for this. 
One way and 
staggered systems in 
place. 

by, for example, 
encouraging home 
working where 
possible 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff are currently 
redistributed in this 
manner. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staggering shifts 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions are 
staggered so that none 
coincide. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between 
them,  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Regularly monitored 
and in place.  
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
The use of face-
coverings and or face-
shields in indoors 
areas for workers and 
members of the public 
– all above  

P
age 158

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

educators can 
engage with young 
people if not 
vaccinated but this is 
not encouraged. 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Approach: 
Cleaning and 
disinfecting carried 
out between different 
youth work sessions 
 
 
 

 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at Setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination 
take up of your 
workforce 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Underway – also 
includes vaccination 
take-up 
encouragement 
(education sessions) 
by young people 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Physical distancing of 
staff and young 
people/others 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place in all settings.  
 
Reasonable Measure 

 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings 
currently under review 
for education and 
related services 
engaging with young 
people. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage 
LFD at home   
 
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a 
new process and an 
associated HR policy 
would be required 
 

P
age 159



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms 
before ventilation   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Planned sessions only 
with known 
participants 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety 
improvements  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering users 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary 
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to 
promote adherence to 
necessary ones  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Will remain under 
review 
 
Reasonable Measure: 

P
age 160



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Workforce planning 
and teams to maintain 
operational capacity 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Briefing and 
supervision to support 
best capacity. 

 

Assessment Summary 

 

Venue    Crosskeys Youth Centre  Open Yes  

Service(s)   Youth Service  Control   Elimination 

 

 

Head of Service (Title): Chief Education Officer  Director   Richard Edmunds 

 

Signed:          Signed:        

 

Date:     / /     Date:    / /  

 

  

P
age 161



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Crumlin 
Community 
Education/ 
Youth 
Centre 
 
Youth 
Service 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Continued 
application of 
Locally approved 
guidance informed 
by WG Youth Work 
guidance.  Includes 
pre-sessional 
assessment of 
health and dynamic 
assessment during 
activity. 
All staff briefed on 
control measures, 
including actions 
relating to self-
isolation.  Cleaning 
and movement 
regimes established, 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number (max 15 at 
present) of young 
people.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Attendance And 
registration records 
are maintained, as is 
regular contact with 
parents/carers – 
additional 
communication is 
made as warranted. 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face-
to-face contact.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Youth work sessions 
are currently limited to 
1 hour’s duration 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring fixed staff 
delivery groups where 
possible. This limits 
the number of people 
that the virus can 
potentially spread to.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce 
how much the virus 
can spread through 
surface contamination 
and aerosol 
transmission.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Significant investment 
in outdoor/detached 
youth work delivery 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions focus on 
least contaminating 
actions.  As per 
stringent guidance, no 
sharing of resources 
or use of external 
resources/equipment  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. 
Providing additional 
hand wash stations –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, 
including providing 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are 
touched a lot  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All staff briefed and 
trained 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Providing hand 
sanitiser  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Avoiding sharing of 
equipment  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in 
a particular location 

Reasonable Measure 
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance) 
Gloves and aprons  
Eye protection 
 
Proposed Approach: 
All available for use 

Yes – open 
throughout 
Covid period 
but 
recommend 
expansion of 
use    
 
Suggest – 
 
September to 
December 
and monitor 
impact, 
footfall and 
refine 
approaches 

P
age 162



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Proposed Approach: 
Limited open access 
arrangements will 
enable accurate 
records of staff, 
contact details of 
young people and 
time and date in the 
building. 
Reasonable Measure 
Close high risk 
environments in 
your work setting as 
much as possible, 
such as areas where 
social distancing 
cannot be 
maintained.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
The Hangar has 
sufficient space for 
social distancing 
and access and 
movement controls 
are in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both 
vaccine doses as 
soon as 
recommended.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
As per broader 
Education guidance, 

Reasonable Measure 
Using other 
technologies to 
replace face-to-face 
interactions, for 
example using ‘click 
and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of online 
delivery/engagement 
where 
possible/relevant 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Installation of 
partitions at 
appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks 
or between work 
stations) to separate 
staff etc. If used 
ensure they are 
cleaned and 
disinfected in line with 
cleaning procedures. 
Cleaning, hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace 
COVID-secure 
(hse.gov.uk)  
 

facilities and signage 
to encourage regular 
handwashing and 
sanitising 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly 
ventilated spaces –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All youth work spaces 
in premises subject to 
ventilation 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, 
for example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined 
areas such as lifts, 
toilet facilities, 
kitchens or meeting 
rooms at the same 
time.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Setting allows for this. 
One way and 
staggered systems in 
place. 

by, for example, 
encouraging home 
working where 
possible 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff are currently 
redistributed in this 
manner. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staggering shifts 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions are 
staggered so that none 
coincide. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between 
them,  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Regularly monitored 
and in place.  
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
The use of face-
coverings and or face-
shields in indoors 
areas for workers and 
members of the public 
– all above  

P
age 163

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

educators can 
engage with young 
people if not 
vaccinated but this 
is not encouraged. 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Approach: 
Cleaning and 
disinfecting carried 
out between different 
youth work sessions 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at Setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination 
take up of your 
workforce 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Underway – also 
includes vaccination 
take-up 
encouragement 
(education sessions) 
by young people 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Physical distancing of 
staff and young 
people/others 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place in all settings.  
 
Reasonable Measure 

 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings 
currently under review 
for education and 
related services 
engaging with young 
people. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage 
LFD at home   
 
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a 
new process and an 
associated HR policy 
would be required 
 

P
age 164



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms 
before ventilation   
Proposed Approach: 
Planned sessions only 
with known 
participants 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety 
improvements  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering users 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary 
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to 
promote adherence to 
necessary ones  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Will remain under 
review 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning 
and teams to maintain 
operational capacity 

P
age 165



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove 
the hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

 
 
 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Briefing and 
supervision to support 
best capacity. 

 

Assessment Summary 

 

Venue    Crumlin Community Education/Youth Centre  Open Yes  

Service(s)   Youth Service  Control   Elimination 

 

 

Head of Service (Title): Chief Education Officer  Director   Richard Edmunds 

 

Signed:          Signed:        

 

Date:     / /     Date:    / /  

 

  

P
age 166



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Blackwood 
Youth 
Centre 
 
Youth 
Service/Bla
ckwood 
Comprehe
nsive 
School 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Continued application 
of Locally approved 
guidance informed by 
WG Youth Work 
guidance.  Includes 
pre-sessional 
assessment of health 
and dynamic 
assessment during 
activity. 
All staff briefed on 
control measures, 
including actions 
relating to self-
isolation.  Cleaning 
and movement 
regimes established, 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number (max 15 at 
present) of young 
people.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Attendance And 
registration records 
are maintained, as is 
regular contact with 
parents/carers – 
additional 
communication is 
made as warranted. 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face-
to-face contact.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Youth work sessions 
are currently limited to 
1 hour’s duration 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring fixed staff 
delivery groups where 
possible. This limits 
the number of people 
that the virus can 
potentially spread to.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce 
how much the virus 
can spread through 
surface contamination 
and aerosol 
transmission.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Significant investment 
in outdoor/detached 
youth work delivery 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions focus on 
least contaminating 
actions.  As per 
stringent guidance, no 
sharing of resources 
or use of external 
resources/equipment  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. 
Providing additional 
hand wash stations –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, 
including providing 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are 
touched a lot  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All staff briefed and 
trained 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Providing hand 
sanitiser  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Avoiding sharing of 
equipment  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in 
a particular location 

Reasonable Measure 
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance) 
Gloves and aprons  
Eye protection 
 
Proposed Approach: 
All available for use 

Yes – open 
throughout 
Covid period 
but 
recommend 
expansion of 
use    
 
Suggest – 
 
September to 
December 
and monitor 
impact, 
footfall and 
refine 
approaches 

P
age 167



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

 
Proposed Approach: 
Limited open access 
arrangements will 
enable accurate 
records of staff, 
contact details of 
young people and 
time and date in the 
building. 
Reasonable Measure 
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much 
as possible, such as 
areas where social 
distancing cannot be 
maintained.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
The Hangar has 
sufficient space for 
social distancing and 
access and 
movement controls 
are in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both 
vaccine doses as 
soon as 
recommended.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
As per broader 
Education guidance, 

 
Reasonable Measure 
Using other 
technologies to 
replace face-to-face 
interactions, for 
example using ‘click 
and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of online 
delivery/engagement 
where 
possible/relevant 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Installation of 
partitions at 
appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks 
or between work 
stations) to separate 
staff etc. If used 
ensure they are 
cleaned and 
disinfected in line with 
cleaning procedures. 
Cleaning, hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace 
COVID-secure 
(hse.gov.uk)  
 

facilities and signage 
to encourage regular 
handwashing and 
sanitising 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly 
ventilated spaces –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All youth work spaces 
in premises subject to 
ventilation 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, 
for example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined 
areas such as lifts, 
toilet facilities, 
kitchens or meeting 
rooms at the same 
time.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Setting allows for this. 
One way and 
staggered systems in 
place. 

by, for example, 
encouraging home 
working where 
possible 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff are currently 
redistributed in this 
manner. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staggering shifts 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions are 
staggered so that none 
coincide. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between 
them,  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Regularly monitored 
and in place.  
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
The use of face-
coverings and or face-
shields in indoors 
areas for workers and 
members of the public 
– all above  

P
age 168

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

educators can 
engage with young 
people if not 
vaccinated but this is 
not encouraged. 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Approach: 
Cleaning and 
disinfecting carried 
out between different 
youth work sessions 
 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at Setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination 
take up of your 
workforce 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Underway – also 
includes vaccination 
take-up 
encouragement 
(education sessions) 
by young people 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Physical distancing of 
staff and young 
people/others 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place in all settings.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms 
before ventilation   

 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings 
currently under review 
for education and 
related services 
engaging with young 
people. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage 
LFD at home   
 
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a 
new process and an 
associated HR policy 
would be required 
 

P
age 169



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Proposed Approach: 
Planned sessions only 
with known 
participants 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety 
improvements  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering users 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary 
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to 
promote adherence to 
necessary ones  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Will remain under 
review 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning 
and teams to maintain 
operational capacity 
 
 
 

P
age 170



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

 
Proposed Approach: 
Briefing and 
supervision to support 
best capacity. 

 

Assessment Summary 

 

Venue    Blackwood Youth Centre/Comprehensive school  Open Yes  

Service(s)   Youth Service  Control   Elimination 

 

 

Head of Service (Title): Chief Education Officer  Director   Richard Edmunds 

 

Signed:          Signed:        

 

Date:     / /     Date:    / /  

 

  

P
age 171



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Risca 
Youth  
Centre 
 
Youth 
Service 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Continued application 
of Locally approved 
guidance informed by 
WG Youth Work 
guidance.  Includes 
pre-sessional 
assessment of health 
and dynamic 
assessment during 
activity. 
All staff briefed on 
control measures, 
including actions 
relating to self-
isolation.  Cleaning 
and movement 
regimes established, 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number (max 15 at 
present) of young 
people.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Attendance And 
registration records 
are maintained, as is 
regular contact with 
parents/carers – 
additional 
communication is 
made as warranted. 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face-
to-face contact.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Youth work sessions 
are currently limited to 
1 hour’s duration 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring fixed staff 
delivery groups where 
possible. This limits 
the number of people 
that the virus can 
potentially spread to.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce 
how much the virus 
can spread through 
surface contamination 
and aerosol 
transmission.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Significant investment 
in outdoor/detached 
youth work delivery 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions focus on 
least contaminating 
actions.  As per 
stringent guidance, no 
sharing of resources 
or use of external 
resources/equipment  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. 
Providing additional 
hand wash stations –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, 
including providing 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are 
touched a lot  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All staff briefed and 
trained 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Providing hand 
sanitiser  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Avoiding sharing of 
equipment  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in 
a particular location 

Reasonable Measure 
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance) 
Gloves and aprons  
Eye protection 
 
Proposed Approach: 
All available for use 

Yes – open 
throughout 
Covid period 
but 
recommend 
expansion of 
use    
 
Suggest – 
 
September to 
December 
and monitor 
impact, 
footfall and 
refine 
approaches 

P
age 172



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

 
Proposed Approach: 
Limited open access 
arrangements will 
enable accurate 
records of staff, 
contact details of 
young people and time 
and date in the 
building. 
Reasonable Measure 
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much 
as possible, such as 
areas where social 
distancing cannot be 
maintained.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
The Hangar has 
sufficient space for 
social distancing and 
access and movement 
controls are in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both 
vaccine doses as soon 
as recommended.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
As per broader 
Education guidance, 
educators can engage 
with young people if 

 
Reasonable Measure 
Using other 
technologies to 
replace face-to-face 
interactions, for 
example using ‘click 
and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of online 
delivery/engagement 
where 
possible/relevant 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Installation of 
partitions at 
appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks 
or between work 
stations) to separate 
staff etc. If used 
ensure they are 
cleaned and 
disinfected in line with 
cleaning procedures. 
Cleaning, hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace 
COVID-secure 
(hse.gov.uk)  
 

facilities and signage 
to encourage regular 
handwashing and 
sanitising 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly 
ventilated spaces –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All youth work spaces 
in premises subject to 
ventilation 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, 
for example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined 
areas such as lifts, 
toilet facilities, 
kitchens or meeting 
rooms at the same 
time.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Setting allows for this. 
One way and 
staggered systems in 
place. 

by, for example, 
encouraging home 
working where 
possible 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff are currently 
redistributed in this 
manner. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staggering shifts 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions are 
staggered so that none 
coincide. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between 
them,  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Regularly monitored 
and in place.  
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
The use of face-
coverings and or face-
shields in indoors 
areas for workers and 
members of the public 
– all above  

P
age 173

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

not vaccinated but this 
is not encouraged. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Proposed Approach: 
Cleaning and 
disinfecting carried 
out between different 
youth work sessions 
 
 
 

 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at Setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination 
take up of your 
workforce 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Underway – also 
includes vaccination 
take-up 
encouragement 
(education sessions) 
by young people 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Physical distancing of 
staff and young 
people/others 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place in all settings.  
 
Reasonable Measure 

 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings 
currently under review 
for education and 
related services 
engaging with young 
people. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage 
LFD at home   
 
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a 
new process and an 
associated HR policy 
would be required 
 

P
age 174



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms 
before ventilation   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Planned sessions only 
with known 
participants 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety 
improvements  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering users 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary 
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to 
promote adherence to 
necessary ones  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Will remain under 
review 
 
Reasonable Measure: 

P
age 175



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Workforce planning 
and teams to maintain 
operational capacity 
 
 
 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Briefing and 
supervision to support 
best capacity. 

 

Assessment Summary 

 

Venue    Risca Youth Centre  Open Yes  

Service(s)   Youth Service  Control   Elimination 

 

 

Head of Service (Title): Chief Education Officer  Director   Richard Edmunds 

 

Signed:          Signed:        

 

Date:     / /     Date:    / /  

 

  

P
age 176



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

The 
Basement 
drop in 
centre-
Blackwoo
d Library 
 
Youth 
Service 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Continued application 
of Locally approved 
guidance informed by 
WG Youth Work 
guidance.  Includes 
pre-sessional 
assessment of health 
and dynamic 
assessment during 
activity. 
All staff briefed on 
control measures, 
including actions 
relating to self-
isolation.  Cleaning 
and movement 
regimes established, 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number (max 15 at 
present) of young 
people.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Attendance And 
registration records 
are maintained, as is 
regular contact with 
parents/carers – 
additional 
communication is 
made as warranted. 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face-
to-face contact.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Youth work sessions 
are currently limited to 
1 hour’s duration 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring fixed staff 
delivery groups where 
possible. This limits 
the number of people 
that the virus can 
potentially spread to.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce 
how much the virus 
can spread through 
surface contamination 
and aerosol 
transmission.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Significant investment 
in outdoor/detached 
youth work delivery 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions focus on 
least contaminating 
actions.  As per 
stringent guidance, no 
sharing of resources 
or use of external 
resources/equipment  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. 
Providing additional 
hand wash stations –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, 
including providing 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are 
touched a lot  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All staff briefed and 
trained 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Providing hand 
sanitiser  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Avoiding sharing of 
equipment  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in 
a particular location 

Reasonable Measure 
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance) 
Gloves and aprons  
Eye protection 
 
Proposed Approach: 
All available for use 

Yes – open 
throughout 
Covid period 
but 
recommend 
expansion of 
use    
 
Suggest – 
 
September to 
December 
and monitor 
impact, 
footfall and 
refine 
approaches 

P
age 177



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

 
Proposed Approach: 
Limited open access 
arrangements will 
enable accurate 
records of staff, 
contact details of 
young people and time 
and date in the 
building. 
Reasonable Measure 
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much 
as possible, such as 
areas where social 
distancing cannot be 
maintained.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
The Hangar has 
sufficient space for 
social distancing and 
access and movement 
controls are in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both 
vaccine doses as soon 
as recommended.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
As per broader 
Education guidance, 
educators can engage 
with young people if 

 
Reasonable Measure 
Using other 
technologies to 
replace face-to-face 
interactions, for 
example using ‘click 
and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of online 
delivery/engagement 
where 
possible/relevant 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Installation of 
partitions at 
appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks 
or between work 
stations) to separate 
staff etc. If used 
ensure they are 
cleaned and 
disinfected in line with 
cleaning procedures. 
Cleaning, hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace 
COVID-secure 
(hse.gov.uk)  
 

facilities and signage 
to encourage regular 
handwashing and 
sanitising 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly 
ventilated spaces –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
All youth work spaces 
in premises subject to 
ventilation 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, 
for example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined 
areas such as lifts, 
toilet facilities, 
kitchens or meeting 
rooms at the same 
time.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Setting allows for this. 
One way and 
staggered systems in 
place. 

by, for example, 
encouraging home 
working where 
possible 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff are currently 
redistributed in this 
manner. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staggering shifts 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Sessions are 
staggered so that none 
coincide. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between 
them,  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Regularly monitored 
and in place.  
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
The use of face-
coverings and or face-
shields in indoors 
areas for workers and 
members of the public 
– all above  

P
age 178

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

not vaccinated but this 
is not encouraged. 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Approach: 
Cleaning and 
disinfecting carried 
out between different 
youth work sessions 
 
 
 

 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at Setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination 
take up of your 
workforce 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Underway – also 
includes vaccination 
take-up 
encouragement 
(education sessions) 
by young people 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Physical distancing of 
staff and young 
people/others 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place in all settings.  
 
Reasonable Measure 

 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings 
currently under review 
for education and 
related services 
engaging with young 
people. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage 
LFD at home   
 
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a 
new process and an 
associated HR policy 
would be required 
 

P
age 179



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms 
before ventilation   
Proposed Approach: 
Planned sessions only 
with known 
participants 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety 
improvements  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering users 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary 
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to 
promote adherence to 
necessary ones  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Will remain under 
review 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning 
and teams to maintain 
operational capacity 

P
age 180



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

 
Proposed Approach: 
Briefing and 
supervision to support 
best capacity. 

 

Assessment Summary 

 

Venue    The Basement Drop In Centre/Blackwood Library  Open Yes  

Service(s)   Youth Service  Control   Elimination 

 

 

Head of Service (Title): Chief Education Officer  Director   Richard Edmunds 

 

Signed:          Signed:        

 

Date:     / /     Date:    / /  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 181



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Housing 
Offices –  
 
Building 
& 
Technolo
gy Centre 
 
Ty Gilfach 

Reasonable Measure 
Stopping an infectious 
person being in an 
environment e.g. 
prohibit people from 
attending if feel 
unwell, and advise 
they should get tested 
and ensuring that all 
employees follow self-
isolation advice if they 
are a contact of a 
possible confirmed 
case. 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Under current 
operational guidance 
staff are fully aware of 
the need to report 
symptoms to line 
managers immediately 
and to book PCR tests; 
to self-isolate if they 
test positive, 
irrespective of whether 
or not they have 
symptoms, and to 
follow official 
guidance if they are a 
close contact of a 
confirmed case. 
. 
 
Access by customers 
for a limited number of 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face-
to-face contact.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Yes, prearranged 
appointments only in 
Covid secure meeting 
spaces so numbers 
can be managed to 
ensure potential risks 
are minimised. 
. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Changing work 
patterns so that people 
work in a fixed group 
or cohort or arrive at 
and leave work at 
staggered times. This 
limits the number of 
people that the virus 
can potentially spread 
to.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Yes appointments 
only. Staff attendance 
based on daily rota for 
home and office 
working and Team 
Managers are 
therefore able to 

Reasonable Measure 
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Not available. Cleaning 
and disinfecting to be 
carried between 
appointments 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Dedicated desk spaces 
for almost all staff. 
Office attendance 
based on rota. 
Appointments only. 
Cleaning and 
disinfecting to be 
carried between 
appointments. 
All work stations are 
kept clear to assist 
cleaning. If shared all 
staff clean the 
workstation before use 
and after use. 
Colleagues to leave an 
hour between 
scheduled use of 
shared desks. 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are 
touched a lot  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Cleaning and 
disinfecting to be 
carried between 
appointments. 
.  
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Advice and materials 
given to staff who will 
clean surfaces prior to 
and after 
appointments in 
accordance with 
agreed process. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Providing hand 
sanitiser  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at setting 
 
 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance) 
Gloves and aprons  
Eye protection 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appropriate PPE for 
the tasks undertaken 
is available to all staff 
in all offices. 
 

Yes, but 
under stated 
elimination 
controls and 
by 
appointment, 
in line with 
systems 
already in 
place that 
have 
facilitated 
limited 
access 
throughout 
Covid period. 
Appointment
s only offered 
after 
reasoned 
consideration 
of alternative 
options, and 
only for those 
elements of 
the service 
that cannot 
be completed 
remotely. 
 
Suggest: 
In 
conjunction 
with Heads of 
other 
services 

P
age 182



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

prearranged 
appointments per day. 
Covid questions and 
advice given to 
customers.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring that accurate 
records are kept of 
which employees (and, 
where applicable, 
customers / visitors / 
clients) have been 
present so that they 
can be contact traced 
if necessary 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by 
appointment only will 
enable accurate 
records of staff, 
contact details of 
customers and time 
and date in the 
building. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much 
as possible, such as 
areas where social 
distancing cannot be 
maintained.   
 

manage numbers as 
appropriate. 
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce 
how much the virus 
can spread through 
surface contamination 
and aerosol 
transmission.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments will only 
be offered where 
alternative 
arrangements have 
been considered and 
are not appropriate.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using other 
technologies to 
replace face-to-face 
interactions, for 
example using ‘click 
and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Yes, continue to 
provide majority of 
services remotely. 

Minimise shared 
equipment - Staff use 
own keyboard and 
mouse at shared desk 
spaces. 
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. 
Providing additional 
hand wash stations –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Hand sanitising 
stations are available 
in all office spaces and 
public areas 
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, 
including providing 
facilities and signage 
to encourage regular 
handwashing and 
sanitising 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place  
 
 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Avoiding sharing of 
equipment such as 
‘hot-desking’  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Manageable if 
appointment only and 
office rotas in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in 
a particular location 
by, for example, 
encouraging home 
working where 
possible 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff numbers can be 
reduced through 
introduction of 
appointments only and 
office rotas. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staggering shifts 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Limited flexible 
working hours 
available, office rotas 
and appointments 
only. 
 

consider the 
opportunities 
available to 
provide 
appointments 
for 
customers at 
Housing 
surgeries in 
alternative 
Covid 
compliant 
venues that 
open to the 
public e.g. 
libraries 
 
 
Caveats: 
Propose 
these 
arrangements 
continue until 
such time as 
Government 
guidance 
may change 
and 
restrictions 
may be 
reviewed/rein
stated 

P
age 183



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Proposed Approach: 
The Business and 
Technology Centre 
provides sufficient 
space for social 
distancing and access 
and movement 
controls to be in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both 
vaccine doses as soon 
as recommended.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff be encouraged to 
take up vaccination 
opportunities. 
Encourage lateral flow 
testing at home.   
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing would require a 
new process and an 
associated HR policy 
would be required 
 
 
 
 
 

Appointments only 
offered after reasoned 
consideration of 
alternative options, 
and for those elements 
of the service that 
cannot be completed 
remotely 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Installation of 
partitions at 
appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks 
or between work 
stations) to separate 
staff etc. If used 
ensure they are 
cleaned and 
disinfected in line with 
cleaning procedures. 
Cleaning, hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace 
COVID-secure 
(hse.gov.uk)  
 
Proposed Approach: 
 
Appointments only in 
Covid secure meeting 
spaces.  
Partitions installed in 
interview rooms.  
Workstations are 
cleaned and 

Reasonable Measure 
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly 
ventilated spaces –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Windows to be kept 
open whenever 
possible/practicable. 
Where limited, 
opportunities will be 
maximised. Time 
spacing in small 
appointment meeting 
rooms to allow for 
ventilation between 
appointments. Doors 
kept open where 
practicable. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, 
for example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined 
areas such as lifts, 
toilet facilities, 
kitchens or meeting 
rooms at the same 
time.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Setting allows for this. 
One way system 

Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between 
them,  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only, in 
meeting rooms that 
allow social distancing 
or have partitions 
installed, use of office 
rotas and amendments 
to office layouts to 
facilitate social 
distancing. One way 
systems. All staff 
attending the offices 
are aware of the need 
to maintain an 
appropriate level of 
social distancing.   
 
Reasonable Measure 
The use of face-
coverings and or face-
shields in indoors 
areas for workers and 
members of the public 
– all above  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings 
in public areas and 
requested when 
moving around the 

P
age 184

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

disinfected in line with 
cleaning procedures. 
Desks in meeting 
rooms to be carried 
out between 
appointments. 
In offices space is 
maintained between 
work stations rather 
than installation of 
barriers. 
 

already established, 
appointments and 
rotas control numbers. 
All staff attending the 
offices are aware of 
the need to maintain 
an appropriate level of 
social distancing.  
Numbers of staff 
allowed in 
kitchen/lift/WC areas at 
any one time are 
limited and signage 
ensures staff are 
reminded of these 
requirements. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(e.g. signs, floor tape 
or paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Clear signage and one-
way systems in place. 
Provide signage at 
entrances advising 
attendance is by 
appointment only. 
 
 
 
 

building. All staff have 
access to PPE which 
is utilised as and when 
necessary. 
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage 
LFD at home   
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a 
new process and an 
associated HR policy 
would be required 
 

P
age 185



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination 
take up of your 
workforce 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Underway 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Physical distancing of 
staff and customers / 
children 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only. 
Advise public to attend 
alone where possible. 
Use of meeting rooms 
that allow social 
distancing or have 
partitions installed. 
Any visitors to 
buildings will be pre-
planned and by 
appointment only so 
triage arrangements, 
social distancing and 
the use of PPE as 
required can all be 
planned ahead. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms 
before ventilation   
 

P
age 186



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Proposed Approach: 
Controlled by 
appointment diary. 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety 
improvements  
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering Customers 
and staff opportunity 
to provide verbal 
feedback on 
experience. Managers 
and staff are fully 
aware of the 
requirements on them 
and these have been in 
place and have been 
kept under review 
since the start of the 
first lockdown. 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary 
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to 
promote adherence to 
necessary ones  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Will remain subject to 
review. Operational 
guidance for staff is 

P
age 187



APPENDIX 1 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

continually kept under 
review to take account 
of changing WG 
guidance 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning 
and teams to maintain 
operational capacity 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments will only 
assist. Essential 
frontline service 
delivery has been 
successfully 
maintained throughout 
the entire pandemic. 
 
 

 

P
age 188



APPENDIX 2 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Neighbou
rhood 
Housing 
Offices –  
 
Lansbury 
Park & 
Graig Y 
Rhacca 
 
Communit
y Housing 
Office – 
Holly 
Road 

Reasonable Measure 
Stopping an infectious 
person being in an 
environment e.g. prohibit 
people from attending if 
feel unwell, and advise 
they should get tested 
and ensuring that all 
employees follow self-
isolation advice if they 
are a contact of a 
possible confirmed case. 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Under current 
operational guidance 
staff are fully aware of 
the need to report 
symptoms to line 
managers immediately 
and to book PCR tests; 
to self-isolate if they test 
positive, irrespective of 
whether or not they have 
symptoms, and to follow 
official guidance if they 
are a close contact of a 
confirmed case. 
 
Access by customers for 
a limited number of 
prearranged 
appointments per day. 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face-
to-face contact.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Yes, prearranged 
appointments only in 
Covid secure meeting 
spaces so numbers can 
be managed to ensure 
potential risks are 
minimised, however due 
to office size and layout 
to do this would create 
lone working issues. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Changing work patterns 
so that people work in a 
fixed group or cohort or 
arrive at and leave work 
at staggered times. This 
limits the number of 
people that the virus can 
potentially spread to.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Not possible – lone 
working issues. 
 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Not available. Cleaning 
and disinfecting to be 
carried between 
appointments 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Dedicated desk spaces 
for almost all staff. An 
office attendance based 
on rotas and 
appointments would 
cause lone working 
issues. Cleaning and 
disinfecting to be carried 
between appointments. 
All work stations are 
kept clear to assist 
cleaning. If shared all 
staff clean the 
workstation before use 
and after use. All work- 
stations are kept clear to 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are 
touched a lot  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Cleaning and 
disinfecting to be carried 
between appointments. 
.  
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing training on 
quality and effectiveness 
of cleaning  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Advice and materials 
given to staff who will 
clean surfaces prior to 
and after appointments 
in accordance with 
agreed process. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Providing hand sanitiser  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Would be provided 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Avoiding sharing of 
equipment such as ‘hot-
desking’  

Reasonable Measure 
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance) 
Gloves and aprons  
Eye protection 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appropriate PPE for the 
tasks undertaken is 
available to all staff in all 
offices. 
 

No. 
 
Staff to 
continue to 
work from 
alternative 
offices at Ty 
Gilfach and 
Business and 
Technology 
Centre on 
rota basis.  
Operate 
appointments 
from Ty 
Gilfach and 
the BTC 
under stated 
elimination 
controls and 
by 
appointment, 
in line with 
systems 
already in 
place that 
have 
facilitated 
limited 
access 
throughout 
Covid period. 
Appointment

P
age 189



APPENDIX 2 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Covid questions and 
advice given to 
customers.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring that accurate 
records are kept of 
which employees (and, 
where applicable, 
customers / visitors / 
clients) have been 
present so that they can 
be contact traced if 
necessary 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by appointment 
only will enable accurate 
records of staff, contact 
details of customers and 
time and date in the 
building. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much as 
possible, such as areas 
where social distancing 
cannot be maintained.   
 
Proposed Approach: 

Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce how 
much the virus can 
spread through surface 
contamination and 
aerosol transmission.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Not possible. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using other technologies 
to replace face-to-face 
interactions, for example 
using ‘click and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Yes, continue to provide 
majority of services 
remotely. Appointments 
only offered where 
alternative arrangements 
and venues have been 
considered and are not 
appropriate, and for 
those elements of the 
service that cannot be 
completed remotely 
 

assist cleaning. If shared 
all staff clean the 
workstation before use 
and after use.  
 
Colleagues to leave an 
hour between scheduled 
use of shared desks. 
Minimise shared 
equipment – staff use 
own mouse and 
keyboard. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. Providing 
additional hand wash 
stations –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Hand sanitising stations 
would be made available 
in all office spaces and 
public areas 
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, including 
providing facilities and 
signage to encourage 

 
 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Not possible for 
appointments. 
Manageable if 
appointment only and 
office rotas in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in a 
particular location by, for 
example, encouraging 
home working where 
possible 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Difficult to reduce staff 
numbers through 
introduction of 
appointments only and 
office rotas due to office 
layouts and lone working 
issues. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staggering shifts 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Only limited flexible 
working hours available 

s offered after 
reasoned 
consideration 
of alternative 
options, and 
for those 
elements of 
the service 
that cannot 
be completed 
remotely. 
 
Suggest: 
  
Lansbury 
Park and 
Graig y 
Rhacca 
Neighbourho
od Housing 
Offices and 
Holly Road 
Community 
Office to 
remain  
closed to the 
public until 
April 2022 
when a 
further review 
will be 
undertaken.   
 

P
age 190



APPENDIX 2 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

The Neighbourhood 
Housing Offices do not  
provide sufficient space 
for  
social distancing and 
access and movement 
controls to be in place 
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both vaccine 
doses as soon as 
recommended.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff be encouraged to 
take up vaccination 
opportunities.  
Encourage lateral flow 
testing at home   
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR testing 
would require a new 
process and an 
associated HR policy 
would be required. 
 
 
 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Installation of partitions 
at appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks or 
between work stations) 
to separate staff etc. If 
used ensure they are 
cleaned and disinfected 
in line with cleaning 
procedures. Cleaning, 
hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace COVID-
secure (hse.gov.uk)  
 
Proposed Approach: 
 
Screens would need to 
be installed but Interview 
rooms are too small to 
operate with 
partitions/screens 
installed so no Covid 
secure meeting spaces 
available.  
In offices partitions and 
screens would need to 
be installed to facilitate 
safe working 
environment. 
 

regular handwashing 
and sanitising 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Would be put in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly 
ventilated spaces –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Windows to be kept 
open where possible 
and practical. Where 
limited, opportunities will 
be maximised. Time 
spacing in small 
appointment meeting 
room to allow for 
ventilation between 
appointments. Doors 
kept open where 
practicable. No windows 
in meeting rooms. Doors 
unable to be left open 
due to confidential 
nature of appointments. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, for 
example one way 

with normal office 
opening hours; office 
rotas and appointments 
would create lone 
working issues. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between them,  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Setting does not 
adequately allow for this. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
The use of face-
coverings and or face-
shields in indoors areas 
for workers and 
members of the public – 
all above  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings in 
public areas and 
requested when moving 
around the building. All 
staff have access to 
PPE which is utilised as 
and when necessary. 
 
 

Suggest: 
In 
conjunction 
with Heads of 
other 
services 
consider the 
opportunities 
available to 
provide 
appointments 
for customers 
at Housing 
surgeries in 
alternative 
Covid 
compliant 
venues that 
open to the 
public e.g. 
libraries 
 

P
age 191

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 2 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined 
areas such as lifts, toilet 
facilities, kitchens or 
meeting rooms at the 
same time.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Setting does not fully 
allow for this.  
All staff attending the 
offices would be aware 
of the need to maintain 
an appropriate level of 
social distancing.  
Numbers of staff allowed 
in kitchen/WC areas at 
any one time limited and 
signage ensures staff 
are reminded of these 
requirements. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(e.g. signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.  
 
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage LFD 
at home   
 
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a 
new process and an 
associated HR policy 
would be required 
 

P
age 192



APPENDIX 2 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Proposed Approach: 
Clear signage and one-
way systems would be 
put in place. 
Provide signage at 
entrances advising 
attendance is by 
appointment only. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination 
take up of your 
workforce 
Proposed Approach: 
Underway 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Physical distancing of 
staff and customers / 
children 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only.  
Advise public to attend 
alone where possible. 
No interview rooms 
allow social distancing or 
have partitions installed. 
Any visitors to buildings 
will be pre-planned and 
by appointment only so 
triage arrangements, 
social distancing and the 

P
age 193



APPENDIX 2 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

use of PPE as required 
can all be planned 
ahead. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms 
before ventilation   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Controlled by 
appointment diary. 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety 
improvements  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering Customers and 
staff opportunity to 
provide verbal feedback 
on experience. 
Managers and staff are 
fully aware of the 
requirements on them 
and these have been in 
place and have been 
kept under review since 
the start of the first 
lockdown. 

P
age 194



APPENDIX 2 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary 
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to promote 
adherence to necessary 
ones  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Will remain subject to 
review. Operational 
guidance for staff is 
continually kept under 
review to take account of 
changing WG guidance 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning and 
teams to maintain 
operational capacity 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments will only 
assist. Essential frontline 
service delivery has 
been successfully 
maintained throughout 
the entire pandemic from 
Ty Gilfach and the 
Business and 
technology Centre. 
 
 

 

P
age 195



APPENDIX 2 
 

Assessment Summary 

Venue           Open Yes / No       

Service(s)          Control        

          

          

          

          

Head of Service (Title): Fiona Wilkins      Director   Dave Street     

Signed:          Signed:        

Date:    17/09/2021     Date:    17/09/2021  P
age 196



APPENDIX 3 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Ty 
Penallta  
 
Customer 
Services 
and 
Reception 

Reasonable Measure 
Stopping an infectious 
person being in an 
environment by e.g. 
prohibit people from 
attending if feel unwell, 
and advise they should 
get tested and ensuring 
that all employees follow 
self-isolation advice if 
they are a contact of a 
possible confirmed case. 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number of appointments 
per day only.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring that accurate 
records are kept of 
which employees (and, 
where applicable, 
customers / visitors / 
clients) have been 
present so that they can 
be contact traced if 
necessary 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by appointment 
only will enable accurate 
records of staff, contact 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face-
to-face contact.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Yes appointments only – 
no payments unless part 
of a service request 
such as buying a permit 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Changing work patterns 
so that people work in a 
fixed group or cohort or 
arrive at and leave work 
at staggered times. This 
limits the number of 
people that the virus can 
potentially spread to.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Yes appointments only 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce how 
much the virus can 
spread through surface 
contamination and 
aerosol transmission.  
 
Proposed Approach: 

Reasonable Measure 
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only, no  
payments taken unless 
part of a service request 
ie: buying a permit. Llimit 
staff available,.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. Providing 
additional hand wash 
stations –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
As above 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, including 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are 
touched a lot  
 
Proposed Approach: 
New process required 
and agreement for staff 
to do this, new furniture 
if cloth furniture in place.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing training on 
quality and effectiveness 
of cleaning  
 
Proposed Approach: 
New processes required 
or cleaning staff 
dedicated to the area 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Providing hand sanitiser  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Avoiding sharing of 
equipment such as ‘hot-
desking’  
 
 

Reasonable Measure 
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance) 
Gloves and aprons  
Eye protection 
 
Proposed Approach: 
All available for use 

Yes under 
stated 
Elimination 
Controls    
 
Suggest – 
 
September to 
December 
and monitor 
impact, 
footfall and 
refine 
approaches P

age 197



APPENDIX 3 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

details of customers and 
time and date in the 
building. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much as 
possible, such as areas 
where social distancing 
cannot be maintained.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Ty Penallta provides 
sufficient space for 
social distancing and 
access and movement 
controls to be in place. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both vaccine 
doses as soon as 
recommended.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Only use staff in setting 
with two vaccines in 
place  
 
 
 
 
 

Not possible 
 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Using other technologies 
to replace face-to-face 
interactions, for example 
using ‘click and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Yes move all services on 
line and stop  
payment collections 
unless it’s part of a 
service request ie: 
buying a permit 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Installation of partitions 
at appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks or 
between work stations) 
to separate staff etc. If 
used ensure they are 
cleaned and disinfected 
in line with cleaning 
procedures. Cleaning, 
hygiene and 
handwashing to make 

providing facilities and 
signage to encourage 
regular handwashing 
and sanitising 
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly 
ventilated spaces –  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Limited opportunities – 
keep door open 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, for 
example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined 
areas such as lifts, toilet 
facilities, kitchens or 
meeting rooms at the 
same time.   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Setting allows for this. 
One way system can be 
established, 

Proposed Approach: 
Manageable if 
appointment only 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in a 
particular location by, for 
example, encouraging 
home working where 
possible 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Staff numbers can be 
reduced through 
introduction of 
appointments only. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Staggering shifts 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Officer Hours only but 
staff numbers can be 
reduced through 
introduction of 
appointments only. 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between them,  
 

P
age 198

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 3 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

your workplace COVID-
secure (hse.gov.uk)  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Partitions in place at Ty 
Penallta. Cleaning and 
disinfecting to be carried 
between appointments 
 
 
 

appointments would 
control numbers 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.  
 
Proposed Approach: 
In place at Setting 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination 
take up of your 
workforce 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Underway 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Physical distancing of 
staff and customers / 
children 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Partitions in place. 
Queuing systems can be 
introduced.  
 
 

Proposed Approach: 
Partitions in place. 
Queuing and one way 
systems can be 
introduced.  
 
Reasonable Measure 
The use of face-
coverings and or face-
shields in indoors areas 
for workers and 
members of the public – 
all above  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings in 
indoor spaces to be 
requested 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid-
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage LFD 
at home   
 
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a 
new process and an 
associated HR policy 
would be required 
 

P
age 199

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 3 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Reasonable Measure 
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms 
before ventilation   
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only 
combined with queuing 
system 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety 
improvements  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering Customers 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience 
 
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary 
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to promote 
adherence to necessary 
ones  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Will remain under review 
 

P
age 200



APPENDIX 3 

Venue & 
Service 

Elimination - 
Physically remove the 
hazard 

Substitution - replace 
the hazard 

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the 
hazard 

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work 

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 
 

Recommend 
to open? and 
conditions? 

Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning and 
teams to maintain 
operational capacity 
 
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only will 
assist 

 

Assessment Summary 

 

Venue     Ty Penallta     Open Yes / No  Yes     

Service(s)    Customer First    Control   Elimination    

     Reception    

          

          

          

 

Head of Service (Title):  Liz Lucas     Director   Richards (Ed) Edmunds   

 

Signed:          Signed:        

 

Date:    13/09/2021     Date:    13/09/2021  

P
age 201



G
adew

ir y dudalen hon yn w
ag yn fw

riadol

P
age 202



APPENDIX 4 
 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

Newbridge 
library  
  
Customer 
Services  

 

Reasonable Measure 
Stopping an infectious 
person being in an 
environment by e.g. 
prohibit people from 
attending if feel unwell, 
and advise they should 
get tested and ensuring 
that all employees follow 
self-isolation advice if 
they are a contact of a 
possible confirmed case.  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number of appointments 
per day only.   
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring that accurate 
records are kept of which 
employees (and, where 
applicable, customers / 
visitors / clients) have 
been present so that they 
can be contact traced if  
necessary  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Access by appointment 
only will enable accurate 
records of staff, contact 
details of customers and 
time and date in the 
building.  

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face to-
face contact.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Yes appointments only – 
no payments unless part 
of a service request  
such as buying a permit . 
however to do this we 
would create lone 
working issues 
 Reasonable Measure 
Changing work patterns 
so that people work in a 
fixed group or cohort or 
arrive at and leave work 
at staggered times. This 
limits the number of 
people that the virus can 
potentially spread to.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
No possible – lone 
working issues 
 Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce how 
much the virus can 
spread through surface 
contamination and 
aerosol transmission.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Not possible  

Reasonable Measure  
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only, no 
payments taken unless 
part of a service request 
ie: buying a permit. Limit 
staff available,.  One 
member of customer 
services staff available at 
a time 
 Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared surfaces, 
where this cannot be 
avoided altogether.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
As above  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. Providing 
additional hand wash 
stations –   
  
Proposed Approach:  
As above  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, including 
providing facilities and 
signage to encourage  

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are  
touched a lot   
  
Proposed Approach: 
New process required 
and agreement for staff 
to do this, new furniture 
if cloth furniture in place.   
 Reasonable Measure  
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning   
  
Proposed Approach: 
New processes required  
or cleaning staff  
dedicated to the area  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Providing hand sanitiser   
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place at setting  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Avoiding sharing of 

equipment such as 

‘hotdesking’   

  
Proposed Approach:  
Not possible at this site 
lone working issues 

Reasonable Measure  
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance)  
Gloves and aprons   
Eye protection  
  
Proposed Approach:  
All available for use  

No – 
payments 
cash office 
only on site, 
no customer 
service advice 
centre.   
  
Suggest –  
  
Newbridge 
customer 
services to 
remain  
closed to the 
public until 
April 2022 
when a full 
review will be 
undertaken.  
This will allow 
staff to remain 
supporting 
TTP and a 
cash 
collection 
policy to be 
agreed.  

P
age 203



APPENDIX 4 
 

 

Reasonable Measure  
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much as 
possible, such as areas 
where social distancing 
cannot be maintained.    
  
Proposed Approach: 
Pontlottyn Customer 
Services does not  
provide sufficient space 
for  
social distancing and 
access and movement 
controls to be in place.   
  
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both vaccine 
doses as soon as 
recommended.    
  
Proposed Approach:  
Only use staff in setting 
with two vaccines in 
place   
  
  
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure  
Using other technologies 
to replace face-to-face 
interactions, for example 
using ‘click and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 

consultations.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Yes move all services on  
line and stop  payment 
collections unless it’s 
part of a service 
request ie: buying a 
permit  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Installation of partitions 
at appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks or 
between work stations) 
to separate staff etc. If 
used ensure they are 
cleaned and disinfected 
in line with cleaning 
procedures. Cleaning, 
hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace COVID 
secure (hse.gov.uk)   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions and screens 
will need to be procured 
and installed at Site. 
Cleaning and  

regular handwashing and 
sanitising  
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly  
ventilated spaces –   
  

Proposed Approach: 
Limited opportunities – 
keep door open. 
Customer services is 
currently away from a 
ventilated space 
  
Reasonable Measure  
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, for  
example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined areas 
such as lifts, toilet  
facilities, kitchens or 
meeting rooms at the 
same time.    
  
Proposed Approach:  
Setting does not allow for 
this.  
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in a  
particular location by, for 
example, encouraging 
home working where  
possible  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Not possible at this site 
  
Reasonable Measure  
Staggering shifts  
  
Proposed Approach: 
not possible lone working 
issues at site.  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between them,   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Setting does not allow for 
this.  
 

  

 

P
age 204

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 4 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

  disinfecting to be carried  
between appointments  
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place at Setting  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination  
take up of your  
workforce  
  
Proposed Approach:  
Underway  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Physical distancing 
of staff and 
customers / children  
  
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions will need to be 
introduced  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms  
before ventilation    
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure 
The use of face 
coverings and or face 
shields in indoors areas 
for workers and 
members of the public – 
all above   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings in 
indoor spaces to be 
requested  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid 
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage LFD 
at home    
  
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a new 
process and an 
associated HR policy  
would be required  
  

  

 

P
age 205



APPENDIX 4 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

   Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only 
combined with queuing 
system  
  
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety  
improvements   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering Customers 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience  

   

 

    
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary  
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to promote 
adherence to necessary 
ones   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Will remain under review  
  
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning and 
teams to maintain  
operational capacity  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only will 
assist  

   

  

P
age 206



APPENDIX 4 
 

Assessment Summary  

  

Venue              Open Yes    Yes          

Service(s)                         

              

              

              

              

  

  

Head of Service (Title):       Elizabeth Lucas        Director        

         

 

  

Signed:         E J Lucas           Signed:         

       

 

  

Date:         07/ 09 /  21        Date:       /  /  

  

   

Newbridge Library  

L
No   

     

      

      

      

P
age 207



APPENDIX 4 
 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

Caerphilly 
  
Customer 
Services  

 

Reasonable Measure 
Stopping an infectious 
person being in an 
environment by e.g. 
prohibit people from 
attending if feel unwell, 
and advise they should 
get tested and ensuring 
that all employees follow 
self-isolation advice if 
they are a contact of a 
possible confirmed case.  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number of appointments 
per day only.   
  
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring that accurate 
records are kept of which 
employees (and, where 
applicable, customers / 
visitors / clients) have 
been present so that 
they can be contact 
traced if  
necessary  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Access by appointment 
only will enable accurate 
records of staff, contact 
details of customers and 
time and date in the 
building.  

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face to-
face contact.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Yes appointments only – 
no payments unless part 
of a service request  
such as buying a permit  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Changing work patterns 
so that people work in a 
fixed group or cohort or 
arrive at and leave work 
at staggered times. This 
limits the number of 
people that the virus can 
potentially spread to.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Yes appointments only  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce how 
much the virus can 
spread through surface 
contamination and 
aerosol transmission.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Not possible  
  
  

Reasonable Measure  
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only, no 
payments taken unless 
part of a service request 
ie: buying a permit. Limit 
staff available.  One 
member of customer 
services staff available at 
a time 
  
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared surfaces, 
where this cannot be 
avoided altogether.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
As above  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. Providing 
additional hand wash 
stations –   
  
Proposed Approach:  
As above  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, including 
providing facilities and 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are  
touched a lot   
  
Proposed Approach: 
New process required 
and agreement for staff 
to do this, new furniture 
if cloth furniture in place.   
  
Reasonable Measure  
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning   
  
Proposed Approach: 
New processes required  
or cleaning staff  
dedicated to the area  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Providing hand sanitiser   
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place at setting  
  
Reasonable Measure  

Avoiding sharing of 

equipment such as ‘hot 

desking’   

  
Proposed Approach: 
Manageable if  
appointment only  

Reasonable Measure  
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance)  
Gloves and aprons   
Eye protection  
  
Proposed Approach:  
All available for use  

Yes under 
stated 
Elimination  
Controls     
  
Suggest –  
  
Open 
Caerphilly 
Customer 
services on 
appointment 
only basis no 
payments in 
April 2022.  
The reason 
for the delay 
is so that 
Customer 
services staff 
continue to 
support TTP 
via 
secondment 
until March 
2022. New 
working 
procedures to 
be agreed 
with Library 
services. 
Screen and 
appropriate 
PPE to be 
procured and 
installed.  

P
age 208



APPENDIX 4 

signage to encourage    

 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

P
age 209



APPENDIX 4 

 

Reasonable Measure  
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much as 
possible, such as areas 
where social distancing 
cannot be maintained.    
  
Proposed Approach: 
Caerphilly Library 
provides sufficient space 
for  
social distancing and 
access and movement 
controls to be in place.  
However review working 
practices with Library 
staff.  Would need to 
keep customer services 
to one member of staff 
and one appointment at 
a time to control 
numbers.  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both vaccine 
doses as soon as 
recommended.    
  
Proposed Approach:  
Only use staff in setting 
with two vaccines in 
place   
  
  
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure  
Using other technologies 
to replace face-to-face 
interactions, for example 
using ‘click and collect’ 

technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Yes move all services on  
line and stop  payment 
collections unless it’s 
part of a service 
request ie: buying a 
permit  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Installation of partitions 
at appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks or 
between work stations) 
to separate staff etc. If 
used ensure they are 
cleaned and disinfected 
in line with cleaning 
procedures. Cleaning, 
hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace COVID 
secure (hse.gov.uk)   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions and screens 
will need to be procured 
and installed at 
Caerphilly Library 
customer services. . 
Cleaning and  

regular handwashing and 
sanitising  
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly  
ventilated spaces –   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Limited opportunities – 
keep door open. 
Customer services is 
currently away from a 
ventilated space 
  
Reasonable Measure  
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, for  
example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined areas 
such as lifts, toilet 
facilities, kitchens or 
meeting rooms at the 
same time.    
  
Proposed Approach:  
Setting allows for this. 
One way system can be  
established, 
appointments would 
control numbers . a 
process would need to 
be agreed with Library 
services  

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in a  
particular location by, for 
example, encouraging 
home working where  
possible  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Staff numbers can be 
reduced through 
introduction of 
appointments only and 
agreed working practices 
with Libraries  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Staggering shifts  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Officer Hours only but 
staff numbers can be 
reduced through 
introduction of 
appointments only.  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between them,   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions to be procured 
and installed   
Queuing and one way 
systems can be 
introduced.  In 
consultation with Library 
services 
  

  

 

P
age 210

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 4 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

  disinfecting to be carried  
between appointments  
  

Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place at Setting  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination  
take up of your  
workforce  
  
Proposed Approach:  
Underway  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Physical distancing 
of staff and 
customers / children  
  
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions will need to be 
introduced and agreed 
with Library staff.  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms  
before ventilation    
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure 
The use of face 
coverings and or face 
shields in indoors areas 
for workers and 
members of the public – 
all above   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings in 
indoor spaces to be 
requested  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid 
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage LFD 
at home    
  
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a new 
process and an 
associated HR policy  
would be required  
  

  

 

P
age 211



APPENDIX 4 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

   Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only 
combined with queuing 
system  
  
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety  
improvements   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering Customers 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience  

   

 

    
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary  
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to promote 
adherence to necessary 
ones   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Will remain under review  
  
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning and 
teams to maintain  
operational capacity  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only will 
assist  

   

  

P
age 212



APPENDIX 4 
  

P
age 213



APPENDIX 4 
Assessment Summary  

  

Venue              Open Yes    Yes          

Service(s)              Control            

              

              

              

              

  

  

         

 

  

Signed:         E J Lucas           Signed:         

       

 

  

Date:         07/ 09 /  21        Date:       /  / 

   

 

Elimination   

Caerphilly Library  

L
Yes - 1st April 2022   

Customer First – 

Appointments only 

    

      

      

      

P
age 214



APPENDIX 4 
 

 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

Pontlottyn 
  
Customer 
Services  

 

Reasonable Measure 
Stopping an infectious 
person being in an 
environment by e.g. 
prohibit people from 
attending if feel unwell, 
and advise they should 
get tested and ensuring 
that all employees follow 
self-isolation advice if 
they are a contact of a 
possible confirmed case.  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number of appointments 
per day only.  However 
would create lone 
working issues 
  
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring that accurate 
records are kept of which 
employees (and, where 
applicable, customers / 
visitors / clients) have 
been present so that 
they can be contact 
traced if  
necessary  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Access by appointment 
only will enable accurate 
records of staff, contact 
details of customers and 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face to-
face contact.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Yes appointments only – 
no payments unless part 
of a service request such 
as buying a permit. 
however to do this we 
would create lone 
working issues 
  
Reasonable Measure 
Changing work patterns 
so that people work in a 
fixed group or cohort or 
arrive at and leave work 
at staggered times. This 
limits the number of 
people that the virus can 
potentially spread to.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Not possible – lone 
working issues 
  
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce how 
much the virus can 
spread through surface 
contamination and 
aerosol transmission.   
  

Reasonable Measure  
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only, no 
payments taken unless 
part of a service request 
ie: buying a permit. Limit 
staff available.  One 
member of customer 
services staff available at 
a time 
  
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared surfaces, 
where this cannot be 
avoided altogether.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
As above  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. Providing 
additional hand wash 
stations –   
  
Proposed Approach:  
As above  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, including 
providing facilities and 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are  
touched a lot   
  
Proposed Approach: 
New process required 
and agreement for staff 
to do this, new furniture 
if cloth furniture in place.   
  
Reasonable Measure  
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning   
  
Proposed Approach: 
New processes required  
or cleaning staff  
dedicated to the area  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Providing hand sanitiser   
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place at setting  
  
Reasonable Measure  

Avoiding sharing of 

equipment such as ‘hot 

desking’   

  

Proposed Approach:  
Not possible at this site 
lone working issues 

Reasonable Measure  
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance)  
Gloves and aprons   
Eye protection  
  
Proposed Approach:  
All available for use  

No - due to 
lone working 
issues at site 
and unable to 
maintain 
social 
distancing 
  
Suggest –  
  
Pontlottyn 
site to remain 
closed to the 
public until 
April 2022 
when a full 
review will be 
undertaken.  
This will allow 
staff to remain 
supporting 
TTP  

P
age 215



APPENDIX 4 

time and date in the 
building.  

Proposed Approach:  
Not possible  
 

signage to encourage  

 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

P
age 216



APPENDIX 4 

 

Reasonable Measure  
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much as 
possible, such as areas 
where social distancing 
cannot be maintained.    
  
Proposed Approach: 
Pontlottyn Customer 
services does not  
provide sufficient space 
for  
social distancing and 
access and movement 
controls to be in place.   
  
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both vaccine 
doses as soon as 
recommended.    
  
Proposed Approach:  
Only use staff in setting 
with two vaccines in 
place   
  
  
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure  
Using other technologies 
to replace face-to-face 
interactions, for example 
using ‘click and collect’ 

technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Yes move all services on  
line and stop  payment 
collections unless it’s 
part of a service 
request ie: buying a 
permit  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Installation of partitions 
at appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks or 
between work stations) 
to separate staff etc. If 
used ensure they are 
cleaned and disinfected 
in line with cleaning 
procedures. Cleaning, 
hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace COVID 
secure (hse.gov.uk)   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions and screens 
will need to be procured 
and installed at Site. 
Cleaning and  

regular handwashing and 
sanitising  
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly  
ventilated spaces –   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Limited opportunities – 
keep door open. 
Customer services is 
currently away from a 
ventilated space 
  
Reasonable Measure  
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, for  
example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined areas 
such as lifts, toilet  
facilities, kitchens or 
meeting rooms at the 
same time.    
  
Proposed Approach:  
Setting does not allow for 
this.  
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in a  
particular location by, for 
example, encouraging 
home working where  
possible  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Not possible at this site 
  
Reasonable Measure  
Staggering shifts  
  
Proposed Approach: 
not possible lone working 
issues at site.  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between them,   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Setting does not allow for 
this.  
 

  

 

P
age 217

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 4 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

  disinfecting to be carried  
between appointments  
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place at Setting  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination  
take up of your  
workforce  
  
Proposed Approach:  
Underway  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Physical distancing 
of staff and 
customers / children  
  
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions will need to be 
introduced  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms  
before ventilation    
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure 
The use of face 
coverings and or face 
shields in indoors areas 
for workers and 
members of the public – 
all above   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings in 
indoor spaces to be 
requested  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid 
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage LFD 
at home    
  
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a new 
process and an 
associated HR policy  
would be required  
  

  

 

P
age 218



APPENDIX 4 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

   Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only 
combined with queuing 
system  
  
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety  
improvements   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering Customers 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience  

   

 

    
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary  
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to promote 
adherence to necessary 
ones   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Will remain under review  
  
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning and 
teams to maintain  
operational capacity  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only will 
assist  

   

  

P
age 219



APPENDIX 4 
  

P
age 220



APPENDIX 4 
Assessment Summary  

  

Venue              Open Yes    Yes          

Service(s)                         

              

              

              

              

  

  

Head of Service (Title):       Elizabeth Lucas        Director        

         

 

  

Signed:         E J Lucas           Signed:         

       

 

  

Date:         07/ 09 /  21        Date:       /  / 

   

 

  

Pontlottyn Customer services 
 

L
No   

     

      

      

      

P
age 221



APPENDIX 4 
 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

Risca 
  
Customer 
Services  

 

Reasonable Measure 
Stopping an infectious 
person being in an 
environment by e.g. 
prohibit people from 
attending if feel unwell, 
and advise they should 
get tested and ensuring 
that all employees follow 
self-isolation advice if 
they are a contact of a 
possible confirmed case.  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number of appointments 
per day only.   
  
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring that accurate 
records are kept of which 
employees (and, where 
applicable, customers / 
visitors / clients) have 
been present so that 
they can be contact 
traced if  
necessary  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Access by appointment 
only will enable accurate 
records of staff, contact 
details of customers and 
time and date in the 
building.  

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face to-
face contact.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Yes appointments only – 
no payments unless part 
of a service request  
such as buying a permit  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Changing work patterns 
so that people work in a 
fixed group or cohort or 
arrive at and leave work 
at staggered times. This 
limits the number of 
people that the virus can 
potentially spread to.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Yes appointments only  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce how 
much the virus can 
spread through surface 
contamination and 
aerosol transmission.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Not possible  
  
  

Reasonable Measure  
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only, no 
payments taken unless 
part of a service request 
ie: buying a permit. Limit 
staff available.  One 
member of customer 
services staff available at 
a time 
  
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared surfaces, 
where this cannot be 
avoided altogether.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
As above  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. Providing 
additional hand wash 
stations –   
  
Proposed Approach:  
As above  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, including 
providing facilities and 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are  
touched a lot   
  
Proposed Approach: 
New process required 
and agreement for staff 
to do this, new furniture 
if cloth furniture in place.   
  
Reasonable Measure  
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning   
  
Proposed Approach: 
New processes required  
or cleaning staff  
dedicated to the area  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Providing hand sanitiser   
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place at setting  
  
Reasonable Measure  

Avoiding sharing of 

equipment such as ‘hot 

desking’   

  
Proposed Approach: 
Manageable if  
appointment only  

Reasonable Measure  
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance)  
Gloves and aprons   
Eye protection  
  
Proposed Approach:  
All available for use  

Yes under 
stated 
Elimination  
Controls     
  
Suggest –  
  
Open Risca 
Customer 
services on 
appointment 
only basis no 
payments in 
April 2022.  
The reason 
for the delay 
is so that 
Customer 
services staff 
continue to 
support TTP 
via 
secondment 
until March 
2022. New 
working 
procedures to 
be agreed 
with Library 
services. 
Screen and 
appropriate 
PPE to be 
procured and 
installed.  

P
age 222



APPENDIX 4 

signage to encourage    

 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

P
age 223



APPENDIX 4 

 

Reasonable Measure  
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much as 
possible, such as areas 
where social distancing 
cannot be maintained.    
  
Proposed Approach: 
Risca Library provides 
sufficient space for  
social distancing and 
access and movement 
controls to be in place.  
However review working 
practices with Library 
staff.  Would need to 
keep customer services 
to one member of staff 
and one appointment at 
a time to control 
numbers.  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both vaccine 
doses as soon as 
recommended.    
  
Proposed Approach:  
Only use staff in setting 
with two vaccines in 
place   
  
  
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure  
Using other technologies 
to replace face-to-face 
interactions, for example 
using ‘click and collect’ 

technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Yes move all services on  
line and stop  payment 
collections unless it’s 
part of a service 
request ie: buying a 
permit  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Installation of partitions 
at appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks or 
between work stations) 
to separate staff etc. If 
used ensure they are 
cleaned and disinfected 
in line with cleaning 
procedures. Cleaning, 
hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace COVID 
secure (hse.gov.uk)   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions and screens 
will need to be procured 
and installed at Risca 
Library customer 
services. . Cleaning and  

regular handwashing and 
sanitising  
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly  
ventilated spaces –   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Limited opportunities – 
keep door open. 
Customer services is 
currently away from a 
ventilated space 
  
Reasonable Measure  
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, for  
example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined areas 
such as lifts, toilet  
facilities, kitchens or 
meeting rooms at the 
same time.    
  
Proposed Approach:  
Setting allows for this. 
One way system can be  
established, 
appointments would 
control numbers . a 
process would need to 
be agreed with Library 
service  

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in a  
particular location by, for 
example, encouraging 
home working where  
possible  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Staff numbers can be 
reduced through 
introduction of 
appointments only and 
agreed working practices 
with Libraries  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Staggering shifts  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Officer Hours only but 
staff numbers can be 
reduced through 
introduction of 
appointments only.  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between them,   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions to be procured 
and installed   
Queuing and one way 
systems can be 
introduced.  In 
consultation with Library 
services 
  

  

 

P
age 224

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 4 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

  disinfecting to be carried  
between appointments  
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place at Setting  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination  
take up of your  
workforce  
  
Proposed Approach:  
Underway  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Physical distancing 
of staff and 
customers / children  
  
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions will need to be 
introduced and agreed 
with Library staff.    
  
Reasonable Measure  
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms  
before ventilation    
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure 
The use of face 
coverings and or face 
shields in indoors areas 
for workers and 
members of the public – 
all above   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings in 
indoor spaces to be 
requested  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid 
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage LFD 
at home    
  
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a new 
process and an 
associated HR policy  
would be required  
  

  

 

P
age 225



APPENDIX 4 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

   Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only 
combined with queuing 
system  
  
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety  
improvements   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering Customers 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience  

   

 

    
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary  
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to promote 
adherence to necessary 
ones   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Will remain under review  
  
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning and 
teams to maintain  
operational capacity  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only will 
assist  

   

  

P
age 226



APPENDIX 4 
  

P
age 227



APPENDIX 4 
Assessment Summary  

  

Venue              Open Yes    Yes          

Service(s)              Control            

              

              

              

              

  

  

Head of Service (Title):       Elizabeth Lucas        Director        

         

 

  

Signed:         E J Lucas           Signed:         

       

 

  

Date:         07/ 09 /  21        Date:       /  / 

   

 

Elimination   

Risca Library  

L
Yes - 1st April 2022   

Customer First – 

Appointments only 

    

      

      

      

P
age 228



APPENDIX 4 
 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change 
the way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

Blackwood 
Library 
  
Customer 
Services  

 

Reasonable Measure 
Stopping an infectious 
person being in an 
environment by e.g. 
prohibit people from 
attending if feel unwell, 
and advise they should 
get tested and ensuring 
that all employees follow 
self-isolation advice if 
they are a contact of a 
possible confirmed case.  
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number of appointments 
per day only.  Would 
need to limit to one 
customer services staff 
due to library numbers 
and social distancing 
requirements 
 
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring that accurate 
records are kept of 
which employees (and, 
where applicable, 
customers / visitors / 
clients) have been 
present so that they can 
be contact traced if  
necessary  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by appointment 
only will enable accurate 
records of staff, contact 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face to-
face contact.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Yes appointments only – 
no payments unless part 
of a service request such 
as buying a permit  
however to do this we 
would create lone 
working issues 
  
Reasonable Measure 
Changing work patterns 
so that people work in a 
fixed group or cohort or 
arrive at and leave work 
at staggered times. This 
limits the number of 
people that the virus can 
potentially spread to.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Not possible –  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce how 
much the virus can 
spread through surface 
contamination and 
aerosol transmission.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Not possible 

Reasonable Measure  
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only, no 
payments taken unless 
part of a service request 
ie: buying a permit. Limit 
staff available.  One 
member of customer 
services staff available at 
a time 
  
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared 
surfaces, where this 
cannot be avoided 
altogether.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
As above  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. Providing 
additional hand wash 
stations –   
  
Proposed Approach:  
As above  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, including 
providing facilities and 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are  
touched a lot   
  
Proposed Approach: 
New process required 
and agreement for staff 
to do this, new furniture 
if cloth furniture in place.   
  
Reasonable Measure  
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning   
  
Proposed Approach: 
New processes required  
or cleaning staff  
dedicated to the area  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Providing hand sanitiser   
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place at setting  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Avoiding sharing of 

equipment such as ‘hot 

desking’   

  
Proposed Approach:  
Not possible at this site 
lone working issues 

Reasonable Measure  
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance)  
Gloves and aprons   
Eye protection  
  
Proposed Approach:  
All available for use  

No – limited 
opportunities 
for  social 
distancing 
provision 
  
Suggest – 
Blackwood 
customer 
services to 
remain closed 
to the public 
until April 
2022 when full 
review will be 
undertaken.  
This will allow 
staff to remain 
supporting 
TTP and 
review of 
social 
distancing 
rules.  

P
age 229



APPENDIX 4 

details of customers and 
time and date in the 
building.  

 signage to encourage  

 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

P
age 230



APPENDIX 4 

 

Reasonable Measure  
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much as 
possible, such as areas 
where social distancing 
cannot be maintained.    
  
Proposed Approach: 
Blackwood Customer 
services does not  
provide sufficient space 
for  
social distancing and 
access and movement 
controls to be in place.   
  
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both vaccine 
doses as soon as 
recommended.    
  
Proposed Approach:  
Only use staff in setting 
with two vaccines in 
place   
  
  
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure  
Using other technologies 
to replace face-to-face 
interactions, for example 
using ‘click and collect’ 

technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Yes move all services on  
line and stop  payment 
collections unless it’s 
part of a service 
request ie: buying a 
permit  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Installation of partitions 
at appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks or 
between work stations) 
to separate staff etc. If 
used ensure they are 
cleaned and disinfected 
in line with cleaning 
procedures. Cleaning, 
hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace COVID 
secure (hse.gov.uk)   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions and screens 
will need to be procured 
and installed at Site. 
Cleaning and  

regular handwashing and 
sanitising  
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly  
ventilated spaces –   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Limited opportunities – 
keep door open. 
Customer services is 
currently away from a 
ventilated space 
  
Reasonable Measure  
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, for  
example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined areas 
such as lifts, toilet  
facilities, kitchens or 
meeting rooms at the 
same time.    
  
Proposed Approach:  
Setting does not allow for 
this.  
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in a  
particular location by, for 
example, encouraging 
home working where  
possible  
  
Proposed Approach: 
appointments only 
  
Reasonable Measure  
Staggering shifts  
  
Proposed Approach: 
appointments only  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between them,   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Setting does not allow for 
this.  
 

  

 

P
age 231

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 4 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

  disinfecting to be carried  
between appointments  
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place at Setting  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination  
take up of your  
workforce  
  
Proposed Approach:  
Underway  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Physical distancing 
of staff and 
customers / children  
  
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions will need to be 
introduced  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms  
before ventilation    
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure 
The use of face 
coverings and or face 
shields in indoors areas 
for workers and 
members of the public – 
all above   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings in 
indoor spaces to be 
requested  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid 
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage LFD 
at home    
  
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a new 
process and an 
associated HR policy  
would be required  
  

  

 

P
age 232



APPENDIX 4 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

   Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only 
combined with queuing 
system  
  
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety  
improvements   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering Customers 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience  

   

 

    
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary  
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to promote 
adherence to necessary 
ones   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Will remain under review  
  
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning and 
teams to maintain  
operational capacity  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only will 
assist  

   

  

P
age 233



APPENDIX 4 
  

P
age 234



APPENDIX 4 
Assessment Summary  

  

Venue              Open Yes    Yes          

Service(s)                         

              

              

              

              

  

  

Head of Service (Title):       Elizabeth Lucas        Director        

         

 

  

Signed:         E J Lucas           Signed:         

       

 

  

Date:         07/ 09 /  21        Date:       /  / 

   

 

   
Blackwood Library  

L
No review - 1st April 2022   

Customer First –      

      

      

      

P
age 235



APPENDIX 4 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

Bargoed 
Library 
  
Customer 
Services  

 

Reasonable Measure 
Stopping an infectious 
person being in an 
environment by e.g. 
prohibit people from 
attending if feel unwell, 
and advise they should 
get tested and ensuring 
that all employees follow 
self-isolation advice if 
they are a contact of a 
possible confirmed case. 
  
Proposed Approach: 
Access by a limited 
number of appointments 
per day only.  Would 
need to limit to one 
customer services staff 
due to library numbers 
and social distancing 
requirements 
  
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring that accurate 
records are kept of which 
employees (and, where 
applicable, customers / 
visitors / clients) have 
been present so that 
they can be contact 
traced if  
necessary  
 
Proposed Approach: 
Access by appointment 

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing the time that 
people come into face to-
face contact.   
 
Proposed Approach:  
Yes appointments only – 
no payments unless part 
of a service request such 
as buying a permit. 
however to do this we 
would create lone 
working issues 
  
Reasonable Measure 
Changing work patterns 
so that people work in a 
fixed group or cohort or 
arrive at and leave work 
at staggered times. This 
limits the number of 
people that the virus can 
potentially spread to.   
 
Proposed Approach:  
Appointments only 
approach however limited 
opportunities due to lack 
of space within the 
Library area for Customer 
Services 
Reasonable Measure 
Moving to working 
outdoors to reduce how 
much the virus can 
spread through surface 

Reasonable Measure  
Using anti-microbial 
surfaces.   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only, no 
payments taken unless 
part of a service request 
ie: buying a permit. Limit 
staff available,  One 
member of customer 
services staff available at 
a time 
  
Reasonable Measure 
Reduce shared surfaces, 
where this cannot be 
avoided altogether.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
As above  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Using no-touch 
(contactless) 
technologies. Providing 
additional hand wash 
stations –   
  
Proposed Approach:  
As above  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Regular handwashing 
and sanitising, including 
providing facilities and 

Reasonable Measure 
Frequently cleaning 
surfaces that are  
touched a lot   
  
Proposed Approach: 
New process required 
and agreement for staff 
to do this, new furniture 
if cloth furniture in place.   
  
Reasonable Measure  
Increasing training on 
quality and 
effectiveness of 
cleaning   
  
Proposed Approach: 
New processes required  
or cleaning staff  
dedicated to the area  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Providing hand sanitiser   
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place at setting  
  
Reasonable Measure  

Avoiding sharing of 

equipment such as ‘hot 

desking’   

  

Proposed Approach:  
Not possible at this site 

Reasonable Measure  
Fluid resistant surgical 
face masks (where 
indicated by guidance)  
Gloves and aprons   
Eye protection  
  
Proposed Approach:  
All available for use  

No – lack of 
social 
distancing 
provision 
  
Suggest –  
  
Bargoed 
Customer 
Services to 
remain closed 
to the public 
until April 
2022 when a 
full review will 
be 
undertaken.  
This will allow 
staff to remain 
supporting 
TTP and 
review of 
social 
distancing 
rules.  

P
age 236



APPENDIX 4 

only will enable accurate 
records of staff, contact 
details of customers and 
time and date in the 
building.  

contamination and 
aerosol transmission.   
Proposed Approach:  
Not possible  
 

signage to encourage  lone working issues 

 

Reasonable Measure  
Close high risk 
environments in your 
work setting as much as 
possible, such as areas 
where social distancing 
cannot be maintained.    
  
Proposed Approach: 
Bargoed Customer 
services does not  
provide sufficient space 
for  
social distancing and 
access and movement 
controls to be in place.   
  
Reasonable Measure 
Staff takes both vaccine 
doses as soon as 
recommended.    
  
Proposed Approach:  
Only use staff in setting 
with two vaccines in 
place   
  
  
  
  
  

Reasonable Measure  
Using other technologies 
to replace face-to-face 
interactions, for example 

using ‘click and collect’ 
technologies, remote 
working, phone/video 
consultations.   
Proposed Approach:  
Yes move all services on  
line and stop  payment 
collections unless its 
part of a service 
request ie: buying a 
permit  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Installation of partitions 
at appropriate places 
(e.g. reception desks or 
between work stations) 
to separate staff etc. If 
used ensure they are 
cleaned and disinfected 
in line with cleaning 
procedures. Cleaning, 
hygiene and 
handwashing to make 
your workplace COVID 
secure (hse.gov.uk)   
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions and screens 
will need to be procured 
and installed at Site. 
Cleaning and  

regular handwashing and 
sanitising  
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Increasing fresh-air 
ventilation in poorly  
ventilated spaces –   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Limited opportunities – 
keep door open. 
Customer services is 
currently away from a 
ventilated space 
  
Reasonable Measure  
Limiting or controlling 
movement of people, for  
example one way 
systems, or limiting 
number of people 
accessing confined areas 
such as lifts, toilet  
facilities, kitchens or 
meeting rooms at the 
same time.    
  
Proposed Approach:  
Setting does not allow for 
this.  
  

Reasonable Measure 
Reducing how many 
people are working in a  
particular location by, for 
example, encouraging 
home working where  
possible  
  
Proposed Approach: 
appointments only 
  
Reasonable Measure  
Staggering shifts  
  
Proposed Approach: 
appointments only  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Ensuring people are 
maintaining physical 
distance between them,   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Setting does not allow for 
this.  
 

  

P
age 237

https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm
https://www.hse.gov.uk/coronavirus/cleaning/cleaning-workplace.htm


APPENDIX 4 
 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment 

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

  disinfecting to be carried  
between appointments  
  

Reasonable Measure 
Provide clear signage 
(eg signs, floor tape or 
paint) for physical 
distancing, queuing 
systems, one way 
systems etc.   
  
Proposed Approach:  
In place at Setting  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Encourage vaccination  
take up of your  
workforce  
  
Proposed Approach:  
Underway  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Physical distancing 
of staff and 
customers / children  
  
Proposed Approach:  
Partitions will need to be 
introduced  
  
Reasonable Measure  
Limit time spent and/or 
numbers in rooms  
before ventilation     

Reasonable Measure 
The use of face 
coverings and or face 
shields in indoors areas 
for workers and 
members of the public – 
all above   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Use of face coverings in 
indoor spaces to be 
requested  
  
Reasonable Measure 
Covid-passport/Covid 
certificate or PCR 
testing, encourage LFD 
at home    
  
Proposed Approach: 
This would require a new 
process and an 
associated HR policy  
would be required  
  

  

 

P
age 238



APPENDIX 4 

Venue & 
Service  

Elimination -  
Physically remove the 
hazard  

Substitution - replace 
the hazard  

Engineering controls - 
isolate people from the  
hazard  

Administrative 
controls - change the 
way people work  

PPE - protect the 
worker with Personal 
Protective Equipment  
  

Recommend  
to open? and 
conditions?  

   Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only 
combined with queuing 
system  
  
Reasonable Measure: 
Effective comms and 
feedback on safety  
improvements   
  
Proposed Approach: 
Strong, consistent 
signage together with 
offering Customers 
opportunity to provide 
verbal feedback on 
experience  

   

P
age 239



APPENDIX 4 

 

    
Reasonable Measure: 
Remove unnecessary  
restrictions when it is 
safe, in order to promote 
adherence to necessary 
ones   
  
Proposed Approach:  
Will remain under review  
  
Reasonable Measure: 
Workforce planning and 
teams to maintain  
operational capacity  
  
Proposed Approach: 
Appointments only will 
assist  

   

Assessment Summary  

  

Venue              Open Yes    Yes          

Service(s)                         

              

              

              

              

  

  

Head of Service (Title):       Elizabeth Lucas        Director              

   

 

   

Bargoed Library  

L
No review - 1st April 

2022 

  

Customer First –      

      

      

      

P
age 240



APPENDIX 4 
  

Signed:         E J Lucas           Signed:                

 

  

Date:         07/ 09 /  21        Date:       /  /    

 

P
age 241



G
adew

ir y dudalen hon yn w
ag yn fw

riadol

P
age 242



1 
 

APPENDIX 5 
 
Caerphilly County Borough Council - Integrated Impact Assessment 
 
This integrated impact assessment (IIA) has been designed to help support the Council in making informed and effective decisions whilst ensuring compliance 
with a range of relevant legislation, including: 
 

 Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011   Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 

 Socio-economic Duty – Sections 1 to 3 of the Equality Act 2010   Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

 Statutory Consultation v Doctrine of Legitimate Expectation and Gunning Principles  

 
PLEASE NOTE:  Section 3 Socio-economic Duty only needs to be completed if proposals are of a strategic nature or when reviewing previous strategic 
decisions.  See page 6 of the Preparing for the Commencement of the Socio-economic Duty Welsh Government Guidance. 
 
 

1. Proposal Details 

Lead Officer Head of Service Service Area & Department Date 

Richard Edmunds Multiple Authority Wide 20.09.21 

 

What is the proposal to be assessed?  Provide brief details of the proposal and provide a link to any relevant report or documents. 
 
To reopen a range of Council buildings currently closed to the public with appropriate ‘reasonable measures’ and controls in place to keep staff and 
service users as safe as possible. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

P
age 243

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf


2 
 

2. Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011  
(The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation; advance equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between different groups).  Please note that an 
individual may have more than one protected characteristic. 

Protected Characteristics 
Does the proposal have any positive, 
negative or neutral impacts on the 
protected characteristics and how?   

If there are negative impacts how will 
these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view? 

Age (people of all ages) 

 
A number of Council buildings are 
recommended for reopening. This will 
have a positive impact by providing an 
additional option for all residents to 
access certain services in person, above 
and beyond the telephone and web-
based access channels that remain in 
place.  
 

 
Accessing buildings in person does 
increase the risk of virus transmission 
so buildings will reopen with a range of 
reasonable measures in place to 
minimise the associated risks. 
 
 

 
See report Appendices. 
 
 

Disability (people with 
disabilities/ long term 
conditions) 

 
A number of Council buildings are 
recommended for reopening. This will 
have a positive impact by providing an 
additional option for all residents to 
access certain services in person, above 
and beyond the telephone and web-
based access channels that remain in 
place.  
 

 
Accessing buildings in person does 
increase the risk of virus transmission 
so buildings will reopen with a range of 
reasonable measures in place to 
minimise the associated risks. 
 
 

 
See report Appendices. 
 
 

Gender Reassignment 
(anybody who’s gender 
identity or gender 
expression is different to 
the sex they were assigned 
at birth) 

 
A number of Council buildings are 
recommended for reopening. This will 
have a positive impact by providing an 
additional option for all residents to 
access certain services in person, above 
and beyond the telephone and web-
based access channels that remain in 
place.  

 
Accessing buildings in person does 
increase the risk of virus transmission 
so buildings will reopen with a range of 
reasonable measures in place to 
minimise the associated risks. 
 
 

 
See report Appendices. 
 
 

P
age 244

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues


3 
 

Marriage or Civil 
Partnership (people who 
are married or in a civil 
partnership) 

 
A number of Council buildings are 
recommended for reopening. This will 
have a positive impact by providing an 
additional option for all residents to 
access certain services in person, above 
and beyond the telephone and web-
based access channels that remain in 
place.  
 

 
Accessing buildings in person does 
increase the risk of virus transmission 
so buildings will reopen with a range of 
reasonable measures in place to 
minimise the associated risks. 
 
 

 
See report Appendices. 
 
 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
(women who are pregnant 
and/or on maternity 
leave) 

 
A number of Council buildings are 
recommended for reopening. This will 
have a positive impact by providing an 
additional option for all residents to 
access certain services in person, above 
and beyond the telephone and web-
based access channels that remain in 
place.  
 

 
Accessing buildings in person does 
increase the risk of virus transmission 
so buildings will reopen with a range of 
reasonable measures in place to 
minimise the associated risks. 
 
 

 
See report Appendices. 
 
 

Race (people from black, 
Asian and minority ethnic 
communities and different 
racial backgrounds) 

 
A number of Council buildings are 
recommended for reopening. This will 
have a positive impact by providing an 
additional option for all residents to 
access certain services in person, above 
and beyond the telephone and web-
based access channels that remain in 
place.  
 

 
Accessing buildings in person does 
increase the risk of virus transmission 
so buildings will reopen with a range of 
reasonable measures in place to 
minimise the associated risks. 
 
 

 
See report Appendices. 
 
 

  

P
age 245



4 
 

Protected Characteristics 
Does the proposal have any positive, 
negative or neutral impacts on the 
protected characteristics and how?   

If there are negative impacts how will 
these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view? 

Religion or Belief (people 
with different religions 
and beliefs including 
people with no beliefs) 

 
A number of Council buildings are 
recommended for reopening. This will 
have a positive impact by providing an 
additional option for all residents to 
access certain services in person, above 
and beyond the telephone and web-
based access channels that remain in 
place.  
 

 
Accessing buildings in person does 
increase the risk of virus transmission 
so buildings will reopen with a range of 
reasonable measures in place to 
minimise the associated risks. 
 
 

 
See report Appendices. 
 
 

Sex (women and men, 
girls and boys and those 
who self-identify their 
gender) 

 
A number of Council buildings are 
recommended for reopening. This will 
have a positive impact by providing an 
additional option for all residents to 
access certain services in person, above 
and beyond the telephone and web-
based access channels that remain in 
place.  
 

 
Accessing buildings in person does 
increase the risk of virus transmission 
so buildings will reopen with a range of 
reasonable measures in place to 
minimise the associated risks. 
 
 

 
See report Appendices. 
 
 

Sexual Orientation 
(lesbian, gay, bisexual, 
heterosexual) 

 
A number of Council buildings are 
recommended for reopening. This will 
have a positive impact by providing an 
additional option for all residents to 
access certain services in person, above 
and beyond the telephone and web-
based access channels that remain in 
place.  
 

 
Accessing buildings in person does 
increase the risk of virus transmission 
so buildings will reopen with a range of 
reasonable measures in place to 
minimise the associated risks. 
 
 

 
See report Appendices. 
 
 

 

  

P
age 246

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues


5 
 

3. Socio-economic Duty (Strategic Decisions Only) 
(The Socio-economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key decision making.  
Socio-economic disadvantage means living on a low income compared to others in Wales, with little or no accumulated wealth, leading to greater 
material deprivation, restricting the ability to access basic goods and services) 

 

Please consider these additional vulnerable groups and the impact your proposal may or may not have on them:  

 Single parents and vulnerable families  
 People with low literacy/numeracy  
 Pensioners 
 Looked after children  
 Homeless people 

 Carers 
 Armed Forces Community 
 Students 
 Single adult households 
 People misusing substances 

 People who have experienced the asylum system 
 People of all ages leaving a care setting 
 People living in the most deprived areas in Wales (WIMD)  
 People involved in the criminal justice system  

Socio-economic Disadvantage 
Does the proposal have any positive, 
negative or neutral impacts on the 
following and how?   

If there are negative impacts how 
will these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view? 

Low Income / Income Poverty 
(cannot afford to maintain regular 
payments such as bills, food, 
clothing, transport etc.) 

Positive impact. Should residents not 
have access to telephony or the 
Internet, in person services can be 
freely accessed, subject to the 
specified safety measures being in 
place at the premises. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
See Appendices 
 
 
 

Socio-economic Disadvantage 
Does the proposal have any 
positive, negative or neutral 
impacts on the following and how?   

If there are negative impacts how 
will these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view? 

Low and/or No Wealth (enough 
money to meet basic living costs 
and pay bills but have no savings to 
deal with any unexpected  spends 
and no provisions for the future) 

Neutral impact. Adding in person 
services on top of telephone and 
web based services simply provides 
an additional choice to residents. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

See report Appendices. 
 
 
 
 
 

Material Deprivation (unable to 
access basic goods and services i.e. 
financial products like life 
insurance, repair/replace broken 
electrical goods, warm home, 
hobbies etc.) 

Positive impact. Should residents not 
have access to telephony or the 
Internet, in person services can be 
freely accessed, subject to the 
specified safety measures being in 
place at the premises 

 
 
 
 
 

See report Appendices. 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 247

https://gov.wales/socio-economic-duty-overview
https://gov.wales/socio-economic-duty-overview


6 
 

 

  

Area Deprivation (where you live 
(rural areas), where you work 
(accessibility of public transport) 

Neutral impact. Adding in person 
services on top of telephone and 
web based provides an additional 
choice to residents with the latter 
being available regardless of 
location. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

See report Appendices. 
 
 
 
 
 

Socio-economic Background  
(social class i.e. parents education, 
employment and income) 

Neutral impact. Adding in person 
services on top of telephone and 
web based services simply provides 
an additional choice to residents. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

See report Appendices. 
 
 
 
 
 

Socio-economic Disadvantage 
(What cumulative impact will the 
proposal have on people or groups 
because of their protected 
characteristic(s) or vulnerability or 
because they are already 
disadvantaged) 

Neutral Impact.  Adding in person 
services on top of telephone and 
web based services simply provides 
an additional choice to residents. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 248



7 
 

4. Corporate Plan – Council’s Well-being Objectives  
(How does your proposal deliver against any/all of the Council’s Well-being Objectives?  Which in turn support the national well-being goals for Wales 
as outlined in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  Are there any impacts (positive, negative or neutral?  If there are negative 
impacts how have these been mitigated?)  Well-being Objectives 

Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all 
 
Neutral impact 
 

Objective 2 - Enabling employment 
 
Neutral impact 
 

Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of 
homes throughout the county borough and provide advice, assistance  
or support to help improve people’s well-being 

 
Neutral impact 
 
 

Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable  
transport system that increases opportunity, promotes prosperity  
and minimises the adverse impact on the environment 

 
Neutral impact 
 
 

Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports healthy  
lifestyle in accordance with the Sustainable Development principle 
with in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

 
Neutral impact 
 

Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve  
their well-being 

 
Neutral impact 
 

 
 
 
 
 

4a. Links to any other relevant Council Policy  

(How does your proposal deliver against any other relevant Council Policy?) 

 
No specific links. The report seeks to safely reopen certain Council buildings that have been closed to the public due to COVID-19. In the absence of 
these buildings, residents have been able to access services through alternative channels as previously stated. 
 

P
age 249

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/Corporate_Plan_2018-2023.aspx


8 
 

 

5. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 – The Five Ways of Working (ICLIP)  
(Also known as the sustainable development principles.  The Act requires the Council to consider how any proposal improves the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales using the five ways of working as a baseline) 

Ways of Working How have you used the Sustainable Development Principles in forming the proposal? 

Long Term 

 

Consider the long-term impact of the proposal on the ability of communities to secure their well-being. 
 
The report seeks to safely reopen a range of Council buildings that have been closed to the public throughout the pandemic. With 
the national move to Alert Level Zero it is now possible to reopen some of these buildings with the introduction of a range of 
‘reasonable measures’ designed to minimise any risks and enable customer access over the long term.   
 
 
 

Prevention 

 

Consider how the proposal is preventing problems from ocurring or getting worse 
 

The introduction of a range of ‘reasonable measures’ at Council premises designed specifically to minimise the risk of accessing 
services and preventing the transmission of COVID-19 should enable those premises to be safely reopened once again. 
 

 

Integration 

 

Consider how your proposal will impact on other services provided in our communities (these might be Council services or services delivered 
by other organisations or groups) 
 
The reopening of certain buildings will be welcomed by the community as another sign of a return to some kind of normality. The report 
includes functions and services from right across the Council.  
 

 

Collaboration 

 

Consider how you are working with Council services or services delivered by other organisations or groups in our communities. 
 

The reopening of certain buildings does provide the opportunity for providers other than the Council to offer services to the public. 
 
 

P
age 250

https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/content/5-ways-working


9 
 

Involvement 

 

Consider how you involve people who have an interest in this proposal and ensure that they represent the diversity of our communities. 
 
Heads of Service responsible for the relevant buildings have been involved in undertaking the assessment against the hierarchy of 
controls, as have Cabinet through their decision-making. 
 

 

6. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

Well-being Goals Does the proposal maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goal and how? 

A Prosperous Wales 
An innovative, productive and low carbon society 
which recognises the limits of the global environment 
and therefore uses resources efficiently and 
proportionately (including acting on climate change); 
and which develops a skilled and well-educated 
population in an economy which generates wealth 
and provides employment opportunities, allowing 
people to take advantage of the wealth generated 
through securing decent work 

Efficient use of resources, skilled, educated people generates wealth and provides jobs 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

A Resilient Wales 
A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse 
natural environment healthy functioning ecosystems 
that support social, economic and ecological 
resilience and the capacity to adapt to change (for 
climate change) 

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and ecosystems that support resilience and can adapt to change (e.g. 
climate change) 
 
N/A 
 
 
 

A Healthier Wales  
A society in which people’s physical and mental well-
being is maximised and in which choices and 
behaviours that benefit future health are understood 

People’s physical and mental well-being is maximised and health impacts are understood 
 

Reopening buildings through an assessment against a hierarchy of controls will ensure that any 
risks to an individual’s health and wellbeing from access building based services is minimised   
 
 

 
  

P
age 251

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies,-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act


10 
 

A More Equal Wales 
A society that enables people to fulfil their potential 
no matter what their background or circumstances 
(including their socio-economic background and 
circumstances) 

People can fulfil their potential no matter what their background or circumstances.  This includes the 
protected characteristics listed in Q2 above.  Also consider the cumulative impacts. 
 
N/A 
 
 

Well-being Goals Does the proposal maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goal and how? 

A Wales of Cohesive Communities 
Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected 
communities 

Communities are attractive, viable, safe and well connected. 
 
N/A 
 
 
 

A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh 
Language 
A society that promotes and protects culture, 
heritage and the Welsh language, and which 
encourages people to participate in the arts, and 
sports and recreation 

Culture, heritage and the Welsh language are promoted and protected.  People are encouraged to 
participate in sport, art and recreation. 
 
N/A 
 
 
 

A Globally Responsible Wales 
A nation which, when doing anything to improve the 
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-
being of Wales, takes account of whether doing such 
a thing may make a positive contribution to global 
well-being 

Taking account of impact on global well-being when considering local social, economic and 
environmental well-being. 
 
N/A 
 
 
 

 

  

P
age 252

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies,-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act


11 
 

7. Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and Welsh Language Standards  
(The Welsh Language Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards require the Council to have ‘due regard’ for the positive or 
negative impact a proposal may have on opportunities to use the Welsh language and ensuring the Welsh language is treated no less 
favourably than the English language) insert link to WL Commissioners Policy Making Standards Guidance 

 

Requirement 
Does the proposal have any 
positive, negative or neutral 
impacts on the following and how?  

If there are negative impacts 
how will these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view?  
e.g the WESP, TAN20, LDP, Pupil 
Level Annual School Census 

Links with Welsh Government’s Cymraeg 

2050 Strategy and CCBC’s Five Year Welsh 

Language Strategy 2017-2022 and the 

Language Profile 

 

Neutral impact 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Compliance with the Welsh Language 

Standards.   

Specifically Standards 88 - 93  

Neutral impact 
 

  

 

 

 

Opportunities to promote the Welsh 

language e.g. status, use of Welsh language 

services, use of Welsh in everyday life in 

work / community  

Neutral impact.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Opportunities for persons to use the 

Welsh language e.g. staff, residents and 

visitors 

Neutral impact.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treating the Welsh language no less 

favourably than the English language 
Neutral impact.   

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 253

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/WelsLanguageStrategy2017_22.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/WelsLanguageStrategy2017_22.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx


12 
 

 

7a.  Having considered the impacts above, how has the proposal been developed so that there are positive effects, or increased positive effects on 

(a) opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language, and b) treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language. 

 
The report seeks to reopen a number of buildings. This provides the same opportunity to engage with the Council through the medium of Welsh that is provided by 
other channels such as telephone and web based services.  
 

 

8. Data and Information  
(What data or other evidence has been used to inform the development of the proposal?  Evidence may include the outcome of previous consultations, 
existing databases, pilot projects, review of customer complaints and compliments and or other service user feedback, national and regional data, 
academic publications and consultants’ reports etc.) 
Data/evidence  
(Please provide link to report if appropriate) 

Key relevant findings 
How has the data/evidence informed this 
proposal? 

What data / evidence was used?                                   
Provide links to any reports if appropriate e.g. 
Household Survey 2017 

Welsh Government Guidance on Alert Level Zero 
(and the published hierarchy of controls) 
 
See appendices of report 
 

What were the key findings?                                     
What did the data / evidence used tell you?   

  
The Key findings that emerged from the 
assessment against the hierarchy of controls are 
linked directly to the recommended control level 
supporting the premises reopening. 

How has the data / evidence available helped inform 
the proposal?                                                                   
Did it support the proposal and how?                           
If the data / evidence didn’t support the proposal 
why was this? 

  
See Appendices of report for direct links. 

Were there any gaps identified in the evidence and data used to develop this proposal and how will these gaps be filled?    
Details of further consultation can be included in Section 9. 
Are there any gaps in the existing data and how will you go about filling these gaps? 
N/A 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 254



13 
 

 

 

9. Consultation  
(In some instances, there is a legal requirement to consult.  In others, even where there is no legal obligation, there may be a legitimate expectation 
from people that a consultation will take place.  Where it has been determined that consultation is required, The Gunning Principles must be adhered to.  
Consider the Consultation and Engagement Framework.  Please note that this may need to be updated as the proposal develops and to strengthen the 
assessment. 

Briefly describe any recent or planned consultations paying particular attention to evidencing the Gunning Principles. 

Who was consulted?  
Cllr. Philippa Marsden, Leader of the Council 
Cllr. Colin Gordon, Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance 
Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive  
Corporate Management Team  
Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer 
Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
Steve Harris, Head of Corporate Finance & S151 Officer 
Leadership Team  
Cllr Gez Kirby, Chair of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
 Cllr Brenda Miles, Vice Chair of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Trade Unions 

 
When were they consulted did the consultation take place at the formative stage and was adequate time given for consultees to consider and respond? 

Consultation provided enough time for consultees to consider and respond 
 
Was sufficient information provided to consultees to allow them to make an informed decision on the proposal? 

Yes 
 
 
What were the key findings? 

No 
 
How have the consultation findings been taken into account? 

Yes 

 

P
age 255

https://www.consultationinstitute.org/the-gunning-principles-implications/
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx


14 
 

 

10. Monitoring and Review  

How will the implementation and the impact 
of the proposal be monitored, including 
implementation of any amendments?   

For example, what monitoring will be used?  How frequent? 
Cabinet will continue to monitor the impact of the decision to reopen certain Council Premises and any 
further changes that are brought about by additional changes to the guidance 
 

What are the practical arrangements for 
monitoring?   

For example, who will put this in place?  When will it start? 
Heads of Service will keep premises reopening under ongoing review 
 

How will the results of the monitoring be 
used to develop future proposals? 

Any refinements required will feed in to monitoring reports  

When is the proposal due to be reviewed? 
Ongoing 
 

Who is responsible for ensuring this 
happens? 

Corporate Director for Education and Corporate Services 
 

 

11. Recommendation and Reasoning  

x Implement proposal with no amendments 

 Implement proposal taking account of the mitigating actions outlined 

 Reject the proposal due to disproportionate impact on equality, poverty and socio-economic disadvantage 

 

Have you contacted relevant officers for advice and guidance?                                              Yes  X             No   

 

 

 

P
age 256



15 
 

 

12. Reason(s) for Recommendation  
(Provide below a summary of the Integrated Impact Assessment.  This summary should be included in the “Summary of Integrated Impact Assessment” 
section of the Corporate Report Template.  The Integrated Impact Assessment should be published alongside the Report proposal). 
Whilst the IIA indicates many neutral impacts, there are positive impacts for residents through the additional choice available through in person 
services.  

 

13. Version Control  
(The IIA should be used in the early stages of the proposal development process.  The IIA can be strengthened as time progresses to help shape the 
proposal.  The Version Control section will act as an audit trail to evidence how the IIA has been developed over time) 
Version No. Author Brief description of the amendments/update Revision Date 
1 Richard Edmunds First version 20.09.21 

    
    

 

Integrated Impact Assessment Author 

Name: Richard Edmunds 

Job Title: Corporate Director Education and Corporate Services 

Date: 20.09.21 
  

Head of Service Approval 

Name: Richard Edmunds 

Job Title: Corporate Director Education and Corporate Services 

Signature: 
 

Date: 20.09.21 

 

P
age 257



G
adew

ir y dudalen hon yn w
ag yn fw

riadol

P
age 258



 
 
 

CABINET - 29TH SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
 
SUBJECT: MONTCLAIRE AVENUE STREAM WORKS FUNDING BID  
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR SOCIAL SERVICES & HOUSING  
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 This report is to inform Cabinet of the proposals to address extensive scour and loss 

of riverbank support immediately behind residential properties along Montclaire 
Avenue, Blackwood. Whilst these properties were historically Council owed, all but 
two properties Numbered 77 and 79 Montclaire Avenue have been sold to private 
owners. While the properties were sold Caerphilly Council chose to retain the riparian 
ownership and liability of the watercourse including the banks up to the 
aforementioned private property boundaries.  

  
 This report recommends funding to be made available to fund and undertake the 

construction phase of this scheme which was recently tendered.   
   
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Caerphilly CBC’s Engineering Projects Group (EPG) were requested by the Housing 

service to develop a proposal which addresses water erosion and loss of support to 
the riverbank immediately behind residential properties along Montclaire Avenue, 
Blackwood. The Scheme comprises headwalls, canalised and culverted 
constructions to convey the stream’s water to mitigate future detriment to the 
watercourse and neighbouring properties rear gardens. The stream currently flows 
between Caerphilly County Borough Council, Gwent Police, and a private owners 
land.  

 
2.2  The detailed design for this scheme was complex and the proposal provided by EPG 

included a multi-disciplinary approach. EPG engaged and consulted with 
independent Consulting Engineering companies (WSP and Cbec Eco Engineering) 
and statutory authority bodies (NRW and CCBC Land Drainage department) to 
ensure the proposal is in line with and achieves Ordinary Watercourse Consent and 
Water Framework Directive requirements.  

 
2.3  The proposal addresses the watercourse scour and loss of bank support and 

ensures robust infrastructure for the future coupled with providing local residents 
assurances that their properties will remain secure from detriment of the watercourse 
in the future. 

 

Page 259

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 9



2.4  The scheme has already been tendered to the open market and costs presented in 
this report provide cost assurity subject to contract changes and instances which are 
out of the control of the Authority and nominated Principal Contractor.   

   
2.5 This report recommends funding of £1,500,19.20 be made available to the public 

sector Housing division to secure a contractor to undertake the construction phase of 
this scheme.  

 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That funding of £1,500,19 is made available to deliver the scheme at Montclaire 

Avenue. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To allow the Authority to meet its statutory liability as riparian owner of the water 

course and to cover both the design and construction costs of this scheme.  
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 EPG developed a proposal to address water erosion and loss of support of the 

riverbank immediately behind residential properties along Montclaire Avenue, 
Blackwood at the request of the Housing service. The Scheme comprises headwalls, 
canalised and culverted construction to convey the stream’s water thus mitigating 
future detriment to the watercourse and neighbouring properties’ rear gardens.  

  
5.2 CCBC  Public Sector Housing are the riparian owner of the stream and are  

responsible for the scheme costs within their ownership. 
 
5.3 A potential contribution of £65,000 towards the scheme from private landowner has 

been verbally offered. This provisional sum has been suggested on the proviso that 
CCBC take on the liability of the ground in accepting this contribution. The location of 
the ground is north of the watercourse and it is appropriate that this potential 
additional fund would contribute towards CCBC Housing costs for the scheme. If this 
is not acceptable then scheme design can be amended / reduced to exclude those 
works not in CCBC ownership. 

  
5.4 The watercourse detriment has attracted local residents and Ward Councillor 

concerns over the past few years with an expectation for resolution by the riparian 
owners.   Failure to address the current problems within the watercourse will result in 
further detriment which may undermine residential gardens requiring additional works 
to those currently proposed and costs to exceed of those provided in this report.  

 
 This report recommends funding to be made available to secure a contractor to 

undertake the construction phase of this scheme as a matter of urgency and in 
advance of severe winter weather.  

 
 This scheme has been issued to tender twice:  
 

 Issued via Sell2Wales and Proactis on the 16th June 2021 and returned on 
the 9th of July 2021. Two contractors supplied responses however one was 
disqualified as they qualified their costs and the other did not satisfy the 
quality submission questions in particular the Health and Safety element. 

Page 260



Based on the aforementioned issues it was not possible to award the contract 
at that time.  
 

 The second tender issue was published via Sell2Wales and Proactis on the 
23rd July 2021 and returned on the 13th August 2021. Again, only two 
responses were received. Both Contractors scored very low on the quality 
submission but were invited to present their proposals to Engineering Project 
Group and Procurement department officers. This presentation allowed the 
two contractors to provide additional clarification to Officers which had not 
been included as part of their original submission. Following the presentation, 
it was deemed sufficient information was provided to progress to the contract 
to award stage.  

 
Due to the commercial sensitivity of the tender costs provided, names of the 
interested contractors have been omitted but the tender sums can be found below. 
  

1) Lowest tender cost estimate: £1,200,016.00. 
2) Second place tender cost estimate: £1,539,068.43. 

 
The tender amounts do not include design and consultation fees accrued during the 
design stages which are as follows. 
 

CBEC Montclaire Bank Erosion project report and 
proposal - 

16,145.00 

NPS Framework WSP Water Framework and Scour report £25,000.00. 

Glanville Environmental 3D laser survey £7,557.63 

Engineering Project Group Consultation (1) and 
supervision (2) Fees  

(1)£40,000 
(2) £50,000.00.  

Total sum  £138,702.63 

 
 

 
 

Construction costs are tendered at £1,200.016.00, design and supervision fees are 
estimated at £138,702.63 which gives a total liability circa £1,338,718.63 . In addition 
to this a risk  contingency  of 20%  of the tender sum plus supervision costs has been 
allowed to give a total cost of £1,500,19.20. 
 

5.5 Conclusion   

Given the urgency and specialist nature of the proposed engineering solution EPG 
have already: 

 Completed an independent design review to ensure conformance with the 
Water Framework Directive requirements to gain Ordinary Watercourse 
Consent. 

 Openly Tendered the scheme via Sell2Wales and identified a potential 
Contractor with a costed estimate to undertake the works.   

Consequently this report recommends that funding of £1,500,19.20 is made available 
to allow this scheme to progress at the earliest opportunity.  

 

Page 261



6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 The tender costs provided are based on known site information and may change 
once the works commence due to unknown ground condition’s, inclement weather, 
changes to material costs and / or material shortages. The nature of the Contract 
allows the works to be remeasured and potential savings passed onto the 
stakeholders, conversely price uplift will also be passed on.  

 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 The IIA (Appendix 1) indicates that the stream reinstatement works will address the 

ongoing scour, erosion and loss of embankment support. Addressing the defects now 
will mitigate the need for heaver civil engineering works in the future. Not progressing 
with the proposal could have the reverse negative impact as the stream’s 
embankments could eventually fail resulting in the private land owners not using 
there back gardens due to safety concerns. Additionally localised embankment 
collapse could cause localised flooding which can effect local residents, road users, 
Blackwood Police Station and leisure centre users. 

 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 The HRA sets a standard contingency budget of £500k to cover unforeseen 

emergency works. This was increased to £1m for the 2021/22 HRA budget, when it 
became clear that the works at Montclaire Avenue were likely to increase 
significantly, although at that time, no final estimate was confirmed. This report has 
now confirmed likely costs of some £1.5m and although £1m has been set aside for 
contingency, it would not be prudent to deplete this budget fully in case there are 
other unforeseen costs before the end of the financial year. However, the latest 
budget monitoring report (period 3) is currently projecting a £1.5m underspend this 
financial year for the HRA, of which a proportion can be earmarked towards this cost, 
together with a suitable proportion of the contingency budget. 

 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no personnel implications attached to this report.  
 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 The following statutory bodies were consulted during the development of this 

proposal  

 Natural Resources Wales. 

 Caerphilly CBC Land Drainage department.  

 Caerphilly CBC Ecologists.  

 Caerphilly CBC Procurement department.  

 Gwent Police nominated independent Consulting Engineers  - Jubb 
Consulting Engineers. This consultation is ongoing.  

 CCBC Public sector housing department.  

 CCBC Education department.   

 WSP Consulting Engineers. 

 Cbec Eco Engineering.  
 

Page 262



10.2 The report also reflects the views of the consultees listed below 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 Local Government Acts – this is a Cabinet function 
 
11.2 Caerphilly CBC Land Drainage department – Ordinary Watercourse Consent.  
 
 
12. URGENCY  
 
12.1 Early intervention of remedy for this scheme will mitigate further detriment to the site 

and ultimately mitigate further contract costs. We therefore consider this to be a 
decision that needs to be actioned urgently, as contractors have been appointed, and 
should not therefore be subject to call in.      

 
 
Author: Dave Street, Corporate Director for Social Services & Housing  
 Email:  streed@caerphilly.gov.uk  
 
 
Consultees: Cllr Lisa Phipps, Cabinet Member for Housing   
 John Ridgewell, Chair of Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny  

Cllr Mike Adams, Vice Chair of Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny 
Christina Harry, Chief Executive 

       Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director of Education and Corporate    
       Services 

 Mark S Williams, Corporate Director for Economy and Environment 
 Steve Harris, Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer 
 Cllr Kevin Etheridge (Ward Member for Blackwood) 
 Cllr Nigel Dix (Ward Member for Blackwood)  
 Cllr Andrew Farina-Childs (Ward Member for Blackwood) 
 Lesley Allen, Principal Group Accountant, Housing  
 Marcus Lloyd, Head of Infrastructure  
 Julian Higgs, Engineer, Communities  
 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Integrated Impact Assessment  
Appendix 2 SO811-002 Proposed Site arrangement and vegetation clearance 
 

Page 263

mailto:streed@caerphilly.gov.uk


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 264



1 
 

Caerphilly County Borough Council - Integrated Impact Assessment       APPENDIX 1 
 

This integrated impact assessment (IIA) has been designed to help support the Council in making informed and effective decisions whilst ensuring compliance 
with a range of relevant legislation, including: 

 

 Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011  Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 

 Socio-economic Duty – Sections 1 to 3 of the Equality Act 2010  Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

 Statutory Consultation v Doctrine of Legitimate Expectation and Gunning Principles 

 
PLEASE NOTE: Section 3 Socio-economic Duty only needs to be completed if proposals are of a strategic nature or when reviewing previous strategic 
decisions. See page 6 of the Preparing for the Commencement of the Socio-economic Duty Welsh Government Guidance. 

 

 

1. Proposal Details 

Lead Officer Head of Service Service Area & Department Date 

Lazaro Raposo Marcus Lloyd Infrastructure Sept. 2021 

 
 

Is this proposal a… (please tick relevant box) 

Policy  Strategy / Plan  Practice  Procedure  Restructure  Project                ✔
  

 
 

What is the proposal to be assessed? Provide brief details of the proposal and provide a link to any relevant report or documents. 

Caerphilly CBC’s Engineering Projects Group (EPG) has developed a proposal which will address water erosion and loss of support to the riverbank 

immediately behind residential properties along Montclaire Avenue, Blackwood. The Scheme comprises headwalls, canalised and culverted constructions 

to convey the stream’s water to mitigate future detriment to the watercourse and neighbouring properties rear gardens. The stream currently flows 

between Caerphilly County Borough Council, Gwent Police, and a private owners land. CCBC  Public sector housing are the riparian owner of the stream 

and are  responsible for the scheme costs within their ownership. 

P
age 265

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf


2 
 

 

2. Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 
(The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation; advance equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between different groups). Please note that an 
individual may have more than one protected characteristic. 

 

Protected Characteristics 
Does the proposal have any positive, 
negative or neutral impacts on the 
protected characteristics and how? 

If there are negative impacts how will 
these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view? 

 
 

 
Age (people of all ages) 

The scheme equally benefits all users 
and does not negatively impact on any 
particular or protected groups. 
The works will contribute the safe 
conveyance of water and address 
defects to the water course which 
could affect property boundaries in 
the future. The land and watercourse 
is currently not utilised by members. 

  

 

 
Disability (people with 
disabilities/ long term 
conditions) 

The scheme equally benefits all users 
and does not negatively impact on any 
particular or protected groups. 
The works will contribute the safe 
conveyance of water and address 
defects to the water course which 
could affect property boundaries in 
the future. The land and watercourse 
is currently not utilised by members. 

  

Gender Reassignment 
(anybody who’s gender 
identity or gender 
expression is different to 
the sex they were assigned 
at birth) 

The scheme equally benefits all users 
and does not negatively impact on any 
particular or protected groups. 
The works will contribute the safe 
conveyance of water and address 
defects to the water course which 
could affect property boundaries in 
the future. The land and watercourse 
is currently not utilised by members. 

  

P
age 266

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues


3 
 

 

Protected Characteristics 
Does the proposal have any positive, 
negative or neutral impacts on the 
protected characteristics and how? 

If there are negative impacts how will 
these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view? 

Marriage or Civil 
Partnership (people who 
are married or in a civil 
partnership) 

The scheme equally benefits all users 
and does not negatively impact on any 
particular or protected groups. 
The works will contribute the safe 
conveyance of water and address 
defects to the water course which could 
affect property boundaries in the 
future. The land and watercourse is 
currently not utilised by members. 

  

 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
(women who are pregnant 
and/or on maternity 
leave) 

The scheme equally benefits all users 
and does not negatively impact on any 
particular or protected groups. 
The works will contribute the safe 
conveyance of water and address 
defects to the water course which could 
affect property boundaries in the 
future. The land and watercourse is 
currently not utilised by members. 

  

 
Race (people from black, 
Asian and minority ethnic 
communities and different 
racial backgrounds) 

The scheme equally benefits all users 
and does not negatively impact on any 
particular or protected groups. 
The works will contribute the safe 
conveyance of water and address 
defects to the water course which 
could affect property boundaries in 
the future. The land and watercourse 
is currently not utilised by members. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 267

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues


4 
 

 

Protected Characteristics 
Does the proposal have any positive, 
negative or neutral impacts on the 
protected characteristics and how? 

If there are negative impacts how will 
these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view? 

 
Religion or Belief (people 
with different religions 
and beliefs including 
people with no beliefs) 

The scheme equally benefits all users 
and does not negatively impact on any 
particular or protected groups. 
The works will contribute the safe 
conveyance of water and address 
defects to the water course which 
could affect property boundaries in 
the future. The land and watercourse 
is currently not utilised by members. 

  

 
Sex (women and men, 
girls and boys and those 
who self-identify their 
gender) 

The scheme equally benefits all users 
and does not negatively impact on any 
particular or protected groups. 
The works will contribute the safe 
conveyance of water and address 
defects to the water course which could 
affect property boundaries in the 
future. The land and watercourse is 
currently not utilised by members. 

  

 
 

Sexual Orientation 
(lesbian, gay, bisexual, 
heterosexual) 

The scheme equally benefits all users 
and does not negatively impact on any 
particular or protected groups. 
The works will contribute the safe 
conveyance of water and address 
defects to the water course which 
could affect property boundaries in 
the future. The land and watercourse 
is currently not utilised by members. 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 268

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Equalities-issues


5 
 

 
 

3. Socio-economic Duty (Strategic Decisions Only) 
(The Socio-economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key decision making. 
Socio-economic disadvantage means living on a low income compared to others in Wales, with little or no accumulated wealth, leading to greater 
material deprivation, restricting the ability to access basic goods and services) 

Please consider these additional vulnerable groups and the impact your proposal may or may not have on them: 

 Single parents and vulnerable families 
 People with low literacy/numeracy 
 Pensioners 
 Looked after children 
 Homeless people 

 Carers 
 Armed Forces Community 
 Students 
 Single adult households 
 People misusing substances 

 People who have experienced the asylum system 
 People of all ages leaving a care setting 
 People living in the most deprived areas in Wales (WIMD) 
 People involved in the criminal justice system 

 

Socio-economic Disadvantage 
Does the proposal have any positive, 
negative or neutral impacts on the 
following and how? 

If there are negative impacts how 
will these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view? 

 
 
 
 
Low Income / Income Poverty 
(cannot afford to maintain regular 
payments such as bills, food, 
clothing, transport etc.) 

Positive impact for local residents 
and adjacent land users if funding 
is granted. 
 
The implications of further 
detriment to the watercourse can 
be significant on local resident’s 
properties. Addressing the existing 
stream defects will mitigate costly 
remediation in the future due to 
the ongoing erosion and lose of 
support to neighbouring properties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  P
age 269

https://gov.wales/socio-economic-duty-overview


6 
 

 

Socio-economic Disadvantage 
Does the proposal have any 
positive, negative or neutral 
impacts on the following and how? 

If there are negative impacts how 
will these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view? 

Low and/or No Wealth (enough 
money to meet basic living costs 
and pay bills but have no savings to 
deal with any unexpected spends 
and no provisions for the future) 

Positive impact for local residents 
and adjacent land users if funding 
is granted. 
 

  

Material Deprivation (unable to 
access basic goods and services i.e. 
financial products like life 
insurance, repair/replace broken 
electrical goods, warm home, 
hobbies etc.) 

Positive impact for local residents 
and adjacent land users if funding 
is granted. 
 

  

 
 
 
Area Deprivation (where you live 
(rural areas), where you work 
(accessibility of public transport) 

Positive impact for local residents 
and adjacent land users if funding 
is granted. 
 
The implications of further 
detriment to the watercourse can 
be significant on local resident’s 
properties. Addressing the existing 
stream defects will mitigate costly 
remediation in the future due to 
the ongoing erosion and lose of 
support to neighbouring properties. 
 
 

  

P
age 270

https://gov.wales/socio-economic-duty-overview


7 
 

 
 

 
Socio-economic Background 
(social class i.e. parents education, 
employment and income) 

Positive impact for local residents 
and adjacent land users if funding 
is granted. 
 
The implications of further 
detriment to the watercourse can 
be significant on local resident’s 
properties. Addressing the existing 
stream defects will mitigate costly 
remediation in the future due to 
the ongoing erosion and lose of 
support to neighbouring properties. 
 

  

Socio-economic Disadvantage 
(What cumulative impact will the 
proposal have on people or groups 

Positive impact for local 
residents and adjacent land 
users if funding is granted. 

  

because of their protected 
characteristic(s) or vulnerability or 
because they are already 
disadvantaged) 

Positive impact for local residents 
and adjacent land users if funding is 
granted. Undertaking these works 
will have an overall positive impact 
on people’s mental health and 
wellbeing for local residents as they 
will retaining use of their rear 
gardens.  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 271



8 
 

4. Corporate Plan – Council’s Well-being Objectives 
(How does your proposal deliver against any/all of the Council’s Well-being Objectives? Which in turn support the national well-being goals for Wales 
as outlined in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Are there any impacts (positive, negative or neutral? If there are negative 
impacts how have these been mitigated?) Well-being Objectives 

 
 

Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all 

This scheme does not directly facilitate and or improve education 
opportunities. However this land may be used for ecological environment 
study area and or developed by schools to encourage bio-diversity projects. 
Please note this will opportunity will exclude the canalised section of the 
scheme due to access health & safety issues.  

 
 
  Objective 2 - Enabling employment 

This scheme does not directly facilitate and or improve employment 
opportunities. However this scheme may afford employment to local 
residents with suitable skills during the construction of these works.  

Objective 3 - Address the availability, condition and sustainability of 
homes throughout the county borough and provide advice, assistance 
or support to help improve people’s well-being 

This scheme will ensure future detriment to watercourse at this location is 
addressed. Additionally, river bank support will be reintroduced to the 
residential properties along Montclair avenue / unanamed stream. Currently a 
limited number of local residents back gardens have been affected by the loss 
of bank support along the stream. Undertaking these works will provide 
assurances to local residents of the continued safe use their rear gardens.    

Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable 
transport system that increases opportunity, promotes prosperity 
and minimises the adverse impact on the environment 

This scheme will address the ongoing watercourse scouring under one scheme. 
Undertaking this scheme in one phase will enable local funa, flora and ecology 
to re-establish itself with no future major construction work require at thos 
location.   

Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports healthy 
lifestyle in accordance with the Sustainable Development principle 
with in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

These works will provide local residents peace of mind that the local 
watercourse is not undermining their properties. Additionally these works have 
been designed to conform to the Water Framework Directive in order to get 
Ordinary Watercourse Consent, thus ensuring the continuity of watercourse for 
the enjoyment, health and well-being of the community down and stream and 
as a whole.  

 
Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve 
their well-being 

These works will provide local residents peace of mind that the local 
watercourse is not undermining their properties. 

 

P
age 272

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/Corporate_Plan_2018-2023.aspx


9 
 

4a. Links to any other relevant Council Policy 
(How does your proposal deliver against any other relevant Council Policy?) 

 

• Local Transport Plan 
• Corporate Plan (including well-being objectives) 
• Carbon Reduction Strategy 
• Highway Asset Management Plan 

 
 

5. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 – The Five Ways of Working (ICLIP) 
(Also known as the sustainable development principles. The Act requires the Council to consider how any proposal improves the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales using the five ways of working as a baseline) 

Ways of Working How have you used the Sustainable Development Principles in forming the proposal? 

Long Term 

 

Consider the long-term impact of the proposal on the ability of communities to secure their well-being. 

The strategy proposed will provide a long term asset management solution and will allow for more effective and predictable 
resource/financial/carbon reduction commitments going forward. 

Prevention 

 

Consider how the proposal is preventing problems from ocurring or getting worse 

Addressing the watercourse defects now will mitigate future detriment and curtail more invasive heavy civil engineering 
remediation solutions in the future. Future maintenance and monitoring may need to be developed to detect deterioration of 
the network and promote timely proactive responses allowing a more efficient use of finite budgets. 

Integration 

 

Consider how your proposal will impact on other services provided in our communities (these might be Council services or services delivered 
by other organisations or groups) 

A well maintained watercourse  forms part of an overall strategy providing ecological advantages that will impact green spaces 
downstream for the benefit of the local community and visitor’s to the borough.     

P
age 273

https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/publicservicesboard/content/5-ways-working


10 
 

Collaboration 

 

Consider how you are working with Council services or services delivered by other organisations or groups in our communities. 

The feasibility and optioneering of designs is based upon a collaborative approach between Caerphilly Council, Natural 
Resources Wales and specialist hydraulic Engineering Consultancy. It brings internal departments together to deliver effective 
solutions over the short and long term and also recognises importance of maintaining green spaces and water courses.  

Involvement 

 

Consider how you involve people who have an interest in this proposal and ensure that they represent the diversity of our communities. 

Internal departments have worked together to develop the proposal. Going forward there needs to be an effective 
communication plan to ensure the strategy behind the proposal, along with the suitability of application, is transparent to all 
parties. This will require the involvement of staff and engagement with all relevant stakeholders. 

 
 

6. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

Well-being Goals Does the proposal maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goal and how? 

A Prosperous Wales 
An innovative, productive and low carbon society 
which recognises the limits of the global environment 
and therefore uses resources efficiently and 
proportionately (including acting on climate change); 
and which develops a skilled and well-educated 
population in an economy which generates wealth 

 

The work set out will contribute to a Prosperous Wales and a Prosperous Caerphilly. The 
scheme will prevent and reduce incidences of instability which reduces the potential injury, 
loss of life, loss and damage to property, the local economy (road closures, insufficient 
diversionary alternatives etc.) while 

and provides employment opportunities, allowing 
people to take advantage of the wealth generated 
through securing decent work 

providing wider multiple benefits. The implications of loss of support of the stream bank may 
impact the current stream arrangement and undermine neighbouring properties.  

A Resilient Wales 
A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse 
natural environment healthy functioning ecosystems 
that support social, economic and ecological 
resilience and the capacity to adapt to change (for 
climate change) 

 

The very nature of this proposal means that it has a focus on environmental issues and 
contribution to a resilient Wales. The implications of water course erosion can be significant 
to local residents but will also affect the wildlife and ecosystems. Management and 
maintenance of watercourse enables our local businesses and communities to be more 
resilient and is vital to the success of sustainable development. 

P
age 274

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies%2C-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies%2C-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act


11 
 

A Healthier Wales 
A society in which people’s physical and mental well- 
being is maximised and in which choices and 
behaviours that benefit future health are understood 

 

Management and maintenance of watercourses ensures a clean, green environment with 
access to open space, clean air and water are key elements of health and well-being.  

 
 
 
A More Equal Wales 
A society that enables people to fulfil their potential 
no matter what their background or circumstances 
(including their socio-economic background and 
circumstances) 

 

Ensuring that everyone across the county borough has equal access to a clean, green and 
attractive environment is a core element of our work. 
The works will contribute to a more equal Wales by way of effectively managing and 
maintaining our streams and water ways.   
The scheme contributes to great equality, cohesiveness and responsibility both locally and 
globally by ensuring this scheme was designed and constructed for the benefit of the local 
ecology and local residents and adopts current environmental and suitability best practises 
. 
 

 
 

Well-being Goals Does the proposal maximise our contribution to the Well-being Goal and how? 

A Wales of Cohesive Communities 
Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected 
communities 

CCBC will explore creative solutions that ensures the effective management of water courses 
with the Borough. This demonstrates that we promote communities to be caring and 
environmentally conscious. This in turn helps to create a tidier, more attractive well- 
connected place for residents and visitors. 

A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh 
Language 

Maintaining watercourses within the borough will ensure the continued use and sustainability 
of local ecosystems to be enjoyed by all.  Additionally we will ensure correspondence, 
communications and details on the website, via social media channels and to residents is 
bilingual. 

A society that promotes and protects culture, 
heritage and the Welsh language, and which 
encourages people to participate in the arts, and 
sports and recreation 

Ensuring works signs are bilingual will promote the Welsh language and we need to 
ensure the rights of Welsh speakers to use Welsh when dealing with the council are 
maintained. 

P
age 275

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies%2C-plans-and-policies/Corporate-strategies%2C-plans-and-policies/The-Well-being-of-Future-Generations-(Wales)-Act


12 
 

A Globally Responsible Wales 
A nation which, when doing anything to improve the 
economic, social, environmental and cultural well- 
being of Wales, takes account of whether doing such 
a thing may make a positive contribution to global 
well-being 

One of Caerphilly’s corporate objective is to reduce carbon emissions and to reduce our 
contribution to global warming. Multiple benefits including biodiversity and reduction in 
carbon emissions will be achieved by promoting sustainable solutions and by maintaining 
our local water sources.  

 
 

7. Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and Welsh Language Standards 
(The Welsh Language Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language Standards require the Council to have ‘due regard’ for the positive or 
negative impact a proposal may have on opportunities to use the Welsh language and ensuring the Welsh language is treated no less 
favourably than the English language) insert link to WL Commissioners Policy Making Standards Guidance 

 

 

 
Requirement 

Does the proposal have any 
positive, negative or neutral 
impacts on the following and 
how? 

 

If there are negative impacts how 
will these be mitigated? 

What evidence has been used to 
support this view? 
e.g the WESP, TAN20, LDP, Pupil 
Level Annual School Census 

 
 
 
 

 
Links with Welsh Government’s 

Cymraeg 2050 Strategy and CCBC’s 

Five Year Welsh Language Strategy 

2017-2022 and the Language Profile 

No direct impact on the Welsh 
language. 
EPG will Ensure all scheme  are 
bilingual will promote the Welsh 
language and we need to ensure 
the rights of Welsh speakers to 
use Welsh when dealing with 
the       council are maintained. 

  

Compliance with the Welsh Language 

Standards. 

Specifically Standards 88 - 93 

See Above   

P
age 276

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/WelsLanguageStrategy2017_22.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh-Language/WelsLanguageStrategy2017_22.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/ComplianceNotice.aspx


13 
 

Opportunities to promote the Welsh 

language e.g. status, use of Welsh 

language services, use of Welsh in 

everyday life in work / community 

See above   

Opportunities for persons to use the 

Welsh language e.g. staff, residents 

and visitors 

See above 
  

Treating the Welsh language no less 

favourably than the English language 

 
See above 

  

 

7a. Having considered the impacts above, how has the proposal been developed so that there are positive effects, or increased positive effects on 

(a) opportunities for persons to use the Welsh language, and b) treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language. 

 

Ensure correspondence, communications and details on the website, via social media channels and with residents is bilingual. Also ensure site works 
signs are bilingual. We need to ensure the rights of Welsh speakers to use Welsh when dealing with the council are maintained. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 277



14 
 

8. Data and Information 
(What data or other evidence has been used to inform the development of the proposal? Evidence may include the outcome of previous consultations, 
existing databases, pilot projects, review of customer complaints and compliments and or other service user feedback, national and regional data, 
academic publications and consultants’ reports etc.) 

Data/evidence 
(Please provide link to report if appropriate) 

Key relevant findings 
How has the data/evidence informed this 
proposal? 

P
age 278



15 
 

Caerphilly CBC’s Engineering Projects Group 
(EPG) has developed a proposal which will 
address water erosion and loss of support to the 
riverbank immediately behind residential 
properties along Montclaire Avenue, Blackwood. 
The Scheme comprises headwalls, canalised and 
culverted constructions to convey the stream’s 
water to mitigate future detriment to the 
watercourse and neighbouring properties rear 
gardens. The stream currently flows between 
Caerphilly County Borough Council, Gwent 
Police, and a private owners land. A total of four 
(4) stakeholders are directly involved as possible 
riparian owners in this scheme and are possibly 
expected to provide a proportional financial 
contribution toward the design and construction 
costs associated with this project. 

The water course has been visually inspected 
and monitored ongoing detriment of the water 
course. 
 
The Water Framework Directive Assessment has 
concluded that the potential impacts resulting 
from the operation of the scheme have been 
identified and assessed as to whether they are 
significant enough to cause degradation to 
current WFD status. The geomorphological 
assessment concluded that there would be a 
negligible change in the baseline conditions and 
geomorphic processes within the unnamed 
watercourse. The assessment acknowledges 
that there would be a slight change in the 
sediment supply, but these impacts would be 
localised to just the unnamed watercourse due 
to the presence of the downstream culvert and 
weir. 
It is therefore concluded that the proposed 
scheme is not expected to cause degradation of 
the individual quality elements or overall WFD 
status of the Sirhowy River. 
 
  

The Water Framework Directive Assessment 
coupled with CCBC Land Drainage 
requirements informed the design 
methodology for this scheme. Additionally 
CCBC Ecologists were consulted during the 
detailed design phase to ensure the proposed 
will not have an adverse effect on local 
ecology.  

Were there any gaps identified in the evidence and data used to develop this proposal and how will these gaps be filled? 
Details of further consultation can be included in Section 9. 

 

The data collated evidences that the proposal will address stream scour, erosion and loss of bank support, therefor will ensure a long term 
solution. The funding is required to progress to the construction phase of this scheme.  

P
age 279



16 
 

9. Consultation 
(In some instances, there is a legal requirement to consult. In others, even where there is no legal obligation, there may be a legitimate expectation 
from people that a consultation will take place. Where it has been determined that consultation is required, The Gunning Principles must be adhered to. 
Consider the Consultation and Engagement Framework. Please note that this may need to be updated as the proposal develops and to strengthen the 
assessment. 

Briefly describe any recent or planned consultations paying particular attention to evidencing the Gunning Principles. 

 

Two construction methods were considered at feasibly stage . Construction method 1) culvert the entire length of water course, Construction 
method 2) soft landscaping and reintroducing the streambed armour.  
 
Construction method 2- CBEC Environmental engineering produced a design which sought to mitigate the streambed incision but failed to provide a 
solution for the embankment support   
 
Construction method 1 – CCBC EPG sought to culvert the entire length of defective water course. In doing so the culvert pipe would stop further 
incision and the backfill soil would introduce soil to support / prop the scoured embankments. CCBC land drainage suggested the CIRIA did not 
consider culverts a sustainable / ecologically sensitive form of construction . EPG Structures worked with CCBC land drainage to reach an agreeable 
compromise to satisfy the Ordinary Water Course consent requirements which has  

 
During the constriction proposed construction phase  development,  correspondence and further consultation and engagement will be 
arranged via the local councillors  informing them of any development and or exchange any concerns regarding this scheme. 

 

Social media sites and council websites are again very useful in keeping the communities engaged and will be utilised to inform the local residents of 
the proposed scheme works. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10. Monitoring and Review 

How will the implementation and the impact 
of the proposal be monitored, including 
implementation of any amendments? 

 
Works will be monitored weekly via site meetings and work programme reviews. Liaison with local 
property owners and residents will  be undertaken by the nominated Principal Contractor.   

P
age 280

https://www.consultationinstitute.org/the-gunning-principles-implications/
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Consultations/Consultation-and-Engagement-Framework.aspx


17 
 

What are the practical arrangements for 
monitoring? 

Works will be monitored weekly via site meetings and work programme reviews 

 

How will the results of the monitoring be 
used to develop future proposals? 

 

A lessons learnt meeting will be arrange between CCBC Officers and the Contractor to identify any 
issues found with either the contract documents, construction methodology and or design proposals 
to better inform similar schemes.  

 

When is the proposal due to be reviewed? 
 

Any reviews will be determined once the scheme proposal is identified and confirmed. 

Who is responsible for ensuring this 
happens? 

 

Head of Infrastructure / Designers 

 
 

11. Recommendation and Reasoning 

x Implement proposal with no amendments 

 Implement proposal taking account of the mitigating actions outlined 

 Reject the proposal due to disproportionate impact on equality, poverty and socio-economic disadvantage 

 
 

 
 

12. Reason(s) for Recommendation 
(Provide below a summary of the Integrated Impact Assessment. This summary should be included in the “Summary of Integrated Impact Assessment” 
section of the Corporate Report Template. The Integrated Impact Assessment should be published alongside the Report proposal). 

Have you contacted relevant officers for advice and guidance? Yes x No 

P
age 281



18 
 

Include here a conclusion to your IIA. What is it telling you? How has the data / evidence used helped you to make the decision for Section 11 above? Mention any 
significant impacts (positive, negative or neutral) if any negative ones identified, how have they been mitigated to lessen the impact? The summary you provide here 
will be copied into your report going forward for a decision through the committee process, therefore this section must be concise but informative. 

The IIA indicates that the stream reinstatement works will address the ongoing scour, erosion and loss of embankment support. Addressing the defects 
now will mitigate the need for heaver civil engineering works in the future. Not progressing with the proposal could have the reverse negative impact 
as the stream’s embankments could eventually fail resulting in the private land owners not using there back gardens due to safety concerns. 
Additionally localised embankment collapse could cause localised flooding  which can effect local residents, road users, Blackwood Police Station and  
leisure centre users.  

 
 

13. Version Control 
(The IIA should be used in the early stages of the proposal development process. The IIA can be strengthened as time progresses to help shape the 
proposal. The Version Control section will act as an audit trail to evidence how the IIA has been developed over time) 

P
age 282



19 
 

Version No. Author Brief description of the amendments/update Revision Date 
1 Lazaro Raposo Original Sept. 21 

    

    

 
 

Integrated Impact Assessment Author 

Name: ?Lazaro Raposo ? 

Job Title: Senior Engineer  

Date: April 21 
 

Head of Service Approval 

Name: Marcus Lloyd TBC  

Job Title: Head of Infrastructure 

 

Signature: 

 
 

 

Date: 

 

28 Spet 2021 

 

P
age 283



G
adew

ir y dudalen hon yn w
ag yn fw

riadol

P
age 284



Police
Station

Spring
G

ardens

H
ighfield

Ty-nant

CCS

CS

85

7

8

6

Police
Station

Spring
G

ardens

H
ighfield

Ty-nant

CCS

CS

85

7

8

6

Police Station

Spring Gardens

Highfield

Ty-nant

CCS

CS

85

9

7

8

6

Police Station

ETL

CS

9

8

6

HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION
Note:
It is assumed that the work undertaken will be carried out
by a competent Contractor who is aware of all generic
risks associated with the works.  Listed below are
significant risks relating to the works:

project title

drawing title

project ref. drawing no.

scale date drawn checked

rev.

Montclaire Avenue -
Blackwood

Proposed Site arrangement
and vegetation clearance.

APPROVAL INFORMATIONCOMMENT
TENDER AS CONSTRUCTEDCONTRACTDRAFT X

THIS DRAWING SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR IN PART
WITHOUT THE EXPRESS PERMISSION OF THE ENGINEERING CONSULTANCY.

ENGINEERING CONSULTANCY
ENGINEERING PROJECTS GROUP

The Client must ensure that a construction
phase plan is drawn up before the construction
phase begins and that the Contractor
responsible for ensuring that the plan is drawn
up adequately addresses the arrangements for
managing the risks.

Existing watercourse arrangement
Scale:1:500

Indicative new construction arrangement.

Site Clearance - 6369.56m²

Scale:1:500

Site Clearance
Scale:1:500

P
age 285

AutoCAD SHX Text
Location of unnamed stream 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Stream inlet 2.  

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Stream inlet1.  

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Stream inlet 2.  

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Stream inlet1.  

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Culvert construction to reintroduce bank support to the rear of the residential properties of Montclaire Avenue. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Canalised upstream section

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Concrete apron to provide energy dissipater before joining natural streambed  

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Canalised downstream section

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Ramped structure to provide interface with new construction and existing stream bed  

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
30m site clearance (15m on either side of new construction ) required to undertake construction phase. Vegetation comprises large mature tree's ,  shrubbery and grasses. the site and in particular the watercourse and its banks has extensive discarded / fly tipped material comprising electrical appliances, building material & tools, and general litter. By visual inspection the discarded building material comprised fired masonry, cut and or rubble stone masonry and concrete elements i.e patio / flag stones etc. No evidence of Asbestos Containing Materials (ACM) was visually identified of site, however asbestos control measures as per the Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 musty be in place and implement upon discovering and or have suspicion of ACM's  on site . The Design Engineer and the Clients Project Manager most be made aware straight away upon discovering ACM's on site and if necessary, the relevant Statutory and or Environmental body must be notified. Head wall debris from the failed inlet 1 remains in place and comprises approx 3.0m  length of corrugated steel culvert approx 1.0m dia. will need removing as part of the clearance works. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Vegetation clearance to enable site access / egress road via  clearance to enable site access / egress road via clearance to enable site access / egress road via  to enable site access / egress road via to enable site access / egress road via  enable site access / egress road via enable site access / egress road via  site access / egress road via site access / egress road via  access / egress road via access / egress road via  / egress road via / egress road via  egress road via egress road via  road via road via  via via St Peter's Drive. Appendix 7/1 - Haul Road: Contractor  Peter's Drive. Appendix 7/1 - Haul Road: Contractor Peter's Drive. Appendix 7/1 - Haul Road: Contractor  Drive. Appendix 7/1 - Haul Road: Contractor Drive. Appendix 7/1 - Haul Road: Contractor  Appendix 7/1 - Haul Road: Contractor Appendix 7/1 - Haul Road: Contractor  7/1 - Haul Road: Contractor 7/1 - Haul Road: Contractor  - Haul Road: Contractor - Haul Road: Contractor  Haul Road: Contractor Haul Road: Contractor  Road: Contractor Road: Contractor  Contractor Contractor temporary works.  Contractor to propose haul road arrangement for site egress  to propose haul road arrangement for site egress to propose haul road arrangement for site egress  propose haul road arrangement for site egress propose haul road arrangement for site egress  haul road arrangement for site egress haul road arrangement for site egress  road arrangement for site egress road arrangement for site egress  arrangement for site egress arrangement for site egress  for site egress for site egress  site egress site egress  egress egress for approval by engineer. Appropriate design for haul road  approval by engineer. Appropriate design for haul road approval by engineer. Appropriate design for haul road  by engineer. Appropriate design for haul road by engineer. Appropriate design for haul road  engineer. Appropriate design for haul road engineer. Appropriate design for haul road  Appropriate design for haul road Appropriate design for haul road  design for haul road design for haul road  for haul road for haul road  haul road haul road  road road should be in accordance with DMRB Publication CD225 Rev 1  be in accordance with DMRB Publication CD225 Rev 1 be in accordance with DMRB Publication CD225 Rev 1  in accordance with DMRB Publication CD225 Rev 1 in accordance with DMRB Publication CD225 Rev 1  accordance with DMRB Publication CD225 Rev 1 accordance with DMRB Publication CD225 Rev 1  with DMRB Publication CD225 Rev 1 with DMRB Publication CD225 Rev 1  DMRB Publication CD225 Rev 1 DMRB Publication CD225 Rev 1  Publication CD225 Rev 1 Publication CD225 Rev 1  CD225 Rev 1 CD225 Rev 1  Rev 1 Rev 1  1 1 or suitable contractor proposal to be agreed by approved.  

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
St Peters Drive. The site access - egress along St Peters Drive will  Peters Drive. The site access - egress along St Peters Drive will Peters Drive. The site access - egress along St Peters Drive will  Drive. The site access - egress along St Peters Drive will Drive. The site access - egress along St Peters Drive will  The site access - egress along St Peters Drive will The site access - egress along St Peters Drive will  site access - egress along St Peters Drive will site access - egress along St Peters Drive will  access - egress along St Peters Drive will access - egress along St Peters Drive will  - egress along St Peters Drive will - egress along St Peters Drive will  egress along St Peters Drive will egress along St Peters Drive will  along St Peters Drive will along St Peters Drive will  St Peters Drive will St Peters Drive will  Peters Drive will Peters Drive will  Drive will Drive will  will will require either a Mesh Heavy Duty Vehicle Gate or double leave Palisade  either a Mesh Heavy Duty Vehicle Gate or double leave Palisade either a Mesh Heavy Duty Vehicle Gate or double leave Palisade  a Mesh Heavy Duty Vehicle Gate or double leave Palisade a Mesh Heavy Duty Vehicle Gate or double leave Palisade  Mesh Heavy Duty Vehicle Gate or double leave Palisade Mesh Heavy Duty Vehicle Gate or double leave Palisade  Heavy Duty Vehicle Gate or double leave Palisade Heavy Duty Vehicle Gate or double leave Palisade  Duty Vehicle Gate or double leave Palisade Duty Vehicle Gate or double leave Palisade  Vehicle Gate or double leave Palisade Vehicle Gate or double leave Palisade  Gate or double leave Palisade Gate or double leave Palisade  or double leave Palisade or double leave Palisade  double leave Palisade double leave Palisade  leave Palisade leave Palisade  Palisade Palisade gates at least 1.8m height. Contractor to make allowance for all  at least 1.8m height. Contractor to make allowance for all at least 1.8m height. Contractor to make allowance for all  least 1.8m height. Contractor to make allowance for all least 1.8m height. Contractor to make allowance for all  1.8m height. Contractor to make allowance for all 1.8m height. Contractor to make allowance for all  height. Contractor to make allowance for all height. Contractor to make allowance for all  Contractor to make allowance for all Contractor to make allowance for all  to make allowance for all to make allowance for all  make allowance for all make allowance for all  allowance for all allowance for all  for all for all  all all fixings and foundation provision to accommodate the entrance.  

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Remove from store and re-erect steel palisade fence.  from store and re-erect steel palisade fence. from store and re-erect steel palisade fence.  store and re-erect steel palisade fence. store and re-erect steel palisade fence.  and re-erect steel palisade fence. and re-erect steel palisade fence.  re-erect steel palisade fence. re-erect steel palisade fence.  steel palisade fence. steel palisade fence.  palisade fence. palisade fence.  fence. fence. Reinstatemnt position to be agreed on site with Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
002

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
SO811

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
1:500@A1

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
June 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
RJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Revisions

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Suffix

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Initials

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
DO NOT SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Head of Infrastructure - Marcus Lloyd

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
B.Eng MBA C.Eng MICE MCMI MCIHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Engineering Services Division

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Ty Penallta, Tredomen Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
Hengoed CF82 7PG

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
Communities Directorate

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
N



G
adew

ir y dudalen hon yn w
ag yn fw

riadol

P
age 286


	Agenda
	3 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 15 Medi 2021.
	4 Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.
	5 Strategaeth Datblygu'r Gweithlu 2021-24.
	Atodiad
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2

	6 Strategaeth Lles Gweithwyr 2021-24.
	Atodiad
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2

	7 Trefniadau cau dros y Nadolig 2021.
	8 Adroddiad Atodol – Rheoli Risg Adeiladu a Gwasanaethu ar Lefel Rhybudd Sero.
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3
	Atodiad 4
	Atodiad 5

	9 Bid Cyllido Gwaith Ffrwd Montclaire Avenue.
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Sheets and Views
	002






